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Notice
===isherebygiventhatthe52ndArmualGeneulMeeting(AGM)oftheMembersof"OCREMPRODUCTS
LIMITED (CIN: L24249MH1972PLC015544) will bc held at the Regstered Office of the Company at Sanban

Chambers, 4th Floor, Sir. P. M. Road, Fort, Mumbal - 400001 on Thursday, 22nd August 2024 at 3.00 P.M. to

transact the following business:

Ordinay Business
1.   Adoption Of Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024:

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Fimncial Statements of the Company for the fimncial year
ended March 31, 2024, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2.   Re-Appointment of Mrs. Grace Ramu Dcora (DIN:  00312080) as a director, liable to retire by
rotation, who had oflbed himself for re-appointment:

To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Grace Ranu Deora OIN: 00312080), who retires by rotation, and
being eligivle offers hinself for re-appointment.

Special Business
3.   The continuation of directorship of Mrs. Grace Ramu Dcora (DIN: 00312080), aged 76 years as a

`Non-Ex[ecutive, Non-Independent Director' of the Company.

To approve the continuation of directorship of Mrs. Grace Ranu Deora OIN: 00312080), aged 76 years as
a `Non-ELecutive, Non-Independent Director' of the Company, who is liable to retire ly rotation and had
offered himself for re-appointment, in terns of Regulation 17(1A) of the Securities and Erdiange Board of
India qisting Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) RegLilatious, 2015, to consider and if thought fit,
to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution as a Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 17(1A) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Qjsting

Obligrtious  and  Disclosure  Requirements)  Regulations,  2015,  and  the  applicable  provisions  of the
Companies Act,  2013 and relevant Rules framed thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) /
amendment(s) / re{mctment(s) thereto), approval of the Members be and is hereby accorded to the
continuation of directorship  of Mrs.  Grace  Ranu  Deora  @IN:  00312080),  need  76 years,  as  a  `Non-
Executive, Non-Independent Director' of the Company, liable to retire ly rotation and who had offered
hiuselfforre-appointment."

\
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4.   A]]thorization for Rchted party Transaction
To consider and if though fit, to pass with or without modification, the following Resolution as a Special
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT in continuation of and in addition to the Resolution passed through Special resolution

in Annual General Meeting held on 24th August, 2023 and pursuant to the Section 188 of the Companies

Act,  2013  read  with  Companies  quceting  of Board  &  its  Powers)  Rules,  2014  and  other  applicable

provisions,  if any,  of the Act,  and  RegLilation  23  of Securities  and  ELchangc  Board  of India  Qjsting
Omgatious  and  Disclosure  Requirements)  Regulations,  2015  ("SEBI  Listing  Regulations)  read  with

applical)le provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and niles made thereunder ("the Act), and subject to
such other regulations, guidelines, circulars, notifications, clarifications and I.aws (including any statutory
modifications or re{nactment thereof for the time being in force), and such other approvals, sanctions,
consents and pemissious as may be deemed necessary consent be and is hereby accorded to the Board of
Directors of the Company or any Committee thereof, to enter into contracts/agreements as defined in the
Companies Act, 2013 with the related parties up to maximum per annum amounts with effect from April
1, 2024, as appended herein below:

Name of Related Parties / Companies Transaction defined u/s 188(1) of Companies Act, 2013

qu. in Crones)
Name of Related Parties Saleofanygoods Purchase of any E Pquent of
Companies and materials and goods and Experrs and

Service materials ReimbLLrsement Paid

On Actual basis, caempted being in the ordinary course of business and on am's lengd] basis. (Subject
to a maximum of amount p.a. as mentioned against the name of the Company).

G Amphray Phamaceuticals Pvt Ltd 15 20

Triorhem Iaboratories Pvt Ltd 15 20

Ambemath Plasto Packagivg Pvt Ltd 10 20

PROPRIETORSIHP FIRM :

G Amphray lrfuratories 60 40 20

DIRECTORSAI"PsquIATIVES OF DIRECTORS & KMPs/OTIHR FIRMS & COMPANIES in which Director

have some interest as per the provisions of section 206) of the Companies Act, 2013

Mrs. Grace R. Ileora

Mr. Rajesh R. Dcora

Mr. Rajiv R. Deora

Ranu M. Deora HUF

Ranu S. Deora HUF -

Any Contract or transaction with au the above parties for selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying,

property of any kind to be on market value and on arm lengths relationship basis only.

RESOI,VED FURTRER THAT for the purpose of tlving effect to the above, the Boardroommittee be and is
hereby authorized to agree, make, accept, and fimlize au such terms, condition(s), modification(s), and
alteration(s)  as  it  may deem  fit within  the  aforesaid  limits and  the  Bo
authorized to resolve and settle all questions, difficulties or doubts

S

ee  is  also  hereby
th regnd to such
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payment and to finalize and execute all agreements, documents, and writings and to do all acts, deeds, and
things in this comection and incidental as the Board/Committee in its absolute disuetion may deem fit
without being required to seek any further consent or approval of the members or otherwise to the end
andintentthattheyshaubedeemedtohavebeengivenapprovaltheretoexpresslybytheauthorityofthis
resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company or any Committee thereof, be and are
hereby authorized to execute the documents, deeds or writings required to be executed in relation to the
and other incidental documents,  make apphicatious to regulatory and government authorities for the

purposes of obtaining all approvals, consents, permissious and sanctions required ly the Company and to
do an acts and deeds to give effect to this resolution."

NOTES:

1.    Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting

("AGM) is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himselmerself and the proxy need not
be a Member of the Company. The proxy fom, in order to be effective, must be received at the Company's
ReSstered Office not less than 48 hours before the Meeting. Proxies submitted on behalf of companies,
societies, partnership firms,  etc.  must be supported by appropriate resolution/authority,  as applicable,
issued on behalf of the nomination organization. The proxy fom is annexed to this notice.

2.    Members are requested to note that a person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding 50
and holding in aggregrte not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrgivg voting
rights. If a proxy is proposed to be appointed by Members holding more than 10% of the total share capital
of the Company carrying voting rights, then such proxy sham not act as a proxy for any other person or
Members.

3.    In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is hither in the order of name
will be entitled to vote.

4.    Entry to the place of meeting will be regulated by an attendance ship which is anrmnd to this notice. The
Members4roKiesattendingthemeetingarekindlyrequestedtocompletetheendosedattendanceslipand
affix their signature at the place provided thereon and hand it over at the venue of the meeting.

5.    Route map showing directions to reach the venue of the 52nd Annual General meeting is given at the end
of the Notice.

6.    The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 setting out material facts
concerning the business under Item No. 3 and 4 of the Notice is annexed hereto. The Board of Directors
have considered and decided to indude Item No.  3 and 4 as given above,  as Special Business in the
forthcoming AGM as they are umvoidal)le in nature. However, for Item No. 2 and 3 relevant details of
directorseekingre-appointmentbywayofretiretyrotationasrequiredundersEBILODRRcgulatiousand
Secretarial Standards-2 on Genend Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India is
armexed to this Notice.

A
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7.    The Regiv of Directors and fry Managerial personnel and their shareholding, maintained under section
170 of the  Companies Act,  2013  (`the Act)  and the  Register of Contracts  or Arrangements  in which
Directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 Of the Act will be available for inspection ly the
Members at the Annual General Meeting.

8.    In line with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report
2023-24 is being sent though electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are reSstered
with the CompanyDepositories. The Notice conveying the 52nd AGM has been uploaded on the wibsite Of

the Company at www.triochemDroducts.com under `Inveseor Relations' section and may also be accessed
on the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Iinited at www.bseindia.com. The Notice is also available

on the wibsite of CDSL at www.                       com.

9.    Pursuant to section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 10 of the Comprnies Qlanagement and
Administration)   Rules,   2014   and  Regulation  42   of  the  SEBI   Qjsting  Obligations  and  Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Rgivster of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will

remain closed from Thursday, August 15, 2024, to Thursdry, August 22, 2024 doth days inclusive) for the

purposeOf52ndAGM.

a)    For Shares held in electronic fom: To all the beneficial Ormers as at the end of the day on Wednesday,
August 14,  2024, in the list of beneficial owners to be fumishcd by NSDL and Central Depository

Service Qndia) Ifimited (`CDSL) ; and

b)   For Shares held in physical form: To all Members in respect of shares held in physical fom after givng
effect to valid transmission and transposition request lodged with the Company as Of the close of
business house on Wednesdry, August 14, 2024.

10.  Effective April 1, 2019, the Company has stopped accepting any fresh transfer requests for securities held
in physical fom. In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares, Members holding
shares in physical fom are requested to dematerialised their holdings. Members may contact RTA i.e. Iink
Intime India Pvt. Ltd, Address: C-101,  let Floor, 247 Park, L. 8. S. Mang VIlholi Ovest), Mumhai 400 083,

Maharashtra at mt.helodesk@linkintine.co.in for assistance in this regrrds. Members may also refer to
Frequently Asked Qucstious (`FAQs) on the Company's website at
httDs:/tw.triochemoroducts.com^iDloadsAnvestoruelatiousfodtstheouenltv-askedeniesationsrfu-23-
1697pdf

11.  The fomat of the Regiver of Members prescribed by the MCA under the Act requires the Company/
ReSstrar to record ndditioml details Of Members, including their PAN details, email address, hank details
for payment Of dividend, etc. A form for capturing ndditioml details is available on the Company's website
under the section `Investor Relatious' tab `Imustor Service' at httDs:/tw.triochemDroducts.comAnvestor-
relationsAnvestor-relations.asDxnnear= 2022-23 as also amached to this Annual Report. Members holding

shares in physical fom are requested to submit the filled-in form to the Company or to the Registrar in

physical mode as per instnictions mentioned in the fom. Members holding shares in electronic fom are
requested to submit the details to their respective DPs only and not to the

T

or RTA.
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Membersarerequestedtointimatechanges,if any,pertainingtotheirnane,postaladdress,emailnddress,
telephonerfuobilenumbers,PAN,reSsteringofnomination,powerOfattomcyredstration,BankMandate
details,  etc.  to  their  DPs  in  case  the  shares  are  held  in  electronic  fom  and  to  the  ReSstrar  at
mt.helDdesk@linlintime.co.in in case the shares are held in physical fom, quoting their folio number.
Further, Members may note that SEBI has mandated the submission of PAN by every participant in the
securities nrd

12.  Nomimtion Facility: As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for mating nomination is

available for the Members in respect Of the shares held by then. Members holding shares in a sintle name
and who have not yet re¢stered their nomimtion are requested to regivter the same by subndtting Fom
No. SH-13usR-3. If a member desires to cancel the earlier nomination and record fresh nomimtion, he
may submit the same in Fom No. SH-14ASRj. Members holding shares in physical fom are requested to
submit the foms to Mts. Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. the Company's Share ReSstrars and Transfer Agent.
Members holding shares in electronic fom may obtain form from their respective Depository Participant.

13.  Consolidation of Physical Share Certificates: Members holding shares in physical form, in identical order

of names, in more than one foho are requested to send to the Company or RTA, the details Of such fohios
together with the shares certificates for consolidating their holdings in one foho. A consolidated share
certificate will be issued to such Members after mating requisite changes.

14.  To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the Conipany
of any change in address or demise of any Members as soon as possible. Members are also advised not to
leave their dermt account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from
the concerned DP and holdings should be verified from time to time.

15.  Process for regivtering e-mall address to receive this Notice along with credentials for remote e-voting:
a)    Online update on web portal at httDs:/rfjnkintine.co.inAlmailRREmail  Reedster.html

b)    For Physical  shareholders:  please  provide  necessary details  like  Foho  No.,  Name  Of shareholder,
scanned copy Of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (Self-attested scanned copy Of PAN card),

AADIIAR   (Self-attested   scanned   copy   of  Aadhar   Card)   by  email   to   CompanyquA  emall   to
mt.hell)desk@linkintime.co.in

c)    For Demat shareholders: please provide Demat account details (CDSL-16 digiv beneficiary lD or NSDL-
16 digiv DPID+CLID),  Name,  client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement,  PAN  (self-

attested  scanned  copy  of  PAN  card),  AADI.IAR  (Self-attested  scanned  appy  Of Aadhar  Card)  to

CompanyftTA emall to mt. heli]desk@ linkintime.co. in

dy   The  companymTA shall  corordinate  with  CDSL  and  provide  the  loSn  credentials  to  the  above-
mentioned shareholders.

16.  Remote evoting before/during the AGM:

a)    Pursuant to the provisions of Section  108 of the Companies Act,  2
Companies quanagement and Administration) Rules, 2014,

8

with  Rule  20 of the

g Reguhious, as
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may be amended,  and MCA Cireulrs,  the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its
Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the 52nd AGM. For this purpose, the Conipany
hasenteredintoanagreemeutwithCentralDepositoryServicesQndidyLinited(`CDSL)forfacilitatin8
voting through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting's agency. The facility of casting irotes by a

member using remote e-voting system on the date Of the 52nd AGM will be provided ly CDSL.

b)   Members of the Company holding shares either in physical form or in electronic fom as on the cutoff
date of Wednesdy, August 14, 2024, ray cast their vote by remote e-voting. A person who is not a
member as on the Cutoff date should treat this Notice for information purposes only. A person whose
name is recorded in the Register Of Members or in the ReSster of Beneficial Ov`mers mintained ly the
Depusitoriesasontheoutoffdateonlyshallbeentitledtoavailofthefacilrtyofremotee-votingbefore
as vell as during the AGM. Any ron-individual shareholders  or shareholder holding securities  in

physical mode who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after the
dispatch of the Notice and holding shares as on the cutoff date i.e. Wednesday, AugList 14, 2024, ray
obtain the User ID and Password by sending a request at helndesk.erotine@cdslindia.con.

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, who acquire shares Of the Company and
become a Member of the Company after dispatch of the Notice and holding shares as of the cutoff
date i.e. Wednesdy, August 14, 2024, may follow the lqgiv process mentioned below in point 18.

c)    The remote e-voting period commences on Monday, August 19, 2024, at 9.00 a.in. QS'I) and ends on

Wednesdy, August 21, 2024, at 5.00 pin OST). The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL

for voting thereafter. Once the vote on resolution is cast by the Member, the Member shall not be
allowed to change it subsequently.

The voting rights of the Members (for voting through remote e-voting before/during the AGM) shall be

proportion  to their share  of the  paidup equity share  capital  of the  Company as  on the  cutoff
Wednesdy, August 14, 2024.

d)   The remote e-voting mndule during the AGM shall be disabled by CDSL for voting 15 minutes after the

conclusion of the Meeting.

17.  Mrs. Ragivi Chokshi, Practicing Company Secretary (C.P. No.  1436) has been appointed by the Board of

Director of the Company as Scrutiniser for providing facility to the Members of the Company to scn)tinise
the remote e-voting process as well as voting through Pod paper at the Meeting, in a fair and transparmt
manner.

The Scrutiniser shall, immediately alter the conclusion of e-voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast at
the Annual General Meeting, thereafter, uholock the votes cast through e-voting in the presence of two
witnesses not in the employment of the Company.  Scrutinizer sham, submit within the time stipulated
under the applicable laws, a cousolidrted scrLitinizer's report of the total votes cast in favor or against, if
any to the Chaiman or a person authorized by hin in whting who shall counterLsign the same. Thereafter,

q
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'Ilre  Results  declared  along with  the  Scnitinizers  Report  shall  be  placed  on  the  Company's wibsite

www.triochemDroducts.com  under the  section  `Investor Relatious'  tab  `Financial Infomation:  Annual

General Meeting / Report / Retum' and on the website Of CDSL immediately after the result is dechred by
the Chainnan/Authorized person and the results will also be communicated to the Stock Exchange where
the shares of the Company are listed.

18.  THE INTRuc'noNs FOR sllAREIIOIDREs roR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE As UNDER:

a)    The remote remote e-voting period begivs on 19th August 2024 at 09.00 a.in. and ends on 21" August
2024 at 05.00 p.in. During this period shareholders Of the Company, holding shaes either in physical
fom  or  in  dematerialized  form,  as  on  the  cutoff  date  14th  August  2024  may  cast  their  vote
electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSI, for voting thereafter. Shareholders who
have aheady voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to iroee at the meeting venue.

b)    Pursuant to SEBI circular No. SEBIAIO/CFI)roMI)/CIRTro20#42 dated o9.12.2020, under Regulation
44  of Securities  and Exchange Board  Of India  Qjsting Obligations  and  Disclosure  Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in

respect of au shareholders' resolutions. Currently, there are multryle e-voting service providers QSPs)

providing e-voting facility to listed entities in India. This necessitates regivtration on various ESPs and
maintenance Of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been
decidedtoenalhee-votingtoallthedemataccountholders,bywayofasiqtlelogivcredential,through
theirdenataccountsfunebsitesOfDepositories/DepositoryParticipants.Demataccountholderswrould
be al>le to cast their vote without having to regiv[er agrin with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating
seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process.

c)    In terlus of SEBI circular no. SEBIToroFDraMI)roIR/P#020#42 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting
facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in denat mode are
allowed  to  vote  through  their  demat  account  maintained  with  Depositories  and  Depository
Participants.  Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat
accounts in order to access e-voting facility.

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular,  Ipgiv method for e-Voting and joining virtunl meetings for
Individual shareholders holding securities in Dent mode is given below:

Type of
shareholders

togiv Method

Individual
Shareholders
Holding
securities in
Demat mode
with CDSL

1)    Users of who have opted for cDSL's Easi/ Easiest facilfty, can lqgiv through

theirexistinguseridandpassword.Optionwillbemadeavailabletoreach
e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URls for users to
logivtoEasi/Easiestare:httDs:/tweb.cdslindia.comrfuveasithomedochor
www.cdslindia.comandclickonlgiviconandselectNewsystemMyeasi.

2)   After successful logiv the Easi / Easiest user

Menu. On cliclring the e-voting menu, th
to see the e-Voting

le to see histher

'®
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holdings along with links of the respective e-Voting service provider i.e.
CDSL/NSDL/KARW/LINKINTIMEasperinformationprovidedbylssuer

/  Company.  Additionally,  we  are  providing  linlrs  to  e-Voting  Service
Providers,  so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers' site
directly.

3)    If the user is not registered for EasvEasiest, option to reSster is available
at  httDs : /tweb. cdsindia. com/mveasi.Aetistration/ EasiReristration

4)   Altematively,  the  user  can  directly  access  e-Voting page  by providing
Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com

home page.  The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on
registered  Mobile  &  Emall  as  recorded  in  the  Demat  Account.  After
successful authentication, user will be provided linlrs for the respective
ESP where the e-Voting is in progress during or before the AGM.

Individual 1)    If you are aheady regivtered for NSDL IDeAS facflfty, please visit the e-

Shareholders ServiceswebsiteofNSDL.OpenwebbrowserbytypingthefouowingURL:
holding securities htti)s://eservices.usdl.com either on a Persoml Computer or on a mobile.

in demat mode Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the "Beneficial
with NSDL Owner" icon under "Logiv" which is available under `IDeAS' section. A

new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password.
After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services.

Click on "Access to e-Voting" under e-Voting services and you will be al]le

to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider
nape and you will be rerdirected to e-Voting service provider website for
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virfual
meeting & voting during the meeting.

2)    If the user is  not regivtered for IDeAS  e-Services,  option to reSster is
available at httDs://eservices.usdl.com. Select "ReSster Online for IDCAS
"Portal or chick at

htti]s://eservices.usdl.comrseourewebAldeasDirectRe£.iso

3)   Visit the  e-Voting website  of NSDL.  Open web  browser ly typing the
fonowing  URL:   httDs:/tw.erotin£.usdL.com/  either   on   a  Persoml
Computer or on a mobile.  Once the home page of e-Voting system is
launched,   dick   on   the   icon   "I.ogiv"   which   is   available   under
`ShareholderAlember' section. A new screen will open. You will have to

enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digiv demat account number hold
with  NSDL),  Password/OTP  and  a Verification  Cede  as  shown  on  the
screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company
name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-
Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting perind or joining virtunl meeting & voting during the meeting.

Individual You can also loSn using the logiv credentials of your demat account throuch
Shareholdersaoldingsecurities e-voting froflrty.yourDepositorypancipantrestteredwithNSTg5UaoonceyoudickAftersuccessfullogiv,youwillbeal]letosee

•'                           i:(¥J          a,Qo3J
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in demat mnde) on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDI/CDSL Depository site after
logiv throuch successful  authentication,  wherein you  can  see  e-Voting feature.  Click on
their Depository company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected
Participants to e-Voting service provider's website for casting your vote during the remote

e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are umble to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User
ID and Forget Password option available at ahovementioned website.

HelpdeskforlndividualShareholdersholdingsecuritiesindematmndeforanytechnicalissuesrelated
to logiv through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Logiv type Helpdesk detads

Individual Shareholders Members  facing  any  technical  issue  in  loSn  can  contact  CDSL
holding securities in Demat helpdesk by sending a request at helodesk.evotin£@cdslindia.com
mnde with CDSL or contact at 022- 23058738 and 22-23058542J£3.

Individual Shareholders Members  facing  any  technical  issue  in  loSn  can  contact  NSDL
holding securities in Demat helpdesk by sending a request at evotine@usdl.co.in or
mode with NSDL Call at ton free no.: 18001020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

®   Ipgiv  method  for  e-Voting  for  shareholders   other  than  individual  shareholders  &  physical
shareholdus.
1)    The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotinchdia.com
2)    Click on "Shareholders" module.

3)    Now enteryour user ID
a.     For CDSL: 16 diSts beneficiary ID,

b.    For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits client ID,

c.    Shareholders holding shares in physical Form should enter Foho Number re¢stered with the
Company.            OR

Alternativdy,   if  you  are  regivtered  for  CDSL's  EASITASIEST  e-services,  you  can  lqgin  at

httos:/4vww.cdslindia.comfromlpgiv-Myeasiusingyourlqgivcredentials.Onceyousuccessfully
log-in to CDSL's EAsluslEST e-services, click on e-Voting option and proceed directly to cast

your vote electronically.
4)    Nee enter the Image Vchfication as diaplayed and Click on lpSn.
5)    If you are holding shares in dermt form and had lqgged on to www.evotindndia.com and voted

on an ealier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.
6)    If you are a firsttime user follow the steps given below:

\Q-
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Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/inmAryvy format) as

Bank lietails recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to logiv.
OR •     Ifhoth the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please
Date  of Birth enter the member id / foho number in the Dividend Back details field as

@08) mentioned in instruction (v).

7)    After entering these details appropriately, click on "SUBMIT" tal].
8)    Shareholders holding shares  in physical fom will then directly reach the Company selection

screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach `Passwrord Creation'
menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their logiv passwrord in the new password
field.  Kindly note  that this  password  is to be  also used by the  demat holders for voting for
resolutions Of any other company on which they are ehgivle to vote, provided that conipany opts
for e-voting throuch CDSL platfom. It is strongly recommended not to share your pass"rord with
any other person and take umost care to keep your passwrord confidential.

9)    For shareholders holding shares in physical fom, the details can be used only for e-voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.

10)  Click on the EVSN for TRIOCIIEM PRODUCTS IIMIThD on which you choose to vote.

11)  On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the sane the option
"YESINO" for voting.  Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you

assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.
12)  Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FIIE IINK" if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

13)Afterselectingtheresolution,youhavedecidedtoveteon,clickon"SUBMIT.Aconfirmationbor
will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK", else to change your vote, click

on "CANCEL" and accordinchr modify your vote.

14)  Once you "CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
15) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on "Clidc here to print" option on the voting

Page.
16) If a demat account holder has forgotten the lqgiv password, then Enter the User ID and the irmge

verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompred ly the system.
17) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL's mobile app in-Voting. The in-voting app can be

downloadedfromGootleplaystore.Appleandwindowsphoneuserscandownloadtheappfrom
the App Store and the Windows Phone Store respectively.

e)   Facility for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians - Remote Voting
1)    Non-Individual  shareholders  (i.e.  other  than  Individuals,  IIUF,  NRI  etc.)  and  Custodians  are

required to log on to www.erotinrindia.com and re¢ster themselves in the "Coporates" module.
2)   A scanned copy of the Re9stration Fom bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be

emalled to helDdesk. evotin£@ cdslindia.com.

3)   After receiving the lQgiv details a Conipliance User should be created using the admin logiv and

password. The Compliance User wrould be able to link the account for which they wish to veee on.
4)   The list of accounts linked in the logiv should be mailed to helpdesk.ecoting@cdslindia.com and

on approval Of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

5)   A scanned capy Of the Board Resolution and Pover Of Attorney apA) which they have issued in
favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in
to verify the same.                                                                                 ,#

\e)
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6)   Alternatrty,    Non   Individual   shareholders   are   required   to   send   the   relevant   Board
Resolution/Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized
signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinjzer and to the Company at the email address
investor@triochemi]roducts.com, if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in
the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

19. INSTRuc'rloNs roR slIARElroIDERs E-vO'rING DURING hmErlNG ARE As t7NDER:
a)    The procedure e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instnictious mentioned above for Remote

e-voting.

b)   Shareholders who have voted throuch Remote e-voting will be eligivle to attend the meeting. IIowever,
they will not be eligivle to vote at the AGM

20. pROcEss  roR  THOsE  slIAREIIOIDERs  wllosE  EMAIL  ADDREssESAloBmE  NO.  ARE  Nor
REGlsTERED wrrH THE cOMPANyoEpOsITORIEs roR OBTAINING IOGIN cREDENTIArs roR E-
vO'rlNG roR mE REsOLUTloNs prorosED IN TIIIs NOTlcE:
a)    For Physical shareholders - please provide  necessary details like Fcho No.,  Name Of shareholder,

scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card),
AADIIAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by emall to CompanyquA email Id.

b)    For Demat shareholders -please provide Demat account details (CDSL-16 digiv beneficiary H) or NSDL-
16 digiv DPH)  +  CLID), Name, client niaster or copy of Consoridated Account statement, PAN (self-

attested  scanned  copy  of  PAN  card),  AADIIAR  (self-attested  scanned  capy  Of Aadhar  Card)  to

ConpanyurA emal Id.

c)    For Individual Dermt shareholders - Please update your emall id & mobile no. with your respective
Depository Pardcipant @P) which is nrmdatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through
Depository

21. For assistance / queries for E-voting etc;
a)    If you have any queries or issues regrrding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-voting System,

you can whte an email to helndesk.evotine@cdslindia.com or comact at 022- 23058738 and 022-
23058542/43.

b)   All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be address to Mr. Ralresh
Dalvi, Mamger,  (CDSL),  Central Depository Services  Qndidy  linited, A Wing,  25d] Floor, Marathon
Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M /oshi Mane, lower Panel a3ast), Mumhai -400013 or send an

emall to helDdesk.ecotin2@cdsindia.com or call on 022-2358542/43.

22. GENERAI. INSTRucrloNs
a)    Members  may  avail  dematerialization  facility  by  opening  Demt  Accounts  with  the  Depository

Participants of wither Natioml Securities Depository Limited or Central Depository Services Qndidy

Limited and get the equity share certificate held by them dematerialized.
is INE331E01013

'\
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b)    Members may also note that an electronic copy Of the 52nd Annual Report including Notice along with
attendance    slip    and    proxy    fom    will    be    avallal]le    on    the    Company's    website    at
www.triochemDroducts.com  Even  after redetering for e<ommunication,  Members  are  entitled to
receive such communication in physical fom, upon mating such a request for the same hue of cost.
For any communication, the shareholders may also send their request to the Company's investor E-
mail Id : investor@triochemDroducts. com

ByorderOftheBoardOfDirectors
For Triochem Products linited

fuftBu` i
Grace R. Drm

Director
DIN: 00312080

CIN No.: L24249rmig72pLcol5544

Place: Munbai; Dated: 28th May 2024

Regiv Office:
4th Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P. M. Road, Fort, Mumbai: 400 001

Emall : investor@ triochemDroducts. com :

Website : www. triochemDroducts. com

Phone No.: 9122 22663150.

Fax No.: 9122 22024657

\r

-I-
Ranu S. Dtora

lhaor
DIN: 00312369
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ArdLnraue to Notice

Item No.2

PROFIIE  OF  DIRECTORs  SEEENG AproINTRENT / iRE.AppOII`ITMENT AT  TIIE ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI aisting Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
and pursuant to clause 1.2. 5 of the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) the details of the Directors
seeking appointmenvre-appointment at the 52nd Annual General Meeting is furnished below:

Name Of Director Mrs. Grace Ramu Deora

Director Identification Number 00312080

Desigmtion Non-Executive Director

Age 76 Years

Qualification BA
Expertise Business   environment   and   vast   experience   in   general

mamgement  and  leadership,  etc.  has  been  assets  to  the
Company.

Date  of first  appointment  in  the  cument 30th March 2015

designation

Shareholding  in  the  Company  as  on  31st 36,000
March, 2024

Directorships and Committee memberships Nfl

held  in  other companies  as  on  31St March

2024 Qrduding Private Companies)
Relationships  between  Directors  and  Key Mr. Ranu S. Deora @IN 00312369) quusband)

Managerial Persormel Mr. Rajesh R. Deora @IN 00312316) (Son)

No. of Board Meetings attended during the 4of4
firmcial year 2023-24.

Tens and conditions of re-appointment As  per  the  resolution  passed  by  the  Shareholders  of the
Company on the 49th Annual General Meeting held on 25th

September 2021, Mrs. Grace Ranu Deora has been appointed
as a Non-Executive Directors, lial)le to retire by rotation.

Details of proposed remuneration Nil

The  Board  of Directors  proposed  the  re-appointment of Mrs.  Grace  Ranu  Deora as  Non-ELecutive  Non-
Independent Director on the Board of Directors of the Company and recommends the resolution as set out at
Item no. 2 of the Notice and explanatory statement for the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting.

Except Mrs. Grace R. Deora, Mr. Ramu S. Deora and Mr. Rajesh R Deora and their relatives, no other Director

or  Key  Managerial  Persomel  of  the  Company  or  their  relatives  are  concerned  or  interested  in  the
aforementioned resolution for re-appointment of Mrs. Grace R. Deora as a Non-Executive Non-Independent
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Amexure to Nonce
Explanatory Statenent pursuant to Section 102 Of the Companies Act, 2013

Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (`the act'), the fouowing Explanatory Statement sets out

all material facts relating to the Business mentioned under Item no. 3 of the accompapring Notice dated 28th
May 2024.

Item No. 3

Mrs. Grace Ramu Deora, age 76, is the Non-Executive Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation. In

accordance with Regulation 17(1A) of the SEBI qisting Obligrtious and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, no histed entity sham appoint a person or continue the directorship of any person as a Non-ELecutive
Director who has attained the age of seventy-five years after April 1, 2019 shall be appointed/reappointed as a
nomexecutive  director unless  a special resolution is  passed to that effect in which case the aplamtory
statement annexed to the Notice for such motion shall indicate the justification for appointing such a person.

Mrs. Grace Ranu Deora, Non-Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company has exceeded the age of

75 years and is retiring by rotation at this Annual General Meeting.

The relevant details of Mrs. Grace Ranu Deora seeking continuation of his directorship subject to approval by
the shareholders by a special resolution under Item No. 3 of the Notice, as required under RegLilation 36(3) of
the Listing RegLilatious read with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant accounting
standards are given below:

1)    Mrs. Grace Ranu Deora a)IN: cO312080) was appointed as Non-Independent Non-Ex]eoutive Director at

the 49d] Annual General Meeting held on 25th September 2021, and she is liable to retire by rotation.

2)   As per Regulation  17(1A) of the SEBI  qisting Regulations), which canie into effect from April  1,  2019

provides that no listed entity shall appoint a person or continue the directorship of any person as a non-
executive director who has attained the age of seventy five years unless a special resolution is passed to
that effect in which case the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such motion shall indicate
the justification for appointing such a person.

3)   Mrs. Grace Ramu Deora, aged 76 years, has deep knowledge and experience in a business environment
and vast experience in general management and leadership, etc. She was also associated in various other
companies,  spanning  over  45  years,  Mrs.  Grace  Deora  has  spent  40 years  in  the  field  of industrial
development and management.

4)    His brief profile is given below:
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Expertise Business  environment  and  vast  experience  in  grrrml
management and leadership, etc. has been assets to the
Company.

Date of first appointment in the current 30th Maech 2015

designation
ShareholdingintheCompanyason31St 36,OcO

March, 2024

Directorships         and         Committee Nil

memberships held in other companies
as   on   3f  March   2024   qcluding
Private Companies)

Relationships  between  Directors  and Mr. Ranu S. Deon OIN 00312369) quusband)

Key Managerial Persomel Mr. Rajesh R. Deora @IN 00312316) (Son)

No. of Board Meetings attended during 4of4

the firmcial year 2023-24.

Temis      and      conditions      of     re- As per the resolution passed by the Shareholders of the

appointment Companyonthe49thAnnualGeneralMeetingheldon25th

September   2021,   Mrs.   Grace   Ramu  Deora  has  been

appointed as a Non-Executive Directors, liable to retire by
rotation.

Details of proposed remuneration Nil

5)   The Board of Directors is of the opinion that Mrs. Grace Ramu Deora has been an integral part of the Board,
has provided valuable insichts to the Company and possesses relevant expertise and deep knowledge and
experience  in  administration,  industrial  development  &  management,  strategy  leadership,  Fimnce,
Investment, etc. His guidance in the past has been notable and supportive to the Company in dealing with
complex matters. Accordingiv, it is felt that his association as nonexeoutive director will be beneficial and
inthebestinterestoftheCompany.InlinewiththeprovisiousofSEBIQjstingRegulatious),yourdirectors
recommend his appointment as Non-Independent Non-Executive Director at the  52nd Annual General
Meeting by way of Special resolution and that he is liable to retire by rotation.

6)   The Board of Directors accordingiv recommends the Special Resolution as mentioned at item no. 3 of this
Notice for approval of the Members of the Company.

Except Mrs. Grace R. Deora, Mr. Ranu S. Deora and Mr. Rajesh R. Deora and their relatives, no other Director

or  Key  Managerial  Personnel  of  the  Company  or  their  relatives  are  concerned  or  interested  in  the
aforementioned resolution for re-appointment of Mrs. Grace R. Deora as a Non-Executive Non-Independent
Director of the Company, expect to extent of their shareholding, if any, in the Company.

Item no. 4

Pursuant to Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"), rend with Rule 15 of the Companies queetings

of Board and its Powers)  Rules,  2014 the Company is required to obtain co

approval of the members by Special Resolution in case certain Related Party

i Mumbai

e Board and prior
d such sun as
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is specified in the Rules. The aforesaid provisions are not apphicable in respect to transactions entered into ly
the Company in the ordinary course of business on am's length basis. Though the Company always does the
business with its related parties at am length and in ordinary course of business but there may be some
transactions done in the interest of the Company and for which your approval is required under the provisions
of the Act.

The proposal outlined above is in the interest of the Company and the Board recommends the resolution
setting out in accompanying Notice as Special Resolution.

None of the Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company is concerned or interested in the said
resolution  expect  to  extent  of their  shareholding  in  the  company  or  any  other  interest  as  Director  or
shareholder or partner or otherwise in such related party entity, if any.

The Board recommends this Resolution for your Approval.

ByorderoftheBoardofDirectors
For Triorhem Products Ihited

#Rufrotra--9-_T=I-r
DIN: 00312080

CIN No.: L24249MH1972PLC015544

Place: Mumbai; Dated: 28th May 2024

Regiv Office:
4th Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P. M. Road, Fort, Mumhai: 400 001

Emall : investor@ triochemDroducts. com :

Wchsite : www. triochemDroducts. com
Phone No.: 91 22 22663150

Fax No.: 91 22 22024657

Y}

Director
DIN: 00312369
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Registered Office: 4th Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir. P. M. Road, Fort,

Mumbai, Mcharashtra, PIN: 400001. Telephone: 00 91 (22) 2266 3150
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Fax: 00 91 (22) 22202 4657 E-mail: info@aml)hrav.com

Website: www.triochemi]roducts.com Corporate Identity Number: L24249MH 1972PLC015544

BOARD'S REPORT & MANAGEMEI`IT DISCUSSION AND ANAL;YSIS

Dun Mendrers,

Your directors have gate pleasure in presenting the 52nd Annual Report together with the Audited Financial

Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

1.    RESULTS OF OUR OPERATION AND STATE OF AFFAIRS

a)   Financial Higmghts
The audited firLancial statement of the Company as on March 31, 2024, are prepared in accordance with

the  relevant  applical)le  IND  AS  and  Regulation  33  of the  SEBI  Qjsting  Obligation  and  Disclosure

Requirements)  Regulation  2015  ("Listing  Regulations)  and  provisions  of the  Companies Act,  2013

("Act,.

IAmount in Rs. Ialchs exceDt EPS1

Particulars For the Year ended

March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Revenue from Operation

Other Income 102.96 27.75

Total Income 102.96 27.75

Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization (8.38) (106.49)
Less: Finance Cost

Less: Depreciation and Amortization Expense 8.97 10.50

Profit before exceptional items and tax (17.35) (116.99)
Exceptional Items (115.65)

Profit Before Tax (133.00) (116.99)
Less: Tax Expense (31.67) (28.48)
Profit for the period from continuing operations (101.33) (88.51)
Profit before tax from discounted operations

Tax expense of discontinued operations
Profit for the period from discontinued operations . •

Profit for the period (101.33) (88.51)
Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) 403.63 (56.43)
Total Comprehensive Income ^J,.       3.63 (56.43)
Opening balance in Retained Eandngs                                    #& i

_ _ -  '   j3>3k4 1
1,102.92

Closing balance in Retained Earnings                                       `` €-/ M mba9#..#9 I,014.41
i,Jj!          -i I

*
Zl
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* Previous year's figure has been recast / restated. The above figures are extracted from the audited

standalone financial statenients of the Company as per the India Accounting Standrrds  quD AS).
Equity shares are at par value of Rs.10 per share.

b)   Onerviow of coniparty's Financial Perfomance and State of Affiirs:
During the fimncial year 2023-24, revenue from operation is Rs. Nfl. The loss after tax for the current

year is Rs.101.32 lakhs against loss of Rs.88.51 lalchs in the previous year.

The Company has temporarily reduced activity after the Covid-19 pandemic. The business requires

personal presentation & relationship building has taken a tremendous hit & is unlikely to see any
possibility of rewh7al in the inmediate futLire, business from the regular customers is shrinlL we de not
see significant improvement. Therefore, the Company has temporarily reduced activities till a clearer

picture emerges.

TheCompanyistakingallnecessarymeasuresintemsofmitigrtingtheimpactofthechallengrsbeing
faced in the business. The Company is working towards being resilient in order to sail through the
current  situation.  It  is  fooused  on  controlling  the  fixed  costs,  maintaining  liquidity  and  closely
monitoringthesupplychaintoensurethatthemanufacturingfaroiLities¢cnestartsmoothly.Themarket

is expected to be stable dLiring the end of FY2024-25, with the expectation of an improunent in the
market conditions during the year, the Company will endeavor to perfom better than last year.

As regards to infrastructure, Your Company's  head office  and factory are adequaely equipped to

provide complete support to the customer. Internal control systems have been well estabhished and
cost consciousness in factory operation will lead to improved profitability in the long run.

The Company has sufficient liquidity to meet its financial obligrtions, and we ae also mating regLilar

payments to our suppliers, employees, and other concerned persons. The hquidity position of the
company is in a comfortable zone. Your Directors are confident that the conipany will improve the

perfomance in the current year

c)   Projects And Expansion plans
The Company assesses the future infrastructure requirements and continuously invests in the same on
a needy basis. During the financial year under review the Company has not spent any aJnount towards
capital eprditue.

d)   "wldend
Since there is loss, the directors are unable to recommend any dividend for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024. The Dividend Distribution Policy of the Company is set out as "Anncrmre A" and the

same is posted on the Company's website at following the link:
httus:/4vww.triochemDroducts.com^]i]loadsAnvestor-relationsfodts/dividendrdistributionoolicv-23-
1720._ndf

e)   Investor Education and protection Fund (IEPF)

2J|
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Yourcompanydidnothaveanyfundskyingunpaldorunclaimedforaperiodofsevenyears.Therefore,
there were no funds which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund

¢EPF).

0    Transfer to Rcscrves
The Board does not propose to transfer any amount to general reserve. The Board of Directors have

decided to adjust the entire amount of loss for FY 2023-24 in the profit and loss account.

g)   bisurance
All properties and insurable interests of the Company including building, plant and machinery and
stork have been fully insured.

h)   Particulars of toans, Guarantees or Investments
During the year under review, the Company has made investment as on March 31, 2024, are set out in

Notes to the Financial Statements of the Company. Further, the Company has not given any loans or
corporate guarantee or provided any security covered under the provisions of section  186 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies queetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014.

i)    Particulars of contracts or Arrangements Made with Related parties
Prior omnibus approval is obtained for related party transactions which are of repetitive nature and
entered in the ordimry course of business and on an am's length basis. All routed party transactions
are placed before the Audit Committee for review and approval.

All Related Party Transactions entered during the year were in Ordinary Couse of the Business and at
Arm's Ifngth basis. No material related party transactions were entered during the Fimncial Year by

your Company. Accordingiv, no disclosure is made in respect of related party transactions, as reqLiired
under section 134(3) th) of the Act in Fom AOC-2 is not apphicable. Members may refer to note no. 31
of the financial statements which set out related party disclosures pursuant to IND AS-24.

j)    Material Changes and Commifroents Affecting Financial Position Between The End of The
Financial Year and Date of the Report
There are no material changes and commitments which affect the financial position of the Company

that have occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate and
the date of this report i.e. between 31se March 2024 to 28th May 2024.

k)   Deposits
The Company has not accepted any deposits from the pubhic/members during the year under review
within  the  meaning  of sections  73  and  74  of the  Companies Act,  2013  read  together with  the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, and accordingiv, no amount on account of principal
or interest on public deposits was outstanding as on 31st March 2024.

I)    Insolvency and Bankniptcy code, 2016
During the year under review, no application was made, or any proceeding was pending under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016).

in)  One Time Settlement with Bank / Finandal lnstifutlous
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During the year under review, no one time settlement was done with any of the Banks or Fimncial
Institution.

n)   Subsidiaries, Joint ventures & Associate
The  Company does  not have  any subsidiaries,  joint ventures,  or associated  companies,  therefore
disclosures  in  Fom AOC-1  are  not  provided  in this  report.  The  policy for detemining Material
SubsidiariesinterusofRegulation16(1)(c)oftheListingRegulationisnotapplicabletothecompany.
The Company is also not a subsidiary of any other company

o)   Change in The Nature of Business
There were no change in the nature of business of the Company during the fimncial year.

2.    CAPITAL STRuCTURE OF THE coMPAI`nr

a)   Authorized share capital
The Authorized Share Capital of the Company as at March 31, 2024 was Rs.25,00,000/- Qs. Twenty-Five

lckh Only) divided into 2,50,000 (Iwh lckh Fifty Thousand) Equity shares of Rs.10/-each.

b)   Issued, Subscribed & Paidrip Share Capital
The Paidup Equity share capital as at March 31,  2024 was Rs.24,50,000/-  Qs. Twerty-Four lckh Fifty

Thousand only) divided into 2,45,000 (Itro hath Forty-Five Thousandy Equity shares having face value

of Rs.10/- each fully paid up. There was no change in the paid-up share capital Of the Company during

the financial year 2023-2024.

During the year under review, the Company has not issued any shares with differential voting rights nor

granted any stock neither options nor sweat equity.

3.    MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANAIYSIS

a)   hdustry stnicture and Development
(1)  Global Phama Industry Redow

The  world  pharmaceutical  industry  is  one  of the  top  perfoming  industries  tlobally.  New
medications  are  constantly being developed,  approved  and  marketed,  resulting in sisnificant
market growih. Other market growih drivers inelude the agivg population, as seniors use more
medicines per capita and there is a rise in the prevalence and treatment of chronic diseases. The
revenue in this sector is anticipated to cainibit an annual growth rate (CAGR 2024-202ey Of 6.19%,

resulting in a market volume of US$ 1,470.00bn by 2028.
httos:/twww.statista.com/outlcokthmofoharmaceuticalsfrotldwide

(2)  Indian Phama hdustry Rcviow
The Indian pharmaceutical industry ranlrs third tlobally in phamaceutical production by volume
and is known for its generic medicines and lowcost vaccines. India is one of the biggest suppliers
of lowLcost vaccines  in the whd.  Major segments  of Indian Phamaceutical Industry include

generic  drugs,  OTC  medicines,  bulk  drugs,  vaccines,   con
biosimilars  and  biologivs.  Because  of the  low price  and

preferred worldwide, making it "phamacy of the world"
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The phamaceutical industry in India is currently valued at $50 Bn. India is a major aporter of
Pharmaceuticals, with over 200 + countries served by Indian phama aports. India supplies over
50% of Affica's requirement for genetics,  ~40% of generic demand in the US and ~25% of all
medicine in the UK India also accounts for ~60% of global vaccine demand, and is a leading
supplier  Of  DPT,  BCG  and  Measles  vaccines.  70%  of WHO's  vaccines  (as  per  the  essential

Immunization schedule) are sourced from India.

httt)s:/tw.investindia.sov.intsectorfohamiaceuticals

The Indian phamaceutical industry is pnpjected to grow at a CAGR of over 10% to reach a size of

US$ 130 bmon by 20sO.

htti]s:/tw.ibef.ore/industrwhharmaceutical-india

(3)  Key Trends in the Pharma industry
Changivg Government  and  Reguhory landscape:  Tightening of pchcy and  faster regLilatory

approvals are increasing competition, requiring companies to be rigivt `first time'. With increased
vigilance from regulators, a focus on qualrty assurance and control has become even more critical.

Shifting  Industry  Dynamics:   shift  from  "Make  in  India"   to  "Develop  in  India",   increased

tlobaljzation,  a  focus  on  value  addition  versus  pricing,  and  change  from  a  competitive  to
collaborative mindm

EmergenceofNewGoro-MarketMndels:mamgivgmultiplechannelsandconsumersisbecoming
increasingly critical. The rising role of phamacists vs. physicians, and patient enipowrment are
drivers.

Dicttal:  Backbone of Transformation To remain competitive,  companies need to demonstrate

agivity in responding to the chanang relationship dynamics triggcred by now digival players and
invest in data and analytics capabilities.

(4) Active Phamaceutical Ingredient
The  Active   Pharmaceutical  Ingredient   (APD   is   the  vital,   biologically  active   compound   in

phamaceutical products driving therapeutic effects. Whether chemically synthesized or sourced
from nature, Apls play a pivotal role tlobally in the pharmaceutical supply chain, serving as the
foundation for drug development and manufacturing. As the phamaceutical industry cvohes
towards outting€dge therapeutics and innovative delivery systems, the demand for sophisticated
Apls is Lfty to increase.

(5)  Global Apt Muha
The tlobal active phamaceutical ingredients market size was estimated at USD 237.47 billion in
2023 and is expected to grow at a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) Of 5.75% from 2024 to

2030.  Advancements  in Active  Phamaceutical  Ingredient  (Apt)  manufacturing,  gromh  of the
biophamaceutical sector, and an increase in geriatric popultion are among the lay drivers Of API
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Favourable government policies for Apt production, along with changes in geopolitical situations,
are boosting market growh. The API market is undergoing immense changes due to supply chain
disruption by COVID-19. Countries such as India are being prefened over China for the export of
API owing to geopolitical situations and the demand to reduce dependence on China for API

products.  Furthermore,  governments  of many  countries  have  fomulated  plans  and granted
incentives to promote the prodrction of API.

(6)  hdian API Matled
The India active pharmaceutical ingredients market size was estimated at USD  18.29 billion in

2023 and is expected to grow at a CAGR of 7.7% from 2024 to 20sO.

httos:/tw.£randvicwresearch.comAndustrv-analvsisthdia-activerohamaceutical-inqredients-
macketTreDort

The key factors boosting the growih of the active phamaceutical ingredients market are the rising
drug   research,   rapid   technolQgival   advancements   and   development   activities   for   drug
manufacturing,   the   increasing   importance   of   genetics,   and   the   increasing   uptake   of
biopharmaceuticals. However, the unfavourable drug price control policies across various nations
and hick manufacturing costs are expected to hinder the macket's growh.

(7)  Business Cberviow
Triochem  Products  Limited  has  been  manufacturing  and  providing  Active  Phamaceutical
Ingredients (Apt) since its inception in 1972. The Company has temporarily reduced activity after

the Covid-19 pandemic till a dearer picture emerges.

The Company is headquartered in Mumbal, and it has its manufacturing facility at Ambemath in
Maharashtra. The facility has au the required certificatious from Indian authorities.

b)   Opportunities, Threats, Outlook, Rislrs and Concerns

(1)  Opportunities
The Indian pharmaceutical industry rants third tlobally in phamaceutical production by volume
and is knorm for its generic medicines and lowLcost vaccines. India is one of the biggest suppliers

of lowLcost vaccines in the world. The company is well placed to grow as the demand for the

product grows with the fact that this product is the fundamental product.

(2)  Threats & Conceus
There is significant competition from other Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients (APD manufamirers

hath within India and foreign, however the markets and volumes are quite large. Further, the

govemment's actions towards price controls on pharmaceutical products micht affect the price of
the  products  in  the  coming  times.  The  ongoing geopomcal  crises  have  led  to  supply chain
disruptions and rising cost Of raw materials. Your company is also prone to these nearfem risks.

The pandemic's impact on the API market. The API market encountered significant challenges

during the  recent tlobal  health  crisis.  Disruptions  in worldwide  supply chains  and  logistical
hurdles, including transportation restrictions and delays, im
materials and the distribution of finished forms.  Moreover,

% Mumbai

acquisition of raw
ory mcasus and



TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
TR,o
CHEM

increasedscrutinyofthephamaceuticalsupplychalnintroducedcomplexities,resultingindelays
in production and approwl processes. These collective challenges not only impacted production
capacity but also highligived the need for resilience and adaptabilrty in the Apt market, but there
are vulnerabhities due to the regivnal dominance and lack of tlobal spread.

(3) St-8ths
The company with existing reSstratious and regulatory approvals has an cstabhished customer

base in India and in various foreign countries that will enable it to further enhance their growl.

(4)  Outlook
The  rise  in  the  aging  population  is  one  of  the  major  drivers  of  the  pharmaceutical  API
manufacturing market. As the aging population increases, the demand for phamaceutical drugs
also increases. API acts as a specialty drug in these medicines to cure a particular disease.  For

instance, in October 2022, according to an ar[ide shared by WHO, a Switzehand-based specialized
agency of the United Nations responsible for international pubhic health, 80% of senior citizens
will reside in low and middle-income nations by 2050.

The rise in chronic conditions is expected to propel the pharmaceutical API manufacturing market

going forward.  Chronic conditions,  also known as chronic diseases,  refer to long-ten health
conditions that last for extended periods, often for a person's entire life, and typically cannot be
cured completely. The quality, effectiveness, and safety of the medication depend largely on the
API used. Pharmaceutical Apt manufacturing helps to produce essential medications for managivg

chronic diseases. Or instance, in 2023, according to the National hibrary of Medicine, a US-based

government medical hbrary, by 2035, nearly 36% of US adults aged 50 and older are projected to
have at least one chronic condition, with this number anticipated to rise to almost 48% by 2050.
Therefore, the rise in chronic conditions is driving the phamaceutical API manufacturing marfet.

The outlook is positive for the company considering its product mix, market conditions and the
expectedincreaseinthedemandofproduct.ThefocusistooperatewiththehichestEnvironment,
Health  and  Safety  standards,  while  improving  efficiencies,  unit  costs  and  ensuring business
continuity.

c)   Internal control systems and Their Adequacy
The Company's defined orgrnizational structure, docunented pchcy gLiidelines and adequate internal
controls  ensure  efficiency  of operations,  compliance  with  internal  pohicies,  applical]le  laws  and
regulations, protection of resources and assets and accurate reporting of fimndal transactions. The
Company continuously upgrades these systems in line with best available practices.

d)   Human Resources
Human resources continue to be one of the critical assets of the organization. Attracting relevant talent

remains the Company's key focus. It pays special attention to training, welfare and safety of its people,
strengthe ming human capabhities.

e)   Investor Relations and Engagement

2}
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Investor Relations aR) is playing an increasinedr important role in todry's wlatile world in enabhng
companies to manage investor expectations. The objectives of Company's investor relations activities
are to boost confidence and develop a long-term rehatiouship of trust with stakeholders including
Shareholders, Investors & Analysts, through true and fair disclosure of infomation. To pursue these
objectives at all times, your Company continuously disdoses necessary information.

0    Segment wise or Products wise Performance; Financial Perfomance and Ratios
The Company is a sintle segment Company engaged in the business of Bulk Drugs. During the year
under review,  due to  temporarily reduced activity due to the  impact of Covid-19 pandemic.  The
revenue from operation is Rs. Nfl because of temporarily reduce in manufacturing activities. A detailed
financial overview of the Company for the FY 2023-2024 is available in the first page of the Board's

Report forming part of this Annual Repoft.

8)   rty Fimcial ratio
During the year under review, there has been no significant change in return on net worth and key
financial ratios as compared to the immediately previous financial year except the current ratio.

All the key financial ratios have been disclosed in notes to financial statement.

Reasons where variance is more than 25% The Current ratio has increase due to the amount invested

into Fixed Deposit in previous year was withdrawn and reinvested into non{urrent invesmcnts.

h)   Cautionary statonent
The management discussion and analysis report contain statements which are forward-looking based
on  assumptions.  Actual  results  may differ from  those  expressed  or inplied  due  to  the  risk and
uncertainties which have been detailed in this report. Several factors as listed in this report could make
significant difference to the Company's operations. Investors, therefore, are requested to rake their
own independent judgments and seek professional advice before taking any investment decisions.

4.    CORPORATE COVEENANCE

a)   Report on corporate Governance
In  terms  of Regulation  15(2)  of Securities  and  Exchange  Board of India  aisting Obhgrtious  and
Disclosure  Requirements)   Regulations,   2015,   states  that,  The  Compliance  with  the  corporate

governance provisions as specified in regulation 17,  [17A,I  18,19, 20, 21,22, 23, 24, 24A, 25, 26, 27
and clauses a) to (i) [and (t)I of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule
V sham not apply, to histed entities having paid up equity share capital not exceeding rupees ten crore

and net worth not exceeding rupees twenty five crone, as on the last dry of the previous fimncial year.
We wish to inform you that in respect of our Company as on the last audited balance sheet as at 31ST
March 2024 paid up equity capital of the company is Rs.24.50 lakh which is less than ten crones and

net worth Rs.14.62  Crore which is less than rupees twenty-five crone, which  is within the limit as

prescribed in Regulation 15(2) of SEBI qoDR) Regulations, 2015.

Hence,  due to apphcabflity of Regulation  15(2)  of Securities and Ex

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the

1S
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not applicable to us. Further, when the provision of the said regulation becomes applicable to the
Company at a later date, the same shall be comphied with, within six months from the drte on which
the provisions become applical]le to the Company.

b)   Corporate social Respousibihity
The  provisions  of  Companies  Act,  2013  regarding  Corporate  Social  Respousibflity  shall  not  be

applicable  to  companies  having net worth  not  exceeding  Rs.500  crone  or  more  or turnover not
exceeding Rs.1,OcO crore or net profit not exceeding Rs.5 crore or more during any fimncial year, as
on the last day of the previous financial year. In this comection, we wish to infom you that in respect
of our Company as on the last audited balance sheet as at 31st March 2023 neither the net wonh
exceeds Rs.500 crones or turnover exceeds Rs.1,000 crone or net profit exceeding Rs.5 crore. Hence,

the  provisions  of Companies  Act,  2013  regarding  Corporate  Social  Respousibflity would  not  be

applicable.

c)   Directors and Hey Managerial personnel

(1)  Composition of the Board of Directors
The Board received a dechration from all the directors under section 164 and other applicable

provisions,  if any,  of the  Companies Act,  2013  that  none  of the  directors  of the company is
disqualified under the provision of the Companies Act,  2013  (`Act') or under the SEBI ajsting

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The  Company's  policy  is  to  have  an  appropriate  blend  of  nonexeoutive  and  independent
directors, to maintain the independence of the Board functions of governance and management.
No changes have taken place in the Composition of the Board from the date of last Annual Report.

The composition of the Board of Directors is fully complied with the provision of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Regulation  17 of the Iisting Regulations, including the appointment of requisite
number  of Independent  Directors  and  Woman  Director.  As  on  31  Mach  2024,  the  Board
comprised of two  (2)  Non-Executive Independent Directors and four (4)  Non-ELecutive Non-
IndependentDirectors,includingWomanDirectorisaNonexecutiveNon-IndependentDirectors.
The Board has no institutioml director.

The  Company believes  in a well-balanced  and  diverse  Board whch  enriches  discussions and

enables effective decision-making. The Board of the Company is diverse in tens of qualification,
competence, skills, and expertise which enables it to ensure long-term value creation for all the
stakeholders. The Board has a fiduciary relationship in ensuring that the rights of au stakeholders
are protected.

(2) Changes lrmg the Year
No changes have taken place in the Board of Directors and Key Managerial Persomel Q"P) from
the date of the previous Annual Report.

(3) Retirencnt by Rotation and Subsequent ke-appointment
In accordance with the provision of Section 152 and other ap

Companies Act,  2013,  read with the Companies  (dypoin

Dq Mumbai

isions, if any, of the
cation of Directors)



TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED TR,a
CHEM

Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re{nactment(s) thereof for the time being
in force) and the Articles of Association of the Company. Mrs. Grace Ranu Deora PIN: 00312080)

avon-Executive Non-Independent) Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing
AGM and being eligivle, has offered himself for re-appointment, on the recommendation of the
Nomination  and  Remuneration  Committee  and  Board  of Directors.  In  accordance  with  the

provisions  of the  Companies  Act,  2013  read  with  the  Rules  issued  thereunder,  the  Listing
Regulations and the Articles of Association of the Company, the Independent Directors and the
Managivg Director of the Company are not liable to retire by rotation.

The said re-appointment tens and conditions thereof shall be approved ly the members at
ensuing AGM as per the provision of the Act and Listing Regulations, Accordingiv, a resolution is

being proposed in the notice of 52nd AGM for the approval of the members of the company refer
to item no. 2 and 3.

Pursuant  to  the  provision  of Regulation  36  of the  SEBI  (Listing  Obligations  and  Disclosure
Requirements) Regulation, 2015 and Secretarial Standard 2 on General Meeting issued by Institute

of  Company  Secretaries  of  India  acsD,  brief  particulars  of  the  directors  proposed  to  be

appointed/re-appointed are provided as an annexure to the notice convening the AGM.

(4)  Independent Directors with Materially Significant,  Pecuniary, or Business Rchtiouship
with the Company
There is no pecuniary or business relationship between the Non-Exeoutivedndependent Directors
andtheCompany.AdeclarationtothiseffectifalsosubmittedbyalltheDirectorsatthebegivning
ofeachfirmcialyear.

(5)  Declaration of hdependent Directors & Adherence to The Company's Code of Conduct for
hdependent "heors
The Company has received necessary dechration from each Independent Director under Section
149  (7) of the Companies Act,  2013 that they meet the criteria of independence laid down in
Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 along with declaration received pursuant to sub rule

(3) of Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. They
have also furnished the declaration pursuant to Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI Listing RegLilatious

affiming compliance to the criteria of Independence as provided under Regulation 16(1)a) of
the SEBI listing Regulations.

Based on the declantious and confirmation of the Independent Directors and after undertaking
due assessment of the veracity of the same, the Board of Directors recorded their opinion that all
the  Independent  Directors  are  independent  of  the  Management  and  have  fulfilled  all  the
conditions as specified under the governing provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI
Listing Regulations.

Further,  the  Independent  Directors  have  also  confined  that  they  have  comphed  with  the
Company's code of conduct.

d)   Director Respousibmty statement

£o
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Based  on  the  framework  of  internal  financial  control  and  compliance  system  established  and
maintained by the Company, work performed by the lnternal, Statutory, Cost and Secretarial Auditors,
including audit of the internal financial control over financial reporting by the Statutory Auditor and
the  reviews  perfomed  by Management  and  the  relevant  Board  Committee,  including  the  Audit
Committee, the Board is of the opinion that the Company's internal financial controls were adequate
and effective during the financial year 2023-24.

Accordingiv, pursuant to the requirements under Section 134(5) read with Section 134(3)(c) of the

Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) for the time being in force) with respect

to the Directors'  Respousibihty Statement,  to the best of their knowledge and ability,  it is hereby
confimed that for the year ended March 31, 2024:

(1)  In the  preparation  of the  annual  accounts  for the  fimncial year ended  March  31,  2024,  the
applicableaccountingstandrdsreadwithrequirementssetoutunderSchedule111totheAct,have
been fouowed and there are no material departures from the same;

(2)  the Directors have selected such accounting pohcies and applied them consistently and made
judg[nents and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affirs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and of the profitloss of the Company for the
financial year from April 1, 2023 to Mareh 31, 2024.

(3)  the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregLilarities;

(4)  the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a `going concem' basis;

(5)  the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively, and.

(6)  the  Directors  have  devised  proper  systems  to  ensure  compliance  with  the  provisions  of all
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

e)   Committees of The Board
In accordance with the applical>le provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI ousting Obhgatious

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board had the fouowing Three (3) Committees
as on 31st March  2024,  along with their composition,  number of meetings and attendance at the
meetings are provided:

(1) Audit Committee
The Audit Committee functions in accordance with Section  177 of the Act, 2013 read with the

Rules issued thereunder and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations and its Charter adopted by
the Board. The term of reference of the Audit Committee. The members of the Audit Committee
are  financially  literate  and  have  experience  in  fimncial  management.  The  Audit  Committee
compdscs of the fouowing directors and Attendance of Directors

3\
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during the financial year ended 31 March 2024. No changes have taken place in the members of
the Committees from the date of last Annual Report.

Name Status Category Meeting

Held Attended

Mr. Sunil S. ]hunj.hunwh Chaiman Non-Executive -IndependentDirector 4 4

Mr. Girish Kumar Pungalia Member Non-Executive -IndependentDirector 4 4

Mrs. Grace R. Deora Member Director 4 4

There have been no instances during the year when recommendations of the Audit Committee
were not accepted by the Board.

(2)  Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (`NRC') functions in accordance with Section 178

of the Act,  Regulation  19  of the  Regulations  and  its  Charter  as  adopted  by the  Board.  The
Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of the fouowing directors and Attendance
of Directors at the Committee Meetings held during the fimncial year ended 31 March 2024. No
changes have taken place in the members of the Committees from the date of last Annual Report.

Name Status Category Meeting

Held Attended

Mr. Sunil S. }hunjhunwala Chaiman Non-Executive -IndependentDirector 4 4

Mr. Girish Kumar Pungalia Member Non-Executive -IndependentDirector 4 4

Mrs. Grace R. Deora Member Director 4 4

Au the recommendations made by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were accepted
by the Board of Directors of the Company.

(3)  Stakcholders' Rehatiouship Committee
The   Stakeholders   Relation   Committee   (`SRC')   looks   into  various   aspects   of  interest   of

shareholders. The Committee oversees the perfomance of the ReSstrar and Share Transfer Agents
of the Company relating to investor service and recommends measures for improvement. The
company is having a Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprising of the following directors
and Attendance of Directors at the Committee Meetings held during the fimncial year ended 31
March 2024. No changes have taken place in the members of the Committees from the date of last
Amual Report.
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All the recommcndatious made by the Stakeholders Relationship Committee were accepted by the
Board of Directors of the Company.

I)    Board meeting held during the year
(1) Bond of Dhator

The Board of Directors met four  (4)  times during the financial year.  The dates on which the
meetings were held are 26th May 2023,  14th August 2023,  4th November 2023, and 9th Februay

2024.  The maximum gap between any two Board Meetings did not exceed one hunded and
twenty days.

(2)  Independent Director: Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder and
Regulation 25(3) of SEBI qoDR) Listing Regulation 2015, the independent director held their

separate  meeting on  28th March  2024,  without  attendance  of non-independent directors  and
members of Management, to inter alia: All Independent directors were present in meeting.

(3) Attendance of -ors
Attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings held during the financial year ended 31St March
2024 and at last AGM:

Name of Director(inalphalreticalOrder) Category Numberofmeetings Attendance at the last AGM

Held Attended Held on 24th August 2023

Mr. Girish Kumar Non-Executive - 4 4 Yes

Pungaha Independent
Mrs. Grace R. Deora Non-Executive 4 4 Yes

Mr. Shyan SunderSharma Non-Executive 4 4 Yes

Mr. Sunil S. Non-Executive - 4 4 Yes

Thunjhunwala Independent
Mr. Rajesh R. Deora Non-Exeoutive 4 4 Yes

Mr. Ranu S. Deora Non-Executive 4 4 Yes

g)   Evaluation of Performance of The Board, Its Committees and Directors
(1)  Hey Managerial Personnel (`KMP')

Mr. Ramu S. Deora, Director; Mr. Puran]. Parmar, Chief Financial Officer; and Mrs. Ureca Dcolekar

(name before marriage Ms. Ureca Shirish Shirole) , Company Secretary & Compliance Officer, are
KeyManagerialpersonnelofthecompanyinaccordancewiththeprovisiousofsection2(51),and
203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and RegLilatious 6(1) of Securities and ELchange Board of India

qisting Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. There has been no change
in the Key Managerial Persormel Qn4P) during the firmncial year.

(2)  Remuneration of Directors, Hey Managerial Personnel, and Particulars of Employees
The remuneration paid to the Directors is in accordance with

policy fomulated in accordance with Sectton 178 of the Co
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of the listing Regulations (including any statutory modifications(s) or re€nactments(s) thereof for
the time being in Force). The information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Companies  (appoinmeut and  Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)  Rules,  2014

(including any statutory modification(s) or re€nacment(s) thereof for the time being in force) in
respect of Directors/employee of the Company is as follows:

The company director has forgone remuneration.  Further no sitting fee has been paid to any
director during the  financial year.  The  particulars  of the  employees who are  covered  by the

provisions contained in Rule 5(2) and nile 50) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial PersonneD Rules, 2014 are:

(a)  Employed throughout the year                       Nfl
a)  Employed for part of the year                         Nil

The  increase  in  remuneration  of  eniployees  other  than  the  Key  Managerial  Personnel  is

considerably in ine with the increase in remuneration of Key Mamgerial Personnel. It is affirmed
that the remuneration paid to the Directors, Key Management Personnel and senior management
is as per the Nomination and Remuneration Pchcy of the Company.

The number of permanent employees on the rous of company: 10.

In terms Of Section 136 of the Act, the reports and accounts are being sent to the members and
others entitled thereto, excluding the information on employees' particulars which is available for
inspection by the members at the Regivtered office of the company during business hours on
working days Of the company up to the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting. If any member
is interested in inspecting the same, such a member may whte to the Chief Financial Officer in
adunce.

h)   Corporate ponies
The SEBI Qisting Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as anendcd, mandates

the fomulation of certain policies for all listed companies. The corporate governance policies are
available on the Company's website at httDs:/tww.triochemDroducts.com under the head "Investor
Relations" Search by Year "2023-24". The policies are reviewed periodically by the Board and updated

as needed. Key policies that have been adopted are as fonows:

(1) Nomination & Remuneration Policy
The  Company  has  fomuhated  and  adopted  the  Nomination  and  Remuneration  Policy  in
accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued thereunder and
the histing Regulations. The said Pdicy of the Company, £„ter alto, provides that the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee shall fomulate  the criteria for appoinment if EHecutive,  Non-
Executive and Independent Directors on the Board of Directors on the Board Of Directors Of the

Company and persons in the Senior Management of the Company, their remuneration including
determination of qualifications, positive attributes, independence Of Directors and other matters
as  provided under sub-section  (3)  of section  178 of the Companies Act,  2013  Qneluding any
statutory modification(s) or re€nactment(s) thereof for the time being in force).  The Policy is
available on the website of the Company at the fonowing link:
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htti]s:/tw.triochemoroducts.com^iDloadsAlnvestoruelationsfodrfuomination-and-
remuneration-cohcv-26.1)df

(2)  Directors Appointment and Remuneration Policy
The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomimtion and Remuneration Committee has fromed
aPolicyforselectionandappointmentofDirectors&SeniorMamgementandtheirremuneration.
The Policy of the Company on Directors appointment and remuneration including criteria for
detemining  qualifications,  positive  attributes,  independence  Of Directors  and  other  matters

provided under Section 1780) of the Act and Regulation 19 of the histing pegulatious is available
on the vebsite of the Company at the fouowing link:
httDs:/twww.triochemDroducts.com^ii]loadsAnvestondationsfodfroDointmenLevaluationrof-
boardrofrdirectors-lrmi)s-and-seniormananement-1)ersonn-27.Ddf

(3)  Performance Ewluation Of The Board, Its Committees and Directors
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI QODR) RegLilations, 2015 the

company has implemented a system of ewluating pefromance of the Board of Directors and of
its  committees  and  individual  directors  on  the  basis  of evaluation  criteria  suggested  by  the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the SEBI a.ODR) Reguhaus, 2015. Accordingiv,
the Board has carried out an evaluation of its performance after taking into consideration various

perfomance  related  aspects  of the  Board's  functioning,  composition  of the  Board  and  its
Committees, culture, execution and perfomance of specific duties, remuneration, chligrtions and

governance.  The  perfemance  evaluation  of the  Board  as  a  whole,  Chairperson  and  Non-
Independent Directors was also carried out by the Independent Directors in their meeting held
on 28th March 2024.

Similarly, the perfomance of various committees, individual Independent and Non-Independent
Directors was evaluated by the entire Board of Directors (eluding the Director being evaluated)
on various parameters like engagement, analysis, decision making, communication and interest of
stdeholders,

The Board of Directors expressed its satisfaction with the pefromance of the Board, its conMnittees
and individual directors.

(4) Tens and Conditions for Appointment of Independent Director
The Board is of the opinion that au the Independent Directors of the Company possesses requisite

qualifications, experience and expertise in chemicalsrfuanufacturing industry, strategy, auditing,
tax and risk advisory services, financial services, corporate governance, etc. and that they hold
standards  of integrity.  They  have  played  a  pivotal  role  in  safeguarding  the  interests  of au
stakeholders. The Company has also issued fomal appointment letters to all the Independent
Directors in the manner provided under the Companies Act,  2013 read with the Rules issued

thereunder. The terms and conditions for appointment of independent director and a sample
letter of appointment issued to the,  are posted on the Company's website under the section
`Investor Relatious' tab `Appointment of Non-Executive Independent Director' at following the
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ai]cointmentof-indei]endendirectors-ver02-23-1743.Ddf

The  Independent  Directors  of the  Company  got  included  their  names  in  the  data bank  of
Independent  Directors  maintained with  the  Indian  Institute  of Corporate Affiirs  in terms  of
Section  150  of the Act  read with  Rule  6  of the  Companies  (Appointment &  Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014.

(5)  Familiarization Programme for The Independent Directors
The Independent Directors are familiarized though various prngrammes on a continuing basis
including:  (a)  Nature of the industry in which Company operates;  a)  business model of the
Company; (c) roles, rights, respousibihities of Independent Directors etc. ,

In Compliance with the requirements of SEBI RegLilatious, fandliarization prngramme along with

their role, rights and responsibilities as Directors, the wotling of the Company,  nature Of the
industry in which the Company operates, business model, etc. it is also display on wibsite of the
Company at following the link:
httos:/tw.triochemDroducts.com^ii]loadsthvestoruelations/bdts/famflarizaation-Drormmfor-
indeDendent-directors-vero2-23-1731.Ddf

(6)  Code of conduct
The Board of Directors has approved a Code of Conduct which is applicable to the Members of
the Board and all employees in daytorday business operations of the company. The Code lays
down the  standard  procedure  of business  conduct which  is  expected  to be  followed  by the
Directors and the desigmted employees in their business dealings and in particular on matters
relating to integrity in the workphe, in business practices and in dealing with stakeholders. All
the Board Members and the Senior Management personnel have confimed conipliance with the
Code. The Code has been displayed on website of the Company at fouowing the link:
httos:/twww.triochemi)roducts.com^iDloadsAnvestoruelatiousfodts/directors-senior-
manasement-Dersonnel-24.I)df

(7)  Prevention of Insider Trading
Pursuant to SEBI Qrohibition of Insider Tradin® Regulations, 2015 as amended, the Company
has  adopted  the  Code  of Ineemal  Procedures  and  Conduct  for  Regulating,  Monitoring  and
ReportingofTradingbyDesignatedPersousandtheirlmmediateRelativesalongwithCodeofFair
Disclosures. The Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and Report Trading by employees and
other connected persons has been diaplayed on website of the Company at following the link:
httDs:/tw.triochemDroducts.com^iDloadrfuvestor-relationsfodts/todeofroractices-
i]roceduresfor-fair-disclosureof-uni]ul]lished-Price-sensitive-1710.Ddf

(8)  Related Party Transaction
In ine with the requirements of the Companies Act,  2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations, your

Company has fomulated a Pohcy on Related Party Transactions which is available on the website
of the Company at following link:
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The Policy intends to ensure that proper reporting, approval and disclosure processes are in place

for all transactions between the Company and Related Parties.

(9)  Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Polity
The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy and has estabhihed the necessary vial mechanism for

directors and employees in confimation with Section 177(9) of the Act and Regulation 22 of SEBI

Listing Regulations,  to report concerns about unethical behavior.  The Company hereby affirms

that no Director/employee has been denied access to the Chairman and Audit Committee and that
no complaints were received during the year.

The said Policy provides for (a) adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use the
Vial Mechanism; and a) direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee of the Board of

the Company. The Company believes in the conducts of the affairs of its constituents by adopting
the highest standards of professionalism, honest, integrity and ethical behavior, in ine with the
TPL Code of conduct (`Code'). All the stakeholders are encouraged to raise their concerns or make

disclosures on being aware of any potential or actual violation of the Code, policies, or the law.
The Company maintains a website where detailed information Of the company and its products

are provided.

In order to ensure that the activities of the company and its employees are conducted in a fur and
transparent manner by adoption of highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and
ethical behavior the company has adopted a vigiv mechanism policy. The ain of the policy is to

provide adequate safeguards against victinrization of whistle blower who avails of the mechanism
and  also  provide  direct  access  to  the  Chaiman  of the  Audit  Committee,  in  appropriate  or
exceptional cases. Accordingly, `Whistle Blower Pohicy' has been formulated with a view to provide

a mechanism for the Directors and employees of the Company to approach the Ethics Counsellor

or the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company. The purpose of this pohicy is to provide
a framework to promote responsible and secure whistle blowing. It protects employees willing to
raise a concern about serious irregLilarities within the Company.

This polity is available on the website of the Company at following link:
httos:/tw.triochemt]roducts.com^iDloads^nvestor-relatiousfodfa^7ial-mechanism-whistle-
blcmu-Dolicv-28.odf

i)   Amual Retun
The Annual Return of the Company as on March 31, 2024, in Fom MGT-7 in accordance with Section

92(3) of the Act read with the Companies quanngement and Administration) Rules, 2014, is available
on the website of the Company at the following link:
httDs:/tw.triochemDroducts.com^it)loadsThvestor-relationsfodts/draft-annualretun202324-
2948pdf

By virtue of amendment to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not required to

provide extract of Annual Return (form MGT- 9)  as part of the
attached as "Anncqure 8" fom pans of the Board's Report.

Report, voluntay basis is
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j)    Secretarial standards
The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, a Statutory Body, has issued Secretarial Standards on

various  aspects  of corporate  law and  practices.  The  Company  has  comphied with  the  applicable
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

k)   listing
The equity shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited, Mumbai. The Company has paid Annual

Listing fees for the year financial year 2023-24 and 2024-25. There was no suspension on shares of the

Company during the year.

I)    Depository services
The  Company's  Equity  Shares  have  been  admitted  to  the  depository mechanism  of the  National

Securities Depository Limited OJSDL) and also the Central Depository Services ¢ndia) Limited (CDSL).

As a result, the investors have an option to hold the shares of the Company in dematerialized fom in
either of the two Depositories. The Company has been allotted ISIN No. INE331E01013.

Shareholders therefore are requested to take full benefit of the same and lodge their holdings with
Depository Participants [DPs] with whom they have their Demat Accounts for getting their holdings in

electronic form.

in)  Internal Financial Control and Their Adequacy
The Company has in place Internal Financial Control Systems, commensurate with the nature of its

business and the size, scale, and complexity of its operations to ensure proper recording of financial
and operational infomation & comphance of various internal controls, statutory compliances, and
other regulatory compliances. The internal control procedures have been planned and designed to
safeguard and protect from loss, unauthorized use, or disposition of its assets. All the transactions are

probably authorized, recorded, and reported to the Management. The Company is following all the
applicable  Accounting  Standards  for  properly  maintaining  the  hooks  of accounts  and  reporting
financial statements. The internal auditor of the company checks and verifies the internal control and
monitors them in accordance with policy adopted by the company. The company continues to ensure

proper and adequate systems and procedures commensurate with its size and nature of its business.

As required by the Companies Act 2013, your Company has implemented an Interml Financial Control

¢FC)  Framework.  Section  134(5)(e)  requires  the  Directors  to  mde  an  assertion  in  the  Directors
Respousibhity Statement that your Company has laid down internal financial controls, which are in

existence, adequate and operate effectively. Under Section 177(4) (vii), the Audit Committee evaluates

the internal fimncial controls and makes a representation to the Board. The purpose of the IFC is to
ensure that policies and procedures adopted by your Company for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct  of its  business  are  implemented,  including  policies  for  and  the  safeguarding  its  assets,

prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of accounting records, and
timely preparation of reliable financial information. The IFC implementation required all processes of

your Company to be  documented  alongside  the  controls within the  process.  An processes were
satisfactorily tested for both design and effectiveness during the
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The TPL code of conduct and accompanying training seeks to ensure everyone in your Company

understands how to put values into practice. Mandatory training on the Code of Conduct helps your
Company's employees gain the confidence to make the right decisions and become familiar with the

policies and procedures applicable to their areas of operation, avoid conflicts of interest and report all
unethical  and  inegal  conduct.  Additionally,  employees  are  required  to  certify in  an  annual basis
whether there  have  been any trausactious which  are  haudulent,  inegal or violate of the  Cede  of
Conduct. Strong oversight and self-monitoring policies and procedures demonstrate your Company's
commitment to the highest standards of integrity. Your Company has also successfully complemented
its Internal Control Framework with the test of design and effectiveness of all its processes across the

organization as part of meeting the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, to ensure the existence
and effectiveness of lnternal Financial Controls.

The Audit  Committee  reviews  the  adequacy  and  effectiveness  of the  Company's  internal control

environment and monitors the implementation of audit recommendations, including those relating to
strengrhening of the Company's risk management policies and systems. The ultimate objective being
a Zero Surprise, Risk controued Onganization.

n)   Significant and Material order
There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or couus or tribunals imparting
the going concern status and the Company's operations in future.

5.    AUDIT AND AUDITORS

a)   Statutory Auditors
Pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under, M/s. Kanu Doshi

Asscroiates LLP,  ¢irm Registration No.  104746W/ W100096), are appointed as the Statutory Auditors

by the Members in the Annual General Meeting held on 26th August  2022  to hold office until the

conclusion of 55th Annual General Meeting to be held in the financial year 2027-28.

The requirement for the armual ratification of auditors' appointment at the AGM has been omitted

pursuant  to  the  Companies  (Amendment) Act,  2017,  notified  on May 7,  2018.  The  auditors  have
confirmed  their ehigivhity limits  as  prescribed  in the  Companies Act,  2013,  and  that  they are  not

disqualified from continuing as Auditors of the Company.

The Statutory Auditors' comments on your Company's account for the year ended March 31, 2024, are

selfexplanatory in nature and do not require any explanation. The Auditors' Report dues not contain
any qualification, reservation, adverse remark, disclaimer, or modified opinion remarks.

b)   mtemal Auditors
Pursuant to the provisions of Section  138 of the Companies Act,  2013  and niles made there under

(including any amendment(s), modification(s) or re{nacment(s) thereof for the time being in force),
the Board of Directors of the Company, on recommendation of Audit Committee, at their meeting held
on 28th May 2024 have Re-appointed M/s. Haren Sanchvi & Associates, Chartered Accountant as Interml

Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2024.25, to
Internal Auditors reports to the Audit Committee of the

e>Q

conduct Audit of the Company. The
nrfutain its objectivity
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and  independence.  The  scope  and  authority of the  Internal Audit function  is defined by the Audit
Committee. The Significant audit observations and corrective actions thereon are presented to the Audit

Committee of the Board.

c)   Seuetarial Auditors
Pursuant  to  the  provisions  of Section  204  of the  Companies  Act,  2013  read  with  Rule  9  of the

Companies  (Appointment  and  Remuneration  of Managerial  Personnel)  Rules,  2014,  M/s.  RaSni

Chokshi  &  Co.  (CP  No.   1436),  Practicing  Company  Secretaries  were  appointed  to  conduct  the

secretarial audit of the Company for the financial year 2023-2024. The Company has received consent
from  M/s.  RaSni  Chokshi  &  Co.  (CP  No.  1436),  Company  Secretaries  to  act  as  the  auditors  for

conducting audit of the Secretarial records for the financial year ended 31" March 2024.

The Secretarial Audit Report in Fom No. MR -3 for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, is annexed

herewith  as  "Annexure  C"  fom  parts  of the  Board's  Report.  There  has  been  no  quahification,
reservation, adverse remark, or disclaimer given by the Secretarial Auditors in their Report.

d)   Cost auditor
The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance the of cost records under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the company. Accordingiv, during the

year, maintenance of Cost Records and Cost Audit was not applical]le to the Company.

e)   Reporting of Frauds by Auditors
During the year under review, neither the Statutory Auditors nor the Secretarial Auditor have reported
to the Board orAudit Committee, as required under Section 134 (3) (ca) and 143(12) of the Companies

Act, 2013, any instances of frauds committed against the Company by its officers or employees, the

details of which would need to be mentioned in this Report.

6.    HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

a)    Human resources policy is aimed at having a universal and scientific method to hire the best talent in
theindustrywithoptimumshillsandaptituderequiredforthejob.Thecompanyhasalwaysrecognized
talent  and  has  judiciously  followed  the  principle  of rewarding  performance.  This  requires  the
management and the employees to fully understand and respect each other. On an ongoing basis the
management identifies and implements necessary measures to maintain a positive clinate and improve

performance levels. The management has always carried out systematic appraisal of perfomance and
imparted  training  at  periodic  intervals.  The  Company  continued  the  welfue  activities  for  the
employees, which include Medical Care, Group Insurance and Canteen Fachity. To enrich the skills of
employees and enrich their experience, the Company amnges, Practical Training Courses by Internal
and External Faculty.

Your Directors also wish to place on record their appreciation for the dedication and commitment
displayed by all executives' officers and staff at all levels of the company.

b)   Particulars of employees
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The  information required under Section  197(12)  of the Act read with Rule  5(1),  5(2)  &  50)  of the

Companies   (Appointment   and   Remuneration   of  Managerial   PersonneD   Rules,   2014,   including

amendment thereto, is provided in above point number 4®(2).

c)   Prevention of sexual llarassment at wulaplace
The Company strongly believes in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for each and every
individual working for the Company through various interventious and practices. It is the continuous

endeavour of the Management of the Company to create and provide an environment to all its employees
that is free from discrimination and harassment including semal harassment. The Company has adopted

a policy on prevention,  prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workylace in line with the

provisions of the Sexual IIarassment of Women at Workplace ¢revention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder. The Company has arranged interactive awareness wodshops
in this regard for the employees at the manufacturing sites & corporate office during the year under
review.

During the year no complaints were received by the Internal Complaints Committee of the Company.
The  Company  has  complied  with  provisions  relating  to  the  constitution  of  Internal  Complaints

Committee  under  the  Sexual  Harassment  of  Women  at  Workplace  ¢revention,  Prohibition  and
Redressal) Act, 2013.

This policy is available on the website of the Company at following rink:

httos:/fu7ww.triochemDroducts.com^iDloads^nvestor-relations/bdfr/Dreventionrofsexual-harasment-at-

wocki)alce-oolicv-78.I)df

d)   Health, Safety and Environment
The Company is committed to ensure a sound Safety, Health and Environment (SHE) perfomance

related to its activities, products, and services. Your Company has been continuously taking various
steps to develop and adopt Safer Process technoloSes and unit operations. The Company has been
investing in areas such  as  Process Automation for increased safety and reduction of human error

element,  Enhanced  level  of training  on  Process  and  Behavior  based  safety,  adoption  of safe  &

environmentally friendly production process, Installation of reactors, Multiple effect evaporator, etc.
to reduce the discharge of effluents, commissioning of Waste Heat recovery systems, and so on to
ensure  the  Reduction,  Recovery and  Reuse  of effluents  &  other utilities.  Monitoring and periodic
review of the designed SIIE Management System are done on a continuous basis.

e)   industrial Relations:
Industrial relations have been cordial at the manufacturing units and corporate office of the Company.

7.    CONSERVATION OF ENERy,  TECHNOLOGy ABsORp'rloN AND roREIGN ExcllANGE EARNINGs
AND OUTcO

a)   Conservation of Energy
The infomation on conversation of energy stipulated under Section 134(3)(in) of the Act read with
Rule 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, in Fom A is rewlth "Ame-- D".
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b)   Technology Absorption
The information on technology absorption stipulated under Section 134(3)(in) of the Act read with
Rule 8 of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, in Form 8 is annexed herewith "Anncrmre- D".

c)   Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo
The information on foreign exchange earnings and outgo stipulated under Section 134(3)(in) of the
Act  read with  Rule  8  of The  Companies  (Accounts)  Rules,  2014,  in Form  C  is  annexed  herewith
"Amexue- D".

8.    BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT (ERR)

The SEBI qoDR) Regulation 2015 mandates the inclusion of the BRR as part of the Annual Report for the

top 1000 listed entities based on market capitalization. Since the Company is not covered under the top
1000 listed entities based on market capitalization, Business Respousibflity Reporting is not applicable to

the Company.

9.    RISK MANAGEMENT

As per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and as part of good Corporate Governance, the company has
long been followed the principle of risk minimization as is the norm in every industry, it has now become

a compulsion. Therefore, the Board members were informed about the risk assessment and minimization

procedures after which the Board formally adopted steps for framing, implementing, and monitoring the
risk management plan for the company. The Audit Committee of the Company has periodically reviewed

the  various  risks  associated  with  business  of the  Company.  Such  review  includes  risk  identification,

evaluation and mitigation of the risk.

The main objective of this policy is to ensure sustainable business growth with stability and to promote a

pro-active approach in reporting, evaluating, and resolving risks associated with the business. In order to
achieve-with  the  key objectives,  the  pohcy establishes  a  structured  and  disciplined  approach  to  Risk
Management, in order to guide decisions on risk related issues. In today's challengivg and competitive

environment, strategivs for mitigating inherent risks in accomphishing the growth plans of the Company
are  imperative.  The  common  risks  inter  alia  are  Regulations,  competitive,  Business  risk,  Technology

obsolescence, Investments, retention of talent and expansion of facilities. Business risk, inter-aha, further
includes financial risk, political risk, fidelity risk, legal risk. As a matter of policy, these risks are assessed

and steps as appropriate are taken to mitigate the sane.

Constituting the Risk Management Committee was extended to the top 500 listed entities on the basis of
the market capitalization, the same is not applicable to our Company for the year ended March 31,2024.

The  Company has  implemented  Risk Management  Policy and  the  Board of Directors has prepared  a
comprehensive framework of risk management for assessment of risks and to determine the responses to
these risks so as to mininize their adverse impact on the organization. The policy as approved by the Board
of Directors, which is available on the website of the Company at following link:
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10.  OTHER GENERAL DISCLOSURES:

a)    Secretarial Standards: The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, a Statutory Body, has issued
Secretarial Standards on various aspects of corporate law and practices. The Company has complied
with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

b)   Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process initiated under the Insolvency and Banlmlptey Code,
2016 (IBC): During the year, there has been no initiation of any Corporate Iusolveny Resolution
Process under the Iusolveney and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 ¢BC).

c)    Statement of deviation or variation: During the year, the Company has not raised / made offer by
way of PubHc Issue,  Right Issue,  Preferential Issue,  Qualified Institutions Placement  (QIP) etc.  and

therefore it is not applicable to the Company.

d)   Disclosure with  respect  to  Demat  Suspense Account / Undained  Suspense Account:  The
Company repous that no shares issued pursuant to Public Issue remains Unclaimed hence the Clause
ofDisclosurewithrespecttoDematSuspeuseAccount/UnclaimedSuspeuseAccountisnotapphical]le.

e)   The details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the tine of a one-tine
settlement and the valuation done while taking a loan from Banks or Finandal Institutions,
along with the reasons thereof during the F.Y. 2022-23 and the date of Dinectors' Report: There
was no instance of onetime settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution.

0    Significant and Material order passed by the Regulators/Courts4ribunals: During the year there
are no significant material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals which impact the

going concern status and Company's operations in future.

g)   Reporting of Frauds by Auditors: During the year under review, neither the Statutory Auditors nor
the Secretarial Auditor have reported to the Board or Audit Committee, as required under Section 134

(3)  (ca)  and  145(12)  of the  Companies Act,  2013,  any instances  of frauds  committed  agrinst the
Company by its officers or employees, the details of which would need to be mentioned in this Report.

h)   Iisting at stock Exchange: The equity shares of the Company continue to histed and traded in BSE
Limited. The Annual Listing fees for the year financial year 2022-23 and 2023-24 has been paid to the

stock exchanges. There was no suspension on shares of the Company during the year.

i)    Dematerialization: Your Company has tied up with National Securities Depository Ltd. OISDI,) and

Central Depository Services andia) Ltd. (CDSL) to enable the shareholders to trade and hold share in
an electronic/dematerialized form. The shareholders are advised to take benefits of dematerialization.

j)    Awards: Your company has not received any Award during the financial 2022-23.

k)   Financial Statements: As per Regulation 33 of the Securities and ELchange Board of India ajsting
Obligations  and  Disclosure  Requirements)  Regulations,  2015  thereinafter  refened  to  as  "Listing
Regulations")  and  apphcable  provisions  of the  Companies Act,

thereunder,  the  Financial  Statements  of the  Company for

preparedincompliancewlthapplicchleAccountingStandard

le>

read with  the  Rules  issued

ar  2020-21  have  been

e Board of Directors.
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I)    The Financial statements of the company were not revised.

in)  Impaiment of Assets & Capital Work-in.Progress: In compliance with Accounting Standard AS-28
relating to "Impairment of Assets", the company has reviewed the carrying amount of its fixed assets

as at the end of the year.  Based on the strategic plans and such valuation of the fixied assets of the

company, on impairment of assets is envisaged at the balance sheet date.

n)   Credit  Rating:  Credit Rating is  not obtained as the  same  is not required for obtaining the credit
facihties from bank.

o)   Key Initiatives with respect to Stakeholder Relationship, Customer Relationship, Environment,
Sustainability, Health and Safety: The Company to the mximum extent possible under various

programmers initiated by the Company, e.g.  (a) The Company assists its vendors with prevention of
wastage and efficient utilization of resources. a) All the Equipment and Machinery purchased in new

manufacturing plant are clean technology, energy efficient, etc. , with numerous stakeholders working

across the Company's different locations and operations, it is difficult to estimate the percentage.

p)   The  Company  has  not  issued  any wamnts,  debentures,  bonds,  or  any  non{onvertible
securities.

q)   The Company has not brought back its shares, pursuant to the provision of Section 68 of Act and the
Rules made thereunder.

r)    The Company has not failed to implement any corporate action.

s)    Corporate  Governance:  In tens  of Regulation  15(2)  of Securities and Exchange Board of India

a.isting Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) ReguJatious, 2015, states that, The Compliance with
the corporate governance provisions as specified in regulation 17, [17A,] 18,19, 20, 21,22, 23, 24, 24A,

25, 26, 27 and clauses a) to (i) [and (t)] of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C, D and E of

Schedule V shall not apply, to listed entities having paid up equity share capital not exceeding rupees
ten crore and net worth not exceeding rupees twenty five crore, as on the last day of the previous
financial year. In case of our Company as on the last audited balance sheet as at 31ST March 2024 paid

up equity capital of the company is Rs.24.50 lalch which is less than ten crones and net worth Rs.14.62

Crore which is less than rupees twenty-five crore, which is within the limit as prescribed in Regulation
15(2)  of SEBI  a.isting  Obhgation  and  Disclosure  Requirement)  Regulations,  2015.  Hence,  due  to

applicability of Regulation 15(2) of Securities and Exchange Board of India qoDR) Regulations, 2015,
the corporate governance provision are not applicable to us. When the provision of the said regulation
becomes applical]le to the Company at a later date, the same shall be complied with, within six months
from the date on which the provisions become apphicable to the Company.

t)    Corporate social Respousibflity: The provisions of companies Act, 2013 regarding corporate social
Respousibhity sham not be applicable to companies having net worth not exceeding Rs.500 crone or

more or turnover not exceeding Rs.1,000 crore or net profit not exceeding Rs.5 crore or more during
any financial year, as on the last day of the previous financial
last audited balance sheet as at 31st March 2024 neither the net

of our Company as on the
.500croresortunover
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exceeds Rsl,000 crore or net profit exceeding Rs.5 crore.  Hence, the provisions of Companies Act,
2013 regarding Corporate Social Responsibility would not be applicable.

u)   Business Respousibihity Report: The Listing Regulations mandate the inclusion of the BRR as par( of
the Annual Report for the top  1,000 listed entities based on market capitalization, the sane is not

applicable to our Company for the year ended March 31, 2024.

11.  BANK AND CREDIT FACILITIES:

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the support from Company's bankers namely

State Bank of India. The Company's finance position continues to be robust. During the year under review,

the cash generation from operation reflect a substantial increase. This has been the Company's philosophy

throughout and can be vouched for over the years. The Company is zero debt company. The borrowings

are taken for short-term requirements.

ACENOWLEDGEMENTS:

Your Directors of the Company wish to take the opportunity to express their deep sense of gratitude to the
Banks,  Government Authorities,  Customers  and  Shareholders for their continuous guidance  and support.

Further they would also like to place on record their sincere appreciation for dedication and the hard work put
in by all employees for their dedicated services.

The Directors also wish to express their gratitude to investors for the faith that they continue to repose in the

Company.

By order of the Board of Directors
For Triochem Products Limited

Director

DIN: 00312080

CIN No. : L24249MH1972PLC015544

Place : Mumbai

Dated: 28th May 2024

Registered Office:
4th Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P. M. Road, Fort, Mumbai: 400 001

Email : investor@ triochemDroducts. com

Website : www. triocheml)roducts. com

Phone No.: 9122 22663150

Fax No.: 9122 22024657

!,\_-
Ranu S. Deora

Director
DIN: 00312369
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Annexure /AI to Board's Rcoort
DlvlDEND DlsTRIBUTION roLlcy

1.   About the company

Triochem Products Limited ¢ereinafter referred to as `the Company' or `TPL") is a Company an chsting

public linited company incorporated on 17ro1/1972 under the provisions of the Indian Companies Act,
1956 and deemed to Christ within the purview of the Companies Act, 2013, having its registered office at

4th Floor,  Sambava Chamber, Sir P. M. Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001. It has been engaged primarily in

the business of manufacturer and exporter of pharmaceuticals products, Apls and chemicals. The equity
shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited (BSE).

2.   Objectives of the policy

2.1.  Securities  and Exchange Board  of India  ¢ereimfter referred to  as  `SEBI')  has,  by its Notification

dated  July  8,   2016,   inserted  Regulation  43A  in  the  SEBI   (Listing  Obligations  and  Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, including any statutory modification(s) or re{nactment(s) thereof

for the time being in force. aereinafter referred to as `the Listing Regulation')

2.2.  Regulation   43A  of  the   Listing   Regulations   requires   the   Company   to   formulate   a   Dividend

Distribution  Policy  which  shall  be  disclosed  in  the  Annual  Report  and  on  the  website  of  the

Company.

2.3.  In  view  of the  above,  the  Company  has  framed  this  Dividend  Distribution  Policy  ¢ereinafter

referred to as `the Policy') to determine the parameters on the basis of which the Company may or
may not declare dividend.

2.4.  The  Policy seeks to balance the  objectives of rewarding the shareholders though dividends and

retaining capital to invest in the growhi of the Company, while ensuring fairness, sustainabfty, and
consistency in distributing profit to the shareholders.

3.    Payment Frequency

The  dividend shall,  subject to the parameters hereinafter described,  be payable annually and shall be

declared at the Annual General Meeting of the Company, based on the recommendation of the Board of
Directors  of the  Company  ¢ereinafter  referred  to  as  `the  Board').  The  Board  may  declare  interim

dividend during any financial year out of the surplus in the profit and loss account and out of profits of
the financial year in which the interim dividend is sought to be declared.  The Board may recommend
special dividend in years of exceptional

4.   Declaration of Dividend

It is the intention of the Board of Directors, subject to applical]le laws, to pay dividend on the Company's

outstanding Equity Shares. The Company does not have any class of shar,es
-,,

Equity Shares.
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5.   Parameters for Distribution of Dividend

5.1.  Your Company has a track record of steady dividend declaration and payment over its history. The
Board  considers  the  yeady  dividend  based  on  the  Net  Profit  After  Tax  (`PAT')   available  for

distribution.  In addition,  the Board reviews the capital expenditure needs,  cash requirements for
investments in capability enhancements and future nonorganic growth initiatives.

5.2.  As in the past, subject to the provisions of the applicable law, the Company's dividend payout will
be  determined  based  on  availal)le  financial  resources,  investment  requirements  and  taking  into

account optimal shareholder return. Based on the above, the Company will endeavour to maintain
the steady level of dividend per share over the medium term.

5.3.  Ciroumstanccs  under  which  the  shareholders  of the  Company  may  or  may  not  expect
dividend:

The  Shareholders  may  ordinarily  expect  dividend  if the  Company  has  made  profits  during  the

current year.  Recommending dividend out of profits of previous financial years or out of retained
earnings  shall be  at  the  discretion  of the  Board,  subject  to  the  compliance with  the  Companies

@eclaration and Payment of Dividend) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time. The Board may
not recommend a dividend if:

5.3.1.    Proposed expansion plans require higher auocation of capital; or

5.3.2.    Significantly higher working capital requirements adversely impact free cash flow; or

5.3.3.    The Company undertakes any acquisitions or investments including in joint ventures,  new

product launches, etc. , requiring significant capital outflow; or
5.3.4.    In case of proposal for buyback of shares; or

5.3.5.     In the event of inadequacy of profits.

5.3.6.    If the  Board  proposes  not  to  distribute  profit,  the  grounds  thereof and  information  on
utflisation of undistributed profit, if any, shall be disclosed to the shareholders in the Annual
Report of the Company.

5.4.  Financial Parameters for declarfug dividend:
The Board sham consider the following financial parameters while declaring dividend:

5.4.1.    the company's Financial Results of operations and earnings.

5.4.2.    working  capital  requirements  for  the  operations  and  growth  of  the  Company  and  its
subsidiaries.

5.4.3.    quantum of profits and liquidity position;

5.4.4.    future  fund  requirements,  including  for  brand  building,  business  acquisitions,  business
expansion, modemisation of existing business;

5.4.5.     level of debt;

5.4.6.    providing for unforeseen events and contingencies;

5.4.7.    any other financial factor as the Board may deem fit.

5.5.  htemal and nrfemal Factors for declaring dividend:
The Board may consider the fouowing internal

5.5.1.    Internal Factors:

and external factors.white
;,-. L`  C! u

dividend:
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5.5.1.1.         the level of dividends paid historically;

5.5.1.2.         contractual restrictions and financing agreement covenants;

5.5.1.3.         likelihood ofcrystallisation of contingent liabilities, if any.

5.5.2.    External Factors:
5.5.2.1.         general business conditions, risk and uncertainties;

5.5.2.2.         industry outlook and business cycles for underlying businesses;

5.5.2.3.         prevalhing economic, competitive and regulatory environment;

5.5.2.4.         tax lawand the company's taxpayer status;

5.5.2.5.         capitalmarket.

This is not intended to be an all-inclusive list, but rather a representative hst of factors which may be

considered while declaring dividend.

5.6.  Manner in which the retained earnings shall be utilised:
Retained  earnings  are  the  sum  of  the  Company's  profits  after  dividend  payments,  since  the

Company's inception. The retained earnings of the Company will be utilised in one or more of the
following manner:

5.6.1.    for expansion and growl of business;
5.6.2.    for contributing towards the fixed as well as working capital needs of the Company;

5.6.3.    major repairs  and  maintenance,  including  replacement  of old  assets  which  have  become
obsolete;

5.6.4.    renovation/modemisation for improving working efficiency of plants and equipment's and
for capacity enhancements;

5.6.5.    to make the company self dependent of finance from external sources;

5.6.6.    for redemption of loans and debentures (if any);

5.6.7.    for upgradation of techulcal knowhow;

5.6.8.    non organic growl initiatives, including acquisition of brandsfousinesses;

5.6.9.    for issuing fuuy paid-up bonus shares to the shareholders.

5.7.  Dividend Range:

5.8.  As in the past, subject to the provisions of applicable laws, the Company's dividend payout will be
determined based on availability of financial resources, investment requirements and also take into

account  optimal  shareholder  return.  The  Company would  endeavour  to  target  a  total  dividend

payout ratio in the range of 30% to 50% of the Annual Standalone PAT of the Company.

6.    Rcviow ofpdicy

This Policy has been adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company and the Board may review and

amend the Policy from time to time, pursuant to any change in law or otherwise.

7.   Disdosues
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TPL  shall  disclose  the  Dividend  Distribution  Policy in  the  Board's  Report forming part  of the Annual

Report. This Policy shall also be disclosed on the website of the Company at www.triochemDroducts.com.

Any changes in the Policy,  along with the rationale for the same,  shall also be disclosed in the Annual

Report and on the website of the Company.

8.   Amendments to the policy

The  Company  is  committed  to  continuously  reviewing  and  updating  our  policies  and  procedures.

Therefore,  this policy is subject to modification. Any amendment(s)  of any provision of this policy shall

be carried out by the persons authorised by the Board in this regard.

_\EJ
.- i._-j>
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Annexure (8) to Board's Report

EXTRACT OF AI`INUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2024

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Managuncnt and Administration) R]iles, 2014]
I          REGISTRATION AND OTRER DEAILS

icIN

ii Registration Date

iii Name of the Company

iv Category of the Company
1  Pubhic Company

L24249MH1972PLC015544

17                  01                 1972

Triochem Products Limited

Yes

Sub Category of the Company
9  Company having share capital                          Yes

v Address of the Registered Office and Contact Dctails
1  Company Name
2 Address

3 Tour / City
4  State

5  Pin Code
6  Country Name
7  Country Code
8 Telephone with STD Area Code Number

9 Fax Number
10  Email Address
11 Website, if any

Triochem Products hiinitcd
4th Floor, Sanbava Chambers, Sir. P. M. Road, Fort
Mumbai

Maharashtra
400001

India

ue
(022) 22663150

(022) 22024657
www.invcstor@triochcml)roducts.com

www.triochcmDroducts.com

12  Name of the pohice station having jurisdiction where the Registered office is situated                        M, R. A. Mnge, Pchcc station

vi whether shares listed on recognized Stock ELchanges(s)
Details of the Stock Exchan es where shares are listed:

Sl. No.        Stock Exchan

1            BSE Limited oombay stock Exchange Linited)

vii Name and Address of Registrar & Transfer Agent (RTA)

1RTA

2 Address

3 Town / City
4  State

5  Pin Code
6 Country Name
7 Country Code
8 Telephone with STD Area Code Number

9 Fax Number
10 Email Addres
11 Website, if any

Yes

Stock Code(s)

512101

Mis. link Intime India Private himited
C - 101, 247 Park, L. 8. S. Marg, Vilholi Ovest), Murfui : 400083
Mumbai
Maharashtra
400083

Irfu
HVI)

(022) 49186270

(022) 49186060
rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

www.Iinkintime.co.in

11        pRINclpAL BuslNEss ACTIVITIEs OF Tlm coMPANy

All the business contributin 10% or more of the total tunover of the Com shall be stated:-
Sl.                                    Name and Description of main products / Services                                       NIC code of the         % to total turnover of

No.                                                                                                                                                                 Product / Services               the company

1      Manufacturing of chemical substances used in the manufacturing of pharmaceuticals                    24231

±i)

100%



EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2024

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Adminisfrotion) fulcs, 2014]
Ill      pArmcuIARs OF HOLDING, suBslDIARy AND AssOcIATE cOMPANIEs

Nil - Not applicable

IV      SIIAREHOIDING PATTERN (Equity share capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

A Category-wlsc Shacholding

Category of Shareholders

A     Promoters shacholding
1   Indian

a Individual / Hindu
Undivided Family

b Central Goverment
c State Govermcnt
d  Bodies Corporate
e  Bank / FI

f Any Other (Specify)
sub Total (A)(1)

2   Foreign
a NRI Individuals

b Other Individuals
c  Bodies Corporate
d Bank / FI
e Any Other (Specfty)

sub Total (A)(2)

Total Shacholding of
Promoters and Promoter
Group (A)=(A)(1)  +(A)(2)

8     Puunc shareholding

1   lustitutious
a Mutual Funds / url
b  Bank / FI
c Central Goverment
d State Government
e Venture Capital Funds
f Insurance Companies

8  FIIs
h  Foreign Venture Capital

lnvestors
i  Provident FundsAeusion

Funds

j Any other (specify)
sub Total (B)(I)

No. of shares hold at the beSnning of the      No. of shares hold at the end oftheycar (As
As on 01.04.2023 on 31.03.2024

%of

Change
Demat       Physical         Total        %oftotal        Demat       Physical        Total        %oftotal      duringthc

year

1,68,190                   0      1,68,190          68.649        1,68,190

0                  0                      0             0.00                        0

0                  0                      0             0.00                        0

0                  0                      0             0.00                        0

0                  0                      0             0.00                        0

0                  0                      0             0.00                        0

0      1,68,190          68.649

0                      0              0.00

0                      0              0.00

0                     0              0.00

0                     0              0.00

0                     0              0.00

1,68,190                   0      1,68,190         68.649        1,68,190                   0      1,68,190          68.649

0                  0                      0             0.00

0                  0                      0             0.00

0                  0                      0             0.00

0                  0                       0              0.00

0                  0                       0              0.00

0                  0                       0              0.00

1,68,190                   0      1,68,190         68.649

0              0.00

0             0.00

0             0.00

0                      0              0.00

0                      0              0.00

0                      0              0.00

0                      0              0.00

0                      0              0.00

0                 0                     0              0.00

1,68,190 0      1,68,190          68.649

0              0.00

0              0.00

0              0.00



EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2024

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Adrrinistration) Rules, 2014]

CategoryofShareholdcrs

2   Non-Institutions
a Bodies Corporate
i Indian

ii  Overseas

b  Individual
i  Individual Shareholders

holding nominal share
capital up to 1 lakh

ii Individual Shareholders
holding nominal share
capital in excess of 1 lakh

c Any Other (specify)

i Non-resident India

ii Overseas Coxporatc Bndies

iii  Foreign Nationals

iv NBFCs Resttered with RBI

v Trust
vi  Foreign Bndies

sub Total (8)(2)

Total public Sharcholding

(8)=(8)(1)+(8)(2)

C      Share held by custodians
for GDRs & AI)Rs

GRANI)TOTAL(A+B+C)

8 Sharcholding of Promoters

Sl.   Shareholder's Name

No.

1  Mr. Rajesh R. Deora

2  Mrs. Grace R. Deora

3  Mr. Ramu S. Deora

4  Mr. Rajiv R. Deora

5  Ranu M Deora HUF
Total

No. of Shares hold at the begivning of the

year (As on 01.04.2023)
Demat       Physical         Total        9/oof total

shares

36,000             250           36,250       14.7960

0                  0                      0        0.0000

13,710       14,850            28,560        11.6570

12,000                   0          12,000          4.8980

00

00

00

00

00

00

0        0.0000

0        0.0000

0        0.0000

0        0.0000

0        0.0000

0        0.0000

61,710       15,100            76,810          31.351

61,710       15,100            76,810          31.351

0.00            0.00                 0.00              0.00

2,29,900       15,100       2,45,000       100.000

Shareholding at the betlnning of the year

(As on 01.04.2023)

No. of          %of      %ofsharesplcdgcd/

No. of shares hold at the end of the year (As           % of
on 31.03.2024)                                     Change

Demat       Physical        Total        %oftotal      duringthe

year

36,000             250           36,250           14.796

0                  0                      0              0.00

13,690       14,850           28,540           11.649

12,000                   0          12,000             4.898

200

00

00

00

00

00

20         0.0080

0         0.0000

0         0. 0000

0         0.0000

0         0.0000

0         0.0000

61,710       15,100            76,810           31.351

61,710       15,100           76,810           31.351

0.00            0.00                0.00              0.00

2,29,900       15,100       2,45,000        100.000

Shareholding at the end of the year (As on
31,03.2024)

0.00

%of

Change in

No.of          %of       %ofsharespledged/     sharcholdi
Shares          total       encumbered to total         Shares          total        encumbered to total       ngduring

shares                  shares*

36,000       14.694

36,000       14.694

34,500       14.082

34,270       13.988

27,420        11.191

shares                 shares*                    the year

0            36,000       14.694

0           36,000       14.694

0            34,500       14.082

0            34,270       13.988

0             27,420        11.191

1,68,190       68.649                                             0        1,68,190      68.649                                              0

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Notes:

1  The term "encumbrance" has the same mcanjng as assigned to it in Regulation 28(3) of the SEBI (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011

£1



EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2024

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

C Change in Promoters' Shareholding

Sl.   Sharcholder's Name

No.

1  Mr. Rajesh R. Deora

At the be5nning of the year
At the end of the year

2  Mrs. Grace R. Deora

At the begivg of the year
At the end of the year

3  Mr, Rajiv R. Dcora

At the bectnning of the year
At the end of the year

4 Mr. Ranu S. Deora

At the begivning of the year
At the end of the year

5  Ranu M Deora HUF
At the begiming of the year
At the end of the year

Shareholding at the bcgivning of the year

No. of shares            % of total shares of
the company

36,000

36,000

36,000

36,000

34,270

34,270

34,500

34,500

27,420

27,420

14.694

14.694

14.694

14.694

13.988

13.988

14.082

14.082

11.192

11.192

Cumulative sharcholding during the year           Reason

(01.04.2023 to 31.03.2024)

No. of shares            % of total shares of
the company

36,000

36,000

36,000

36,000

34,270

34,270

34,500

34,500

27,420

27,420

Movement
14.694    duringthe

14.694    year-Nil

Movement
14.694    duringthe

14.694    year -Nth

Movement
13.988    during the

13.988    year -Nil

Movement
14.082    during the

14.082    year -Nfl

Movement
11.192    duringthe

11.192    year-Nil

Notes:

1  Date of increase / decrease has been considered as the date on which beneficiary position was provided by the Depositories to the
Company.

D Sharcholding pattern of top ten sharcholdcrs (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

Sl.   Shareholder's Name                                              Shareholding Cumulative Sharcholdin during the year
No.

1  G Amprhay
Pharmaceuticals Pvi Ltd

2 Triochem Laboratories Pvt
Ltd

3 Ambemath Plasto
Packagivg Pvt Ltd

4  Ramcsh Rajaran Patil

5  Rajkumar Shriniwas Bajoria
6 Vimla S. Sharma

7 Savitri Nareshchandra lain
8  Snchprabha Agarwal

9  N L Rungta HUF
10 Verma Shyan Sunder

No. of shares            % of total shares of
the company

12,000

12,000

12,000

12,000

7,200

2,500

2,500

2,500

2,000

1,800

No. of shares            % of total shares of
the company

12,000

12,000

12,000

12,000

7,200

2,500

2,500

2,500

2,000

1'800

Notes:

1  The shares of the  Company arc  not  traded in daily basis  and hence date wise  increase / decrease in shareholding is  not indicted.
Shareholding is consolidated based on PAN of the Shareholder.



EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2024

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Managcmcnt and Adminismtion) Riiles, 2014]

E Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl.   Shareholder's Name
No.

Irmors
1  Mr. Ramu S. Deora *

At the beSnhing of the year
At the end of the year

2  Mrs. Grace R. Dcora

At the begivng of the year
At the end of the year

3  Mr. Rajesh R. Deora

At the betlnning of the year
At the end of the year

4  Mr. Shyan S. Sharma

At the begnning of the year
At the cnd of the year

5  Mr. Sunil S. ]hunjhunwala

At the begivning of the year
At the end of the year

6 Mr. Gidsh Kumar Pungalla

At the begivning of the year
At the cnd of the year

Key Managerial Persormel

1  Mr. Ramu S. Deora *

At the begivning of the year
At the end of the year

Sharcholding at the begivning of the year

No. of shares            % of total shares of
the company

34,500                                  14.082

34,500                                   14.082

36,000                                  14.694

36,000                                 14.694

36,000                                  14.694

36,000                                  14.694

Cumulative sharcholding during the year           Reason

(01.04.2023 to 31.03.2024)

No. of shares            % of total shares of
the company

34,500

34,500

36,000

36,000

36,000

36,000

34,500                                  14.082                                  34,500

34,500                                  14.082                                  34,500

2 Mr. Puran]. Panar
At the betlnning of the year
At the end of the year

3  Ms. Ureca Shirish Shirole
At the beginning of the year
At the end of the year

Notes:

1  * Mr. Ramu S. Deora, Director has been indudcd in the list of Directors as well as KMP.

Movement
14.082     during the

14.082     year-Nil

Movement

14.694     duringthe

14.694     year-Nil

Movement
14.694     duringthc
14.694     year.Nil

Movement
-         duringthc
-         year-Nil

Movement
-         duringthe
-          year-Nil

Movement
-         duringthe
-          year-Nil

Movement
14.082     duringthe

14.082     year-Nil

Movement
-         duringthc
-          year-Nfl

Movement
-         duringthe
-          year -Nil



EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS 0N THE FINANCLEL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2024

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Conpanics (MaDagenent and Administration) Rules, 2014]
V         INDEBTEDNES S

Indebtedness of the company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for payment:                                                    Amount in Rs.

Secured I.oans             Uusecured Loans                   Deposits                    Total lndebtness

(Excluding deposits)

Indebtcdncs§ at the begivning of the financial year (As on 01.04.2023)
i        PrincipalAmount

ii      lntercstduebutnotpaid
iii     Interest accrued but not due
Total(i+ii+iii)

17

1717

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
i        Addition

ii      Reduction (repayment)

Nor Change

651                                                                                                                                                          651

666                                                                                                                               666
-15                                                                                                                                                                        -15

Indebtcdncss at the end of the financial year (As on 31.03.2023)
i        PrincipalAmount

ii       Interestducbut notpald

iii     Interest accrued but not due
Total(i+ii+iii) 22

VI       REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KFT MANAGERIAI, PERSONNEL                                                                                              Amount in Rs.

Sl.               Particulars of Remuncration              (A) Managivg Directors, Whole-      (B) Other Directors          (C) Key Managerial personnel
No.                                                                              time Directors and / or Manager CEO                 CS                  CFO

1       Gross salary (excluding commission)

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act,
1961

a) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the
Income-tax Act,1961

(c) Profit in tieu of salary u/s 17(2) of
the Income-tax Act,  1961

2      Stockoptions

3       SweatEquity

4      Commission
- as % of profit
• others, specify ....

5       Others -Employer contribution to

provident and other funds
Total (A)

Ceiling as per the Companies Act, 2013

VII     PENAI,TIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES (under the companies Act, 2013)

No penalties / punishment / compounding of offences were under Companies Act, 2013.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

•/€ -a-®-
race R. Deora

-

2,75,000

2,75,000-
Mumbai, 28th May, 2024

Director
DIN: 00312080

Ranu S. Deora
Director
DIN: 00312369



Annexure (C) to Board's Rep

0§                  Rqgf»f ctiofutif & Co.
Comprny Secretarte§
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FORM NO. MRd

SECRFTARIAL AUDIT REroRT

rok "E FINALNciAL yEIRA ENDED n* MARCH 2Oz4

\Pursirmt to Soctin 204(1) Of the Complmies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 Of the Companies
(Appointment and Renuncration Of Managerial Pcrsoi\nel) Rules, 2014\

To'
TIRE Membus,
TRIoalEh4 pRODucls LIMITED
4th Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P.M. Road
Fort Mumbai- 400 001.

We have conducted the seeretarial audit of the compliance of applinble statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices ty Triochm frodt]ds
Limited    (ChT:121219M111972PLC015544)    qereinafter   called    the    Company).
Secretarial Audit was condurfed in a marmer that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating  the  corporate  conducts/statutory  compliances  and  expressing  our
opinion thercon.

Based on our verification of Company's bocks, papers, minute bocks, forms and
rctums filed and other records maintained dy the Company and also the information

provided ly the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct Of senetarial audi(, we heredy lxport that in our opinion, the company
has,  during  the  audit  period  covering  the  Financial  Year 1*  April,  2023  to  31*
March, 2021 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliarmermechanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and strtyect to the reporting made hereinafter:

£b



We have examim`(1  th. httt.k8,  paftf`m,  mlniito twik8,  /t)rm€ and  refums filed and
other records n`ail`lAil`(`tl lay Trlorhem Produc(.   I,lmll.d ("th. Ct7mpany") for the
audit prrind t`w.rlt`8 Lh. Finflnrial Year 1* ^pr!l, 2023 fo 31of March, 2024 according
to tlm i`r`wlsit`ns t`f:

(i)     The comprnies Act, 2013 ("the Act") and the rules made thereunder;

(ii)    The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and  the rules made
thernder;

(iri)   The   tlepositories   Act,   1996   and   the   Regulations   and   Bye-laws   framed
theltrmder;

(iv)   Foreign Exchange Management Act,1999 and the Rules and Regulation lnade
there under to the extent of Exchange Commercial Borrowings;

(v)    The fonowing Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (`SEBI Act'):

a.  The  Securities  and  Exchange  Board  of   India  (Listing Obfigations  and
Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015

b.  The Securities and Exchange Board of hdia (Substantial Acqulsitiori Of
Shalies and Tckcovers) Regulations, 2011

c.   The  Securities  and  Exchange  Board  of  hdia  (Prohibition  Of  hsider
Trading) Reguhtiors, 2015

d.  The  Securities  and  Exchange  Board  of  hdia  (Issue  Of  Capital  and
Disclosure   Requirements)   Regulations,   2018   (Not  applicable  to   the
Company during the audit period);

e.  The  Seouities  and  Exchange  Board  Of  India  (Share  Based  Employee
Benefits) ReguJatious, 2014 (No( applicable to the Company durfug the
audit period);

f.   The Securities and Exchange Board of India (issue and Listing of Nor
Convertible   Securities)   Regulations,   2021;   (Not   Applicable   ae   the
Companyhonoti8ouedanydetiteectiriticoduringtheAudi(Period)

±1



9.   The  souiTiti.S  An.I  l{"l`Anfl.  m"rll  tt/  lnillfl  (Rpgl®mr.I  lo  an  I$8ue  and
.Shfln`  T`"I`sli`r ^Ri`nl.) Ri`R`ihlll`.`.,  ltml rrmrilinp, lhp "tmpani.a act and

`]onlil`8 w'"l` ``llonl.  (Not .|tpll.Ahl. .. lh. (`ompany  I. no. regl.tered a®
R.gt.rAl to an laeu. and Share TTan.I.r ^g.nl durln8 .h. flnan.lal y.ar
`ii`doT r.vlow);

1`.  Th. Sonirities and  Excliange Board  of lndia  (Delisting of rquity  Sharps)
Regulations,  2021  (Not  applicable  a8  the  Comf)any  hag  not deli®ted  jto
equity 8haree from any ®tock excl`ange during (he period under review)

i.    Securities   and   Exchange   Board   of   India   (Buy    Back   of   Securities)
Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable a. the Company ha. not bought back
any of itB 9ecuritie. during the period under review)

i.   The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories & Partidpants)
Regulations, 2018 qo the extent applicable);

I.  The  Securities  and  Exchange  Board  of  India   (Investor  Protection  and
Education Fund) Regulations, 2009;

We have relied on the reprtrmtation made try the Company and its Cfficers for
eyrstems  and  mchanism  fomed  dy  the Company  for  compliames  under  other
apprcable Acts, I.aws and Regulations to the Company.

We are Of the opinion that the management has complied with the fol)owing hws
apecifically applicable to the company:

1. Factories Act, 1948
2. Thigs and Cosmetics Act 1940
3. The Pharny Act 1948
4. Water (Prevention and Control of Ponution)Act, 1981
5. Air a'revention and Control of Pollution)Act, 1974
6. Minimum Wages Act, 1948

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(a) Secretarial Standards is6ued ty The IIDtitute of Company Secretaries of India.

Q>) The  Securities  and   Exchange   Board   Of  India     (Listhg  oungation  and
Disclosure  Requirements)  RegulatiorLs  2015    and  the  Listing  Agreements
entered into dy the Company with Stock Exchanges.

During the period under review the Company has comphed with the provisions of
the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, eke. as mentioned above.

£8



We fur(her report tl`At

The Bt"Ttl t.I tlir.`.t`m t.I  tlw (`t.mi.Any  1® (l`IIy mn®llliifo(I  with  prop.r I}alance of

Exc`"tiv.  "i`(`rt`rm,  Non-Ex<`outive  DiTerton  and   Tndopond.n(  I)lr..triro.  There
woro no ``l"ngos in (he composition of the Board of Directors (ha( took place during
th. (.c`rind under review were carried ou( in the compliance with the provjBion Of (he
A|1`

Adequate notice is given to all directors to Schedule the  Board  Meetings, and  the
same were sent at least seven days in advanee, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent at least Seven days before the date of Meeting, and a aystrm exists for
seeking and  obtaining further information and clarificatiorLs on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation a( the meeting.

We further report that tl`e Compliance try the Company of appheable Financial haws
like "rect & Indirect tax laws, Service tax has no( been reviewed in this audit since
the  same  has been sutbect to  review  by  the  statutory  financial  audit and  other
desigrmted profdsonals.

As  per  the  minutes  of  the  Board  duly  recorded  and  signed  try  thalrman,  the
decisions  of  the  Board  were  unaninous  and  no  dissenting  views  have  been
rcorded.

We further report that there are adequate eystems and prceesses in the company
commenstirate with size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, niles, regulation and guidelines.

We   ftirther   repor(   that   during   the   audit   period,   there   were   Ire   specific
events/actions having a major bearing on the Company's affiir in pursLiar`ce of of
the above refened hws, niles, regulations, guideline etc.

For Ragini Chokshi & Co.
(Company Secretaries)

EEEE:
Makarand Patwardhan

Partner)
C.P. No. 9031

Membership  No.11872
UDIN:A01187ZF000171199

Phie: Munbal
DarhR!.2B/ce|2M4
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AINNExuRE ro sECRFT^RI^L ^uDrr REroRT

T{`'

The Monbers,
TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
4th Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P.M, Road
Fort Mumbai- 400 001 .

0`ir report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.   Maintoance of Secretarial record is the reaponsibility of the Management of

the Company. Our resporsibhity is to express an opinion on these Secretarial

records based on our audit.

2.   We have fouowed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to

obtain reasonable  assLirance  about  the  correctness  of  the  contents  of the

Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that

correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the p":esses

and practices, we followed provide a reasomble basis for our opinion.

3.  We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records

and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4.  Wherever required, we have ohained the Management representation about

the compliance of hws, rules and regulations and happening of events eto.

5.   The compliance of the provision of Corporate and other applicable hws,

rules,  regulations,  standards  is  the  responsibility  of  Management.  Cia

examirmtion was limited to the verification of p]oedures on test basis.

6.   The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future vial)ilfty

of  the  Company  nor  of  the  efficaey  or  effectiveness  with  which  the

Mamgement has conducted the affirs of the Company.

Compel'y
Scoqfo
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Triochem Products Limited
Amual Report 2023 -2024                                                                                         Annexure (D) to Board's Report
CONSERVATION OF ENERGy, TECHNOLcoy ABsORp'rloN AND FOREIGN ExcHNAGE EENINGs AND OuTcO

[Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]
Disclosure  of additional  particulars as  required under the  Companies  (Disclosure of particulars  in  the  Report of Board  of Directors)
Rules,1988 forming part of the Directors' Report for the year ended 31st March 2024.

A         CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

During  the  year  under  report,  there  was  no  production  activities  carried  out  in  the  Company  and  therefore,  details  are  not
required to be given. (temporarily no manufacturing activity carried out during the current year)

b Utilising alternate sources of energy

1  Solar energy: Nil

2 Wind energy: Nil

c The capital investment on energy conservation cquipmcnt
Additional investments and proposals being implemented for Energy: Rs.Nil

d Impact of above measures on consumption of energy
During the year under report, there was no production activities carried out in the Company and therefore, details are not
required to be given.

e Power & fuel consumption
* Temporarily no manufacturing activity carried out during the current year.

8        TECHNOLOGy ABsORp'noN

a The efforts made by the Company towards technology absorption

b The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or inport Substitution

c ln case of imported technology (import during the last three years reckoned from the beornning of the financial year)

d The expenditure incurred on Researdi and Development

Not Applciable, since during the year under report, there was no production activities carried out in the Company and therefore,
details are not required to be given. (temporarily no manufacturing activity canned out during the current year)

C         FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Sl.   Particulars

No.

1  Earning : Export

2  0utgo : Import

3  0utgo : Bank Charges

Mumbal, 28th May, 2024

2023. 2024                     2022 -2023

Amount in Rs.               Amount in Rs.

On behalf of Board of Directors

/#D9r?-
Director

DIN: 00312080

Ranu S. Deora
Director
DIN: 00312369



Kanu  Doshi Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Mumbai Office : 203, The Summit, Hanuman Road,
Western Express Highway, vile Parie (E), Mumbai -400 057

•T : 022-2615 0100

Pune Office :  109, Sohrab Hall, 21  Sassoon Road,
Opp. Jehangir Hospital, Pune -411001.T : 0204906 7177

•  E  : info@kdg.co.in •W : www.kdg.co.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We   have  audited  the  Financial  Statements  of  TRIOCHEM   PRODUCTS   LIMITED  ("the
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,  2024,  and the Statement of
Profit and  Loss  (including  Other Comprehensive  Income),  Statement  of Changes  in  Equity
and Statement of Cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements,
including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as "the    Financial Statements").

In  our opinion and to the best of our information and  according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view, in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31,  2024,  and  its net loss including other comprehensive loss,  changes in equity and
its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section  143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements Section of our report.
We are  independent of the Company  in  accordance with the Code of Ethics  issued  by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with ethical requirements that are relevant
to  our  audit  of the      Financial  Statements  under  the  provisions  of the  Act  and  the  Rules
thereunder,  and we  have fulfilled  our other ethical  responsibilities  in  accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key  audit  matters  are  those  matters  that,   in  our  professional  judgment,  were  of  most
significance  in  our audit of the     Financial  Statements of the  current  period.  These  matters
were addressed  in the context of our audit of the  Financial  Statements as  a whole,  and  in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We
have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Other Information

The  Company's  Management  and  the  Board  of  Directors  are  responsible  for  the  other
information.  The  other  information  comprises  the  information  included  in  the  Company's
annual report, but does not include the Financial Statements and our auditors' report thereon.

inion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

i,1,I ln b a i

and we do not

with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read th
ion and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially incon
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Kanu  Doshi Associates  LLP                                                                                                                        Continuation sheet

with the    Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.  If,  based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is  a  material  misstatement of this  other information;  we are  required to  report that fact.  We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those charged with Governance for the   Financial
Statements

The Company's management and the Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated
in Section  134(5) of the Act with  respect to the preparation of these     Financial Statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, the financial performance, the changes
in  equity  and the  cash  flows  of the  Company  in  accordance  with the  accounting  principles
generally  accepted  in  India,  including  the  Indian  Accounting  Standards  (Ind  AS)  specified
under  Section  133  of  the  Act.  This  responsibility  also  includes  maintenance  of  adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application  of  appropriate  accounting  policies;  making  judgments  and  estimates  that  are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate   internal
financial  controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the  accounting  records,  relevant to  the  preparation  and  presentation  of the      Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from  material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In  preparing  the  Financial  Statements,  the  Management  and  the  Board  of  Directors  are
responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The  Board  of Directors  is  also  responsible for overseeing the  Company's financial  reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain  reasonable assurance about whether the Financial  Statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted  in accordance with SAs will  always detect a
material  misstatement when  it exists.  Misstatements  can  arise from  fraud  or error and  are
considered material if,  individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the  Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error,  design  and  perform  audit procedures responsive to those risks,  and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk  of  not  detecting  a  material  misstatement  resulting  from  fraud  is  higher than  for  one
resulting   from   error,   as   fraud   may   involve   collusion,   forgery,   intentional   omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•  Obtain  an  understanding  of internal  control  relevant to the  audit  in  order to  design  audit

procedures  that  are  appropriate  in  the  circumstances.   Under  section   143(3)(i)   of  the
Act,  2013,  we  are also  responsible for expressing  our opinion  on whether the

pany  has  adequate  internal  financial  controls  system   in   place  and  the
Companies

iveness of such controls.

te  the  appropriateness  of  accounting  policies  used  and  the  reasonabl
nting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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Kanu  Doshi Associates LLP Continuation  Sheet

•  Conclude  on  the  appropriateness  of  management's  use  of the  going  concern  basis  of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue  as  a  going  concern.  If we  conclude  that  a  material  uncertainty  exists,  we  are
required to  draw attention  in  our auditor's  report to the  related  disclosures  in the financial
statements  or,  if such  disclosures  are  inadequate,  to  modify  our opinion.  Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained  up to the date of our auditor's report.  However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•  Evaluate  the  overall  presentation,   structure  and  content  of  the  Financial  Statements,
including  the  disclosures,  and  whether the  financial  statements  represent  the  underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,  among other matters, the
planned  scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,  including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant  ethical  requirements  regarding  independence,  and  to  communicate  with  them  all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the  matters communicated with those charged with  governance,  we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the current
period  and  are therefore the  key audit matters.  We describe these  matters  in  our auditor's
report  unless  law  or  regulation  precludes  public  disclosure  about  the  matter  or  when,  in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report  because  the  adverse  consequences  of doing  so  would  reasonably  be  expected  to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.       As  required  by the  Companies  (Auditors'  Report)  Order,  2020  (the Order")  issued  by
the Central Government of India in terms of Section  143 (11) of the Act, we give in the
"Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,

to the extent applicable.

2.       As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we reportthat:

a)   We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our  knowledge  and  belief were  necessary for the  purposes  of our audit  of the
aforesaid Financial Statements.

b)   In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of
the  aforesaid  Financial  Statements  have  been  kept  by the  Company  so  far  as  it
appears from our examination of those books.

c)   The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income),  the Statement of Changes  in  Equity and the Cash  Flow Statement dealt
with  by this Report are in  agreement with the books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the Financial Statements.

d)    ln  our  opinion,  the  aforesaid   Financial  Statements  comply  with  the  Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
(Account)  Rules, 2014.
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e)   On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31,  2024  and  taken  on  record  by the  Board  of Directors,  none  of the  directors  is
disqualified  as  on  March  31,  2024 from  being  appointed  as  a  director  in  terms  of
Section  164(2) of the Act.

f)    With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of  the  Company  and  the  operating  effectiveness  of  such  controls,   refer  to  our
separate Report in "Annexure 8".

nMth respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with the requirements of section  197(16) of the Act, as amended, the company has
not paid any remuneration to the directors and thus provisions of Section 197 are not
applicable to the company.

h)   Vvith respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule  11  of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,  in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.     The  Company  has  disclosed  the  impact  of  pending  litigations  on  its  financial
position  in  its     Financial  Statements  (Refer Note.  21(a) to the  lnd As  Financial
Statements).

ii.    The  Company  did   not  have  any  material  foreseeable   losses  on   long-term
contracts including derivatives contracts.

iii.   There were  no amounts which were  required to be transferred to the  lnvestor
Education and Protection Fund by the company during the year ended March 31,
2024.

iv.   a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the
understanding,  whether recorded  in  writing  or otherwise,  that the  Intermediary
shall:

•     directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever ("ultimate Beneficiaries") by or on behalf of
the Company or

•     provide any guarantee, security orthe like to or on behalfofthe ultimate
Beneficiaries.

b.  The  management  has  represented,  that,  to  the  best  of  its  knowledge  and
belief,  no  funds  have  been  received  by  the  Company  from  any  persons  or
entities,  including  foreign  entities  ("Funding  Parties"),  with  the  understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

•     directly or indirectly,  lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in  any  manner whatsoever ("Ultimate  Beneficiaries")  by or on  behalf of
the Funding Party or

•     provide  any  guarantee,  security  or  the  like  from  or  on  behalf  of  the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropri
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to b

66
MUMBAI



Kanu  Doshi Associates  LLP                                                                                                                       Continuation sheet

that the representations under subclause (d) (i) and (d) (ii) contain any material
mis-statement.

v. The company has not paid any dividend during the year.

vi.  Based  on  our examination which  included  test checks,  the  Company  has  used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account, which has a feature of
recording  audit trail  (edit log) facility and the same  has operated throughout the
year for  all  relevant transactions  recorded  in  the  software.  Further,  we  did  not
come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN.  No.104746WAV100096

EL
Kunal Vakharia
Partner
Membership no.148916
UDIN: 24148916BKCQOG9855

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28th May, 2024
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ANNEXURE A TO THE AUDITOR'S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 1  of `Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in our
Report of even date on the accounts of TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED for the year ended
March 31, 2024

i.         (a)  (A)  The  company  is  maintaining  proper  records  showing  full  particulars  including
quantitative details and situation of Property, plant and equipment.

(8) The Company does not have any Intangible assets.

(b)   The  fixed   assets  of  the  company  are  physically  verified   by  the  Management
according to a phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period of
three  years,  which,  in  our opinion,  is  reasonable  having  regard  to the  size  of the
company and the nature of its assets.  Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the
fixed assets has been  physically verified  by the management during the year and
discrepancies noticed between the book records and the physical inventories were
not material and have been properly dealt with in the accounts.

(c)   According  to  information  and  explanations  given  to  us  and  on  the  basis  of  our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties
disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

(d)   According to the  information  and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination  of the  records  of the  Company,  the  Company  has  not  revalued  its
Property, plant and equipment during the year.

(e)   According  to  information  and  explanations  given  to  us  and  on  the  basis  of  our
examination  of the records of the Company,  there are no proceedings  initiated or
pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition
of Benami Property Transactions Act,1988 and rules made thereunder

ii.         (a)    During the year, the inventories have been physically verified by the management.
In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage
as  followed  by  management  were  appropriate.   No  discrepancies  were  noticed  on
physical verification  of inventories and the book records that were  10%  or more in the
aggregate for each class of inventory.

(b)    According  to  information  and  explanations  given  to  us  and  on  the  basis  of  our
examination  of the records of the Company,  there  is  no working capital availed  by the
company. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

iii.

IV.

b,,    I ,I,. t,` :i,

sec'urity  as  specified  uhder-Section   186  of  the  Companies  Act,  2013.   Further,

According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company,  the Company has  not made any investments,  provided
guarantee  or  security  or  granted  any  advances  in  the  nature  of  loans,   secured  or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the
register maintained under Section  189 of the Act.  Hence sub clauses (a) to (f)  of clause
3(iii) are not applicable to the Company.

According   to   information   and   explanations   given  to   us   and   on   the   basis   of  our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans,  or
provided any guarantee or security as specified  under Section  185 of the Companies
Act,  2013  and  the  Company  has  not  given  any  loans  or  provided  any  guarantee  or

has-complied with  provisions  of Section  186  of the Companies Act,  201
pect of investments made during the year.
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v.         The  Company  has  not  accepted  any  deposits  from  the  public  within  the  meaning  of
Sections  73,  74,  75 and  76  of the Act and the  rules framed there  under to the  extent
notified and therefore clause 3(v) is not applicable.

vi.        The central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records for the company
under sub Section (1 ) of Section  148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for any of the products
of the Company. Therefore, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

vii.         (a)   The  Company   is   regular  in   depositing  with   appropriate   authorities   undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund,  Employees' State Insurance,  Income Tax,
Customs Duty,  Cess,  Goods & Service Tax and any other material statutory dues
applicable to it and there were no arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(b)    According to the records of the Company, there are no dues of GST,  Income Tax,
Sales  Tax  and  Excise  Duty  which  have  not  been  deposited  on  account  of  any
dispute except disclosed below

The disputed amount that have not been deposited in respect of Income Tax is as under:

Sr. Name   of  the Nature of the dues Forum  where  the  dues Rs.  In Lakhs
No. Statute is pending

1. Income      tax Income tax Income  Tax  Appellate 3.21

Act,1961 Tribunal(A.Y.1993-1994)

Total 3.21

viii.       According  to  the  information  and  explanations  given  to  us  and  on  the  basis  of  our
examination  of  the  records  of  the  Company,  the  Company  has  not  surrendered  or
disclosed any transactions,  previously unrecorded as income in the books of account,  in
tax assessments under the Income tax Act,1961  as income during the year.

lx. (a)  According  to  the  records  of the  Company  examined  by  us  and  information  and
explanation given to us, the company has not taken any loan or borrowing from banks,
government, financial institution and has not issued debentures during the year.

(b)  According  to  the  information  and  explanation  given  to  us  and  on  the  basis  of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a
wilful  defaulter  by  any  bank  or  financial  institution  or  government  or  government
authority.

(c)  According to the  information  and explanations given to us by the  management,  the
Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, clause 3 (ix) (c ) of the Order
is not applicable.

(d) According   to   the   information   and   explanation   given   to   us   and   on   an   overall
examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on
short  term  basis  have  been  utilised  for  long  term  purposes.  Accordingly,  clause
3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(e)   According   to   the   information   and   explanation   given   to   us   and   on   an   overall
examinatian of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the

oes   not  have  any  subsidiary.  Accordingly,   clause  3(ix)(e)
plicable.

6q
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(f)   According   to   the   information   and   explanation   given   to   us   and   on   an   overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company
does   not  have  any  subsidiary.   Accordingly,   clause   3(ix)(f)   of  the  Order  is   not
applicable.

X.

Xl.

(a)  The  Company  has  not  raised  any  money  by  way  of  public  issue/  further  offer
(including  debt  instruments)  and  through  term  loans  during  the  year.  Accordingly,
clause 3 (x)(a) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

(b)  According  to  the  information  and  explanation  given  to  us  and  on  the  basis  of our
examinations  of  the  records  of  the  Company,  the  Company  has  not  made  any
preferential  allotment  or  private  placement  of  shares  or  fully  or  partly  convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(a)  Based  upon the audit procedures  performed and  information  and explanation given
by the  management,  considering  the  principles  of materiality  outlined  in  Standards  on
Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed
or reported during the year.

(b)  According to the information  and explanations given to  us,  no  report under Section
143 (12) of the Companies Act,  2013 has been filed by the auditors  in  Form ADT-4
as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government.

(c)  There were no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year.
Accordingly, clause 3(xi)(c)of the Order is not applicable.

xii.         In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the nature
of the activities of the company does not attract any special statue applicable to Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the order is not applicable to the company.

xiii.         According tothe information and explanation given to us, and based on ourexamination
of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance
with  See  177  and  188  of Companies Act,  2013 where  applicable  and  details  of such
transactions  have  been  disclosed   in  the  Financial  Statements  as  required   by  the
applicable accounting standards.

XIV.

XV.

Xvl.

(a)  Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures,  in
our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the
period under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based
on our examination of the records of the Company, the company has not entered into
any  non-cash transactions with directors or persons  connected with  him. Accordingly,
clause 3 (XIV) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The company is not required to be registered under Sec 45-lA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act,  1934.  Accordingly,  clause  3  (xvi)(a)  of the  Order is  not applicable  to the
Company.

The company is not required to be registered under Sec 45-lA of the Reserve Bank
f India Act, '1934. Acc6rdingly, clause 3 (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the

mpany.
1\1-  u  : ,,  .  I.1  il  1
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(c)  The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
is made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly,  clause 3 (xvi)(c) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(d)  According  to the  information  and  explanations  provided  to  us  during  the  course  of
audit, the Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, clause 3 (xvi)(d) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

xvii.       The  Company  has  incurred  cash  losses  in  the  current  year  as  well  as  immediately
preceding   financial   year   amounting   to   Rs.    124.03   Iakhs   and   Rs.    106.49   lakhs
respectively.

xviii.       There  has  been  no  resignation  of the  statutory  auditors  during  the  year.  Accordingly,
clause 3 (xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xix.       According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios,  ageing  and  expected  dates  of  realisation  of financial  assets  and  payment  of
financial   liabilities,   other   information   accompanying   the   financial   statements,   our
knowledge  of  the   Board   of  Directors   and   management  plans   and   based   on   our
examination  of  the  evidence  supporting  the  assumptions,  nothing  has  come  to  our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting  its   liabilities   existing   at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we  neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities  falling  due  within  a  period  of one  year from  the  balance  sheet date,  will  get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

XX. ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, section 135
(5) of the Companies Act,  2013 is not applicable to the company. Accordingly,  clauses
3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No:  104746WAV100096

EE
Kunal Vakharia
Partner
Membership No:  148916
UDIN: 24148916BKCQOG9855

Place:  Mumbai
Date: 28th May, 2024
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ANNEXURE 8 TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) of `Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section
of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of SubLsection 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act'')

We   have  audited  the  internal  financial  controls  over  financial   reporting  of  TRIOCHEM
PRODUCTS LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of
the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of  Chartered   Accountants   of   India   (`lcAl').   These   responsibilities   include   the   design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and  errors,  the  accuracy  and  completeness  of  the  accounting  records,  and  the  timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company`s internal financial controls over
financial  reporting  based  on  our  audit.  We  conducted  our  audit  in  accordance  with  the
Guidance   Note   on  Audit   of  Internal   Financial   Controls   over   Financial   Reporting   (the
"Guidance  Note")  and  the  Standards  on  Auditing,   issued  by lcAl   and  deemed  to  be

prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls both issued by the lcAl. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note  require that we  comply with  ethical  requirements  and  plan  and  perform  the  audit to
obtain   reasonable   assurance   about  whether  adequate   internal  financial   controls   over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial  controls system  over financial  reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our   audit   of   internal   financial   controls   over  financial   reporting   included   obtaining   an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of  internal  control  based  on  the  assessed  risk.  The  procedures  selected  depend  on  the
auditor's judgment,  including the  assessment  of the  risks  of material  misstatement of the
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company`s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

ompany's  internal  financial  control  over financial  reporting  is  a  process  designed
e   reasonable   assurance   regarding   the   reliability   of  financial   reporting   and
ation  of  Financial  Statements  for  external  purposes  in  accordance  with  gen
ed   accounting   principles.   A   Company's   internal   financial   control   over   fin

Ing  Includes  those  policies  and  procedures#at  (1)  pertain  to  the  maintena

to
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records   that,   in   reasonable   detail,   accurately   and   fairly   reflect   the   transactions   and
dispositions   of   the   assets   of  the   Company;   (2)   provide   reasonable   assurance   that
transactions are recorded  as  necessary to permit preparation  of     Financial  Statements  in
accordance   with    generally    accepted    accounting    principles,    and    that    receipts    and
expenditures  of the  Company  are  being  made  only  in  accordance  with  authorizations  of
management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention   or  timely   detection   of  unauthorized   acquisition,   use,   or  disposition   of  the
Company's assets that could have a material effect on the   Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because  of  the  inherent  limitations  of  internal  financial  controls  over  financial  reporting,
including the possibility of collusion  or improper management override of controls,  material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation  of the  internal  financial  controls  over  financial  reporting  to  future  periods  are
subject  to  the  risk that  the  internal  financial  control  over financial  reporting  may  become
inadequate  because  of changes  in  conditions,  or that the  degree  of compliance  with  the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
\-

ln our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the  Company  has,  in  all  material  respects,  an  adequate  internal financial  controls  system
over  financial  reporting  and  such  internal  financial  controls  over financial  reporting  were
operating  effectively  as  at  31St  March,  2024,  based  on  the  internal  control  over financial
reporting  criteria  established  by  the  Company  considering  the  essential  components  of
internal  control  stated  in  the  Guidance  Note  on  Audit  of  Internal  Financial  Controls  Over
Financial Reporting issued by the lcAl.

For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN.  No.104746WAV100ra
Kunal Vakharia
Partner
Membership no.148916          .-a
UDIN: 24148916BKCQOG9855

place:  Mumbai
Date:  28th May,  2024
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

(GIN: I,24249MH1972PLC015544)
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

Pardculars

ASSETS

( 1 )  Non - Current Assets

( a )  Property, plant and equipment
( b )  Investment property
( c )  Financial assets

(i) Non current investments

(ii) Other financial assets

( d )  Deferred tax Assets

( c )  Other non - current assets
Total Non- Cument Assets

( 2 )  Current Assets

( a )  Inventories

( b )  Financial assets

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

(ii) Other financial assets

( c )  Other tax assets

( d )  Other current assets
Total Ctnent Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY ANI) I.IABILITIES

EQUITY

( a )  Equity share capital

( b )  Other equity
Total Equity

LLaelLITIEs

( 1 )  Current Liabilities

( a )  Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings

(ii) Trade payables

( b )  Other current liabilities

( c )  Provisions

( d )  Current tax hiabilities
Total Current Iiabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

I

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.
For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Fin Reesmtion No.:

EZE
Kunal Vakharia
Parther
Mcmbcrship No.: 148916    `*£ifi

uppceFEi&alL`\Sq\t@tJapolqQj5T

Dated: 28th May, 2024

I:,.i:::I'"''''':'i"I;`,:'l"I"i"I,"',I;;11,,;:;11",I:''''1:,,I,:1',"`,Ill:I:11,I;:;11

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Z?r- a. 9t>e5t-
Grace R Deora
Drmor (DIN: 00312080)

Ramu S. Deora
Director (DIN: 00312369)
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:otry\`G-
Puran Parrm
Chief Financial Officer



TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

(CIN: I,24249MH1972PLC015544)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND I,OSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Particulars

1         Revenue fromoperatious
11        Other income

Ill      Total Income (I+II)

IV      Expenses
Cost of material consumed
Employee benefit expenses

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expenses

Other expenses
Total a_es (n)

V       Profit before exceptioml items and tax  (Ill-IV)
VI       Add: Exceptional Items

VII     Profit before tax ov+VI)

VIII    Less: Tax cxpeuse

(1) Cunent tax
ofCunentyear
ofEarlieryears

(2) Deferred tax
ofCunentyear

Total tax expense OTII)

IX      Profit after tax (VII-VIII)

X       Other compr€heusivc inconc
a(i) Items that will  be reclassified to profit or loss

a(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

b(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

b(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Total other comprehensive income for the year

XI      Total comprcheusive income for the year (K+X)

Earning per equity share (Face value of Rs.10/-each)

(1) Basic (in Rs.)

(2) Diluted (in Rs,)

Summary of significant accounting pdicies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

For Kanu Doshi Associates I,LP

: i;,;::L,,I:,,il,,,,,,,I;,,,i,lli`,,:;:I;,,;I",1,,,;11;:::I",,",I:,,:,;,11;::,I,,,,

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

7rEL ELD¢rfu   L`EL
Grace R. Dcora
Director (DIN: 00312080)_.-
Ranu S. Dcora

¥ha3epMnLal"L8q\6C3kcgo+q8&!rmor(DIN:co312%»
Dated: 28th May, 2024                                                                    |S

;;,jjl,::;;,Ii,,lil,,I,",:„",I,:;:11::,Ill::,;;I",,,I;,:,jll`i:I,,:,,I:,;,,11,,;,;;I,,,,

Puran Pa-
Chief Financial Officer



TRIOCIIEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

(CIN: I,24249hnl 1 g72PI,C015 544)
CASH FLow sTATmmNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAncH 31, 2o24

A   CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit before tax and Extraordinary Items
Adjustment for :

Depreciation/Amortisation
Interest Income
Dividend income on investment
Reclassification of remeasurement of employee bencfits
Uurealised gainAoss on investment
Interest Expenses

Sundry balance whtten back
Investment Expenses

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CIIANGES

AD]US"ENTS FOR WORKING CAPITAL CIIANGES :

IncreaseDecrease in Assets

Changes in Inventories
Increaseoecrease Trade Receival)le
Increaseroecrease in other financial and non-financial assets

Increaseroecrease Trade payables

Increaseroecrease in other financial and non.financial liabilities
lncreaseDecrease in hiabilities

Changes in Provision

Cash Generated from Operations

Direct taxes paid / (refund)

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

8)  CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Investment

Sale of Investment
Investment Expenses

Dividend income on investment

Interest Received

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIvlrv

C)  CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net (Decrease)/ Increase in Short Term Borrowings
Interest Paid

NET CASH USED IN FINANclNG ACTlvlrv

NET CIIANGES IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS(A+ 8 + C)

OPENING BAIANCE OF CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

CLOSING BAIANCE OF CASH & CASH EQ

2023-2024

(133.00)

8.97

(0.61)

(19.36)

(0.07)

(24.04)
0.00

(3.95)

0.29

(137.39)

(38.77)

(171.77)

0.01

(58.77)

(1.48)

(0.02)

0.36

(197.29)

(369.06)

(320.30)

(6.56)

(375.62)

634.44

(0.29)
19.36

0.31

(0.00)

333.52

333.52

(0.00)

(0.00)

(0.00)

(42.10)

95.91

5rfu;
(ffl( '

[Rs. in hkhs]
2022-2023

(116.99)

10.50

(18.09)

0.07

(9.01)

0.00

0.02

0.83

(6.37)(2.35)

(15.68)

(132.67)

1.40

(0.24)

(0.01)
1.43

(6.14)

(138.81)

(996.66)

35.99

(102.82)

(0.83)

15.30

0.00

(982.19)

(982.19)

(0.00)

•_  '`.

(0.00)

(0.00)

(1,085.01)

1,180.92

oG'-u.? 95.91
J\ +~'

(1,085.01)



TRIorllEM pRODucTs LIMITED

(CIN: I.24249MH1972PLC015544)
CASH FLOW SThT"ENT FOR TIE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Notes

Closin£Baalanneeofcash&CashEquivalents

1  Cash and Cash Equivalents lndudes: Qefer Note No 10)

CASH IN -
BAIANCE WITII SCHEDULED  BANKS
- In Current Account

- In Fixed Deposit (including Accrued Interest)

2023.2024

(Rs. in lds]
2022-2023

2  The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" set out in Accounting Standard 3 - Cash Flows Statement.

3 Previous year figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever considered necessary to make them comparable with those of the
current year.

As per our report of even date attached.
For Kanu Doshi Associates I,LP
Chartered Accountants
Fin Registration No. : 104746WW100096

EEE
Kunal Vakharia
Partner
Membership No.: 148916

Vp¥:HM`in2b± \\€q\6Qkc_9c>trq8ts
Dated: 28th May, 2024

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

fails- ¢t-
Grace R. Dcora                                  Puran parmar
Director (DIN: 00312080)                 Chief Financial officer

I ~ \\rAroucts
Ramu s. Deora                                   Ureca Dcolckar
Director (DIN: 00312369)                 Company secretary



A Equity Share Capital

TRlaclmM pRODCuTS LIMITEI)

(GIN: L24249MH1972PLC015544)
STATEMENT OF CIIANGE IN EQUITY FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

[Rs. in fakhs]

Particulars No. of Shares Amount

Balance as at 31st March, 2022 (Face Value of Rs.10/-each) 2,45'0002,45'0002,45'000 24.5024.5024.50

Changes in equity share capital during the year

Balance as at 31st March, 2023

Changes in equity share capital during the year

Balance as at 31st March, 2024

8. Oncr Equity

Particuho Reserves and Suplus Oncr itcus of Onercomprchensivcincome Total
CapitalReserve GeneralReserves RetainedEarnings

Remcas-entofnetdefinedbenefitplans Fair ValuethroughOnerComprdusivcIncomeofEquityInvcstmcnts

Balance as at 31st March, 2022 0.040.040.04 177.86177.86177.86 1,102.92 (0.66)0.06(0.61)(0.05)(0.66)

(56.49)

1,280.16

Profit for the year (88.51)1,014.42 (88.51)
Remeauremcnts of Defined Benefit Plan 0.06

Fair Value effect of Investments of shares (56.49)

Balance as at 31st March, 2023 (56.49)403.68(81.90)265.Z9 1,135.22

Profit for the year (101.33)81.90994.99 (101.33)

Remcauremcnts of Defined Benefit Plan (netofdeferredtax)FairValueefectofInvestmentsofshares(netofdeferredtax)TransferofrealisedgainAossonsaleofequityshares(netoftax)Balanceasat31stMarch,2024 (0.05)403.681,437.52

As per our report of even date attached.
For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Fin ReSstration No.: 104746

J4
Kul Vakharia
Partner
Membership No.: 148916

up:c:#Ei\i8Q\bskapc>tQQ&
Dated: 28th May, 2024

%n¥;f:ndi-irsap¢~
Grace R. Deora                                    Puran pamar
Dhaor (DIN: 00312080) Chief Financial Officer

.``.....`

Ramu s. Dcora                                     Ureca Dcolekar
Director (DIN: 00312369)                   Company sccrctary

ng



TRIOuHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes to the finandal statements for the year ended March 31, Z024

1      Company overview

Triochem Products Iinitcd  (the "Company') is an existing public limited company incorporated on 17/01/1972 under the provisions of the
Indian Companies Act,  1956 and deemed to exist within the purview of the Companies Act,  2013, having its rcgivcred office at 4th Floor,
Sambava Chamber,  Sir P.  M.  Road,  Fort, Mumbal - 400 001.  It has been cngagcd primarily in the business of manufacturer and apor(er of

pharmaceuticals products, Apls and chemicals. The equity shares of the Company are listed on BSE Iinited ("BSE). The financial statements
are presented in Indian Rupee (€).

2      Significant accounting policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements. Thcsc pdicies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

A     Basis of preparation offinancm statement

The  financial  statements  Complies  in  all  material  aspects with  Indian Accounting Standards  and AS)  notified   under the Companies

¢ndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act') and other
relevant provisions of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 28th May, 2024.

These  financial  statements  are  presented  in  Indian  Rupees  aNR),  which  is  also  the  functional  currency.  All  the  amounts  have been
rounded off to the nearest Lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

8     Use of estimates and judgements

The  preparation  of financial  statements  requires  management  to  make  judgments,  estimates  and  assumptions  in  the  application  of
accounting policies  that  affect  the  reported  amounts  of assets,  ljabflities,  income  and expenses.  Actual  results  may differ from these
estimates.  Continuous evaluation is done on the estimation and judgments based on historical experience and other factors, including

apectatious of future events that are believed to be reasonal)le. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognisod prospectively.

C     Current and non{ument classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or noneurrent as per the Company's operating cycle and other criteria set out in
the  Schedule  Ill  to  the  Companies Act,  2013.  Based  on  the  nature  of prnducts  and  the  time  between  the  acquisition  of assets  for

processing and their realisation in cash  and cash equivalents,  the Company has  ascertained its operating cycle  as  12  months  for the
purpose of current - non-current classification of assets and lial)flities.

D    Foreign currmcy translation

i Functional and pre§cntation currency
Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primry economic environment
in which the Company opcratcs (`thc functional ourrency'). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is
Company's functioml and presentation currency.

ii Transactions and balances

Foreign currency trausactious are translated into the functioml currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the trarLsactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the scttlcment of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss.  All the foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of Profit and I.oss on a net basis within other expenses or other income as

applicable.

E     Property, plant and equipment

i Freehold land is carried at historical cost including expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the land.

ii All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost indudes apenditure that is
directry attributable to the acquisition of the items.

ffi Subsequent  costs  are  included  in  the  asset's  carrying amount  or recognised  as  a separate  asset,  as  appropriate,  only when  it  is

probal]le that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carr)ring amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintemnce are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

iv Cost of Capital Work in Progress (`CWIP') comprises amount paid towards acquisition of property, plant and cquipmcnt outstanding
as of each balance sheet date and construction expenditures, other expenditures necessary for the purpose of preparing the CWIP
for it intended use and borrowing cost incurred before the qualifying asset is ready for intcndcd use. CWIP is not depreciated until
such time as the relevant asset is completed and ready for its intended use.

if



TRIorlmM pnoDucTs LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended Marl 31, 2024

v Depreciation methods, estinated useful lives and residual value

(a) Fined assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

a)  Depreciation is  provided on a whtten down value method at the rates and manner as prescribed under Schedule 11 to the
Companies Act, 2013. The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in the Statement of Profit and toss, unless it is included
in the carrying amount of any other asset. The useful life, residual value and the depreciation method are reviewed atleast at each
financial year cnd.  If the expectations difer from previous estimates, the changes are accounted for prospectively as a change in
accounting estimate.

vi Tanctble assets which are not ready for their intended use on reporting date are carried as capital work-in-progress.

vii The residual values are not more than 5% of the origival cost of the asset.
An asset's canying amount is whtten down immediately to its recoverable amount if the assct's carrying amount is grcatcr than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Estimated  useful  lives,  residual  values  and  depreciation  methods  are  reviewed  annually,  taking  into  account  cormcrcial  and
technolotlcal obsolescence as well as normal wear and tear and adjusted prospectivcly, if appropriate.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss
within other expenses or other income as applical)le.

F     Investment property

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Company, is classified
as Investment property.  Investment property is measured initially at its cost,  including related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs.  Subsequent expenditure  is capitalised to  the asset's carr)ring amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance costs  arc  expeused when incurred,  When part  of an  investment  property is replaced,  the carr}ing amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. Investment properties (except frcchold land) are depreciated using the Written down value method over
their estimated useful lives at the rates prescribed under Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013.

G     Intantlblc assets

i An  intangivle  asset  shall  bc  recognised  if,  and  only if:  (a)  it  is  probable  that  the  apected  future  economic  benefits  that  are
attributal)le to the asset will flow to the Company and a) the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

ii Computer software  is capitalised where it is expected to provide future enduring economic benefits.  Capitalisation costs include
licence fees and costs of implementation / system integration services.  The costs are capitalised in the year in which the relevant
software is implcmented for use, The same is anortised over a period of 3 years on straight-line method.

H    Borrowhgcust

i Borrowings  are  initially  recognised  at  fair value,  net  of transaction  costs  incuncd.  Borrowings  are  subsequently  measured  at
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is rccogniscd in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings using the  effective interest  method.  Fees  paid  on the  estal)lishment  of loan facilities  are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probal)le that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prcpayment for liquidity services and anortised over the perind of the facility
to which it relates.

ii Borrowings are classified as current financial liabilities unless the group has an unconditioml right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan armgemcnt on
or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that the lial]ility becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the
entity docs not classfty the lial)ility as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial
statements for issue, not to demand pryment as a consequence of the breach.

I      Income tax, deferred tax and dividend distribution tax

The Income tax apcnse or credit for the year is the tax payable on the current year's taxable income based on the apphicable income tax
rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax tosses.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other
comprehensive income, in which case it is recognised in equity or other comprehensive income respectively.

i Cument income tax

Current tax
enacted or

periodic
lnteapret

ed on taxable profit for the year.`--``.

It establishes
fityluty:-n.A!

The tax rates and tax laws used to com
d, at the reporting date where the Company operates

ln  tax  returns  with  respect  to  sifuatlous  in
ous where appropriate on the basis of amounts

8i,

ute the amount are those that are
le income. Management

gulation  is subject  to
tax authorltics.



TRloclmM pRODuCTS LIMITED

Notes to the finandal statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Current tax assets and tax lial)ilitics are offiet when there is a legally cnforceablc right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liar)ilities and Company intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

ii Defened tax

Deferred tax is provided using the lial)ility method on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carr}ing amounts in the financial statements at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets are rccognised to the extent that it is

probable  that  future  taxable  income  will  be  availal)le  against  which  the  deductible  temporary  differences,  unused  tax  losses,
depretlation carry-forwards and unused tax credits could be utilised.

Deferred income tax is  not accounted  for if it arises from initial  recognition of an  asset or liability in a mnsaction other than a
business combimtion that at the time of the transaction affects ncithcr accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

Deferred tax assets and Lial)hities arc measured based on the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is
rcalised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been emcted or substantively crLacted ly the balance
sheet date.

The carr)ring amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect changes in probability that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Dcferrcd income tax assets and liabhities are off-set against each other and the resultant net amount is presented in the Balance
Sheet, if and only when,  (a) the Company has a legally cnforceal)le right to setoff the current income tax assets and liabilities, and

a) the deferred income tax assets and lial)ilities relate to income tax levied ly the sane taxation authority.

Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recogniscd as an asset only when and to the cxtcnt there is convincing cvidencc that the company
will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carr)ing amount
of the MAT credit asset is whtten down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will

pay nomal income tax during the specified period.

]      Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are inclusive of excise
duty and net of returns,  trade discount taxes and amounts collected on behalf of third parties.  The Company recognises revenue as

I  Sales

(i) The Company recognizes revenue from sale of goods when:

(a) The significant risks and rewards of ownership in the goods are transferred to the buyer as per the terms of the contract, which
coincides with the dcljvery of goods.

a)  The  Company retains  neither  continuing managerial  involvement to  the  degree  usually associated with  the  ownership  nor
effective control over the goods sold.

(c) The amount of revenue can be reliably measured.

(d) It is probable that future economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company.

(e) The cost incurred or to bc inourrcd in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

(f) The company bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and
the specifies of each arrangement.

Effective  April  1,  2018,  the  Company  has  applied  End  AS  115  which  estal)lishes  a  comprehensive  framework  for  detemihing
whether,  how much and when revenue is to be recognised.  Ind AS  115 replaces Ind AS  18 Revenue and lnd AS  11  Cousmction
Contracts. The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 using the cumulative effect method. The effect of initially applying this standard is
recognised at the date of initial application (i.e. April 1, 2018). There are no material inpact on revenue recogivtion by applyng this

11 Oner income

(i) Interest income
Interest income from debt iustrumcnts is recogniscd using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exacdy discounts estimated future cash receipts though the expected life of the finandal asset to the gross carrgivg amount of a
financial  asset.  When  calculating  the  effective  interest  rate,  the  group  estimates  the  expected  cash  flows  by considering  au  the
contractual terms of the financial iustrumcnt (for cmmple, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider
the expected uedit losses.

(ii) Dividends
Dividends are reco
benefits associa

¥#.i,

or loss only when the right to receive payment is established,  it is probable that the ccononric
nd will flow to the group, and the amount of the

8\

measund reliably.



TRIorlmM pRODucTs LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended Mach 31, 2024

(ffi) Expr( benefits
Export incentives are accounted for on export of goods if the entitlements can be estimated with rcasomble accuracy and conditions

prcccdcnt to clain are fulfilled.

K     Inventories valuation

i Raw materials, components, stores & spares, packing material, semi-finished goods & finished goods are valued at lower of cost and
net realisal>le value.

ii Cost of Raw Materials,  components,  stores & spares and packing material is arrived at Weighted Average Cost and Cost of  semi-
finished good  and finished good comprises, raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production overhcads.

ffi Scrap  is valued at net realisablc value.

iv Due  allowances  are  made  in  respect  of  slow  moving,  non-moving  and  obsolete  inventories  based  on  estimate  made  by  the
Management.

L     Impaiment of Assets

lntangivle  assets that have  an  indefinite  useful life are  not subject to  amortization  and are tasted annually for impaiment or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impaiment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, An impaiment loss is recogniscd for the
amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.  The recoveral)le amount is the hither of an asset's fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of asscssing impaiment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there  arc separately identifiable cash  inflows which  are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets

(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered inpairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the cnd of
each reporting period.

M    Fair value Measurement

The  Company  measures  certain  financial  instruments  at  fair value  at  each  balance  sheet  date.  Fair value  is  the  price  tha( would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabihity in an orderly transaction between market participants at the meastirement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the trarLsactlon to sell the asset or transfer the liarmty takes place either:

•  In the principal market for the asset or liabhity, or

-  In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The  principal  or the  most  advantageous  market  must  be  accessible  by the  Company.  The  fall value  of an  asset or a lial]hity is
measured  using  the  assumptions  that  market  participants  would  use  when  pricing  the  asset  or  hial)flity,  assuming that  market

participants act in their economic best interest.

A fur value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to gcncratc economic benefits by
using the asset in its hichest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its hichcst and
best use.

The Company uses valuation  techniques  that are  appropriate  in the circumstances  and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobscrval]le inputs.

All assets and lial]hities for which fair value is measured or disdosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value mcasurcmcnt as a whole:

Level 1 :  Quoted (unadi.usted) prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets

Level 2:  Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are directly or indirectly observable

Level 3:  Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are unobscrvable

For assets  and lial)ilities  that  are  recognised  in the  financial  statements  on  a recurring basis,  the  Company determines whether
transfers  have  occuned  between levels  in the  hierarchy by re-assessing categorization  ®ased  on  the  lowest  level  input  that  is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the  purpose  of fair value disdosurcs,  the Company has determined classes of assets & lial)ilities on the basis of the  nature,
characteristics and the risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fall value hierarchy as explained above.

N     Financial lnstniment

a    Recognition, classification and presentation

The financial instruments arc rccognised in the balance sheet when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

The Company catlon of its financial instruments at initial

81



TRlorlmM pRODucTs LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

The Company classifies its  financial assets in the following categories:  a) those to be measured subsequently at fair value  (either
through other comprehcusive income, or through profit or loss), and b) those to be measured at amortized cost. The chssification
depends on the entity's business model for managivg the financial assets and the conmctual terms of the cash flows.

Financial  assets  and  liabhities  arising  from  different  transactions  are  off-set  against  each  other  and  the  resultant  net  amount  is

presented  in the balance sheet,  if and  only when,  the  Company currcndy has  a legally enforceable richt to setoff the  related
recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,

b   Mcasurment

(A) Initial measurement
At initial recognition, the Company measures financial instruments at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fur
value  throuch  profit  or  loss,  transaction  costs  that  are  directly  attributable  to  the  acquition  of the  financial  assets.  Otherwise
transaction costs are expeused in the statement of profit and loss.

(8) Subsequent mcasurencnt . financial assets
The subsequent measurement of the financial assets depends on their classification as fonows:

(i) Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Assets  that  are  held for collection  of contractual  cash  flows where  those  cash  flows  represent solely payments  of principal  and
interest are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (`EIR') method (if the impact of discounting / any transaction
costs is significant). Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income.

(ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprcheusive income (`FVTOul')
Equity investments which are not held for mding and for which the Company has elected to present the change in the fair value in
other comprehensive income and debt instruments that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the fimncial
assets, where the assets' cash flow represent solely payment of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCI,

The  changes in fair value  are taken through  OCI,  except for the impaiment,  interest  Oasis FIR method),  dividend and foreign
exchange differences which are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

When the financial asset is derccognjzed, the related accumulated fair value adjustments in OCI as at the drte of derecognition are
reclassified from equity and recognised in the statement of profit and loss.  However, there is no subsequent redassification of fair
value gains and losses to statement of profit and loss in case of equity instruments.

(iii) Financial assets at fair value throuch profit or loss (`FVTPL')
All equity instruments and financial assets that do  not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVTOul are measured at fair value
throuch profit or loss. Interest Oasis FIR method) and dividend income from FVTPL is recognised in the statement of profit and loss
within finance income / finance costs separately from the other gainsAosses arising from changes in the fur value.

Impincnt
The company asscsses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortized cost and
debt instrument carried at FVTOCI. The impaiment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase
in  credit  risk  since  hitial  recognition.  If credit  risk  has  not  increased  significantly,  twelve  month  ECL  is  used  to  provide  for
impairment loss, othcrwisc lifetine ECL is used.

However, only in case of trade receivables, the company applies the sinplified approach which requires apected lifetime lasses to
be recognized from initial recognition of the reccivables.

(c) Subsequent measurement . financial liabilities
Other financial hiabilities are initiany recognised at fair value less any directly attributal]le transaction costs. They are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the EIR method (if the impact of discounting / any transaction costs is significant).

c   Dc-recogivtion

The financial lial)hities  are de-recogniscd from the balance sheet when  the under-lying obligations  arc  extinguished,  discharged,
lapsed,  cancelled,  cxpircs  or  legally released,  The  financial  assets  are  de-recognised  from  the  balance sheet when  the  rights  to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have cxpircd, or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
lial]ility or equity instrument of another entity.

0    Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equi
of three months
value.

udes cash in hand, deposits with banks, other short term hichly liquid investments with origival maturities



TRIorlmM pRODucTs I"ITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows,  cash and cash equivalents includes outstanding bank overdraft shown
within current liabilities in statement of financial balance sheet and which are considered as integral part of company's cash manngemcnt

policy.

P     Invesments

Equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recogniscd in Chher Comprehensive Income, except for those mutual
fund for which the Company has elected to present the fair value changes in the Statcmcnt of Profit and Ius.

Q     Trade receivablcs
Trade  receivablcs  are  recognised initially at their fur value  and subsequently measured  at  anortised  cost using the  effective  interest
method, less provision for expected credit loss.

R     Trade and other payables

These amounts represent hiabflities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which arc unpaid,
Trade and other payablcs are rccognised, initially at fair value, and subsequently measured  at amortised cost using effective interest rate
method.

S      Provisions, contingent lial)ilitics and contingent assets

i Provisions:

A provision is recognized, when company has a present obligation aegal or constructive) as a result of past events and it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the omgation, in respect of which a reliable
estimate can be made for the amount of obligation. The expcusc relating [o the provision is presented in the profit and loss net of
any reimbursement.

If the  effect  of the  time  value  of money  is  material,  provisions  are  discounted  using  a  current  pre.tax  rate  that  reflects,  when

appropriate, the risks specific to the liabhity. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost.

ii Contingent habihity

A contingent lial]ility is a possible obhigatlon that arises from past events whose existence will be confined by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not
recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the oRAgation. A contingent liability also
arises  in  extremely rare  cases where  there  is  a  hiability that  cannot  be  recognized  because  it  cannot  be  measured  rdial)ly.  The
Company does not recognize a contingent lial)ility but discloses its existence in the financial statcmcnts.

Contingent liabilities, if material, are disdosed by way of notes and contingent assets, if any, are disdosed in the notes to financial
statements.

ifi Contingent Assets

Contingent Assets are disdosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probal)lc.

T     Eamingspcrshare

i Basic camings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

- the profit attributablc to owners of the Company; and

- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year,  adjusted for bonus elements in equity

shares issued during the year.

fi lmuted camings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjust the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:

• the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares; and

- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dflutive

potential equity shares.

U    I~Accounting
As  a  lessee,  the  Company  previously  classified  leases  as  operating  or  finance  leases  based  on  its  assessmcn(  of whether  the  lease
transferred significantly all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset to the Company. Under End AS 116,
the Company recognizes right of use assets and lease liabilities for most leases i.e. these leases are on balance sheet.

as applied following practical expedients :

e to a porfollo of leases of slmllar assets in similar ccono

Sl'

sndar cnd date.
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ii Applied the cxpemption not to recognise rightof-use-assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease term on the
date of transition.

ffi Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of -use-asset at the date of transition.

iv Grandfathered the assessment of which transactions are, or contain leases. Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is applied only to contracts that
were previously identified as leases under End AS 17.

v Relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous, appl]ing lnd AS 37 immediately before the date of initial application as an

alternative to performing an impairment review.

vi Used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or teminate the lease.

V     Employcc benefits

i Short-tcm obhigatious

Liabilities for wages, salaries and leave encashment including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled whofty within 12
months after the cnd  of the period in which the employccs  render the related service are recogniscd in respect of employees'
services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabdities are settled.
The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

ii Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for earned leave are not expected to be settled wholly within  12 months atcr the cnd of the period in which the
employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in
respect  of services  provided by employees  up to  the end  of the reporting period  using the  projected unit credit method.  The
benefits are discounted using the appropriate market wields at the end of the reporting period that have tcms approximating to the
terms of the related  obhigation.  Remeasuremcnts as a result of experience adjustments and changes  in actuarial assumptions are
recogrised in profit or loss.

The obligations are prescntcd as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditioml richt to defer
settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

ffi Postenployment omgatious

The group operates the following postenployment schemes:

a Defined benefit gratuity plan:

Gratuity  and  I.Cave  encashment  which  are  defined  benefits  arc  accrued  based  on  actuarial  valuation  working  provided  by
Independent actuary. The Contribution is charged to profit and loss.

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan. The defined benefit obligrtion is calculated annually
as per the report on independent actuay. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on govemmcnt hands that have
terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The net interest cost is calculated by applyng the discount rate to the
net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit apense in
the  statement  of profit  and loss.  Remeasurement gains  and  losses  arising from  experience  adj.ustmcnts  and changes  in actuarial
assumptions  are  recognised  in  the  perind  in which  they occur,  directly  in  other  comprehensive  income,  They  are  included  in
retained earnings in the statcmcnt of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

b Defined Contribution plan:

Contribution payable to recognised provident fund and superannuation scheme which is defined contribution scheme is charged to
Statement of Profit & I.oss. The company has no further obligation to the plan beyond its contribution.

W    Cash Flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non{ash
riaturc, any defemls or accruals of past or future operating cash rcccipts or payments and item of income or expcnscs associated with
investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

X     Operatingcydc

Based on the nature of prnducts/activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisi(ion of assets and their realisation in cash
or cash  equivalents,  the Company has determined  its operating cycle  as  12  months for the purpose of classification of its assets  and
liabilities as current and non current.

Y     Rounding ofanounts

Au amounts disclosed in th
unless othcrwlse stated as requirgrent

d notes have been rounded off
edule 1110lvislon ID.

8S

Lacs  (up to two decinals),



NOTE NO. 3 : PROPERTY, PIANT AND EQUIPMENT
Particulars Freehold land Building Plant andmchinery Fundtue afixt- Vehicles Officeequipments Total

Gross black
As at March 31,2022AdditiousDisposals 0.39 1.34 182.11 1.30 0.12 7.41 192.67

As at March 31,2023AdditiousDisposals 0.39 1.34 182.11 1.30 0.12 7.41 192.67

As at March 31,2024 0.39 1.34 182.11 1.30 0.12 7.41 192.67

Particular Freehold land Buflding Plant andmachinery Furnitue &fixtues Vchides onceequipments Total

Accunulatcd dei)rcciation
As at twrfu 31,2022 0.04 105.03 0.79 6.79 112.65

Depreciation charge during the yearDisposals 0.01 10.10 0.04 10.15

As at Mad 31,2023 0.05 115.13 0.83 6.79 122.80

Depreciation charge during the yearDisposals 0.01 8.60 0.03 8.63

As at Mad 31,2024 0.06 123.72 0.86 6.79 131.43

Net carrying anount as at March 31, 2023 0.39 1.29 66.99 0.46 0.12 0.63 69.88

Net carrring amount as at Mareh 31, 2024 0.39 1.28 58.39 0.43 0.12 0.63 61.24



Partimlars                                                                                        Building                    Total
Grfus block

As at March 31,2022 9.89 9.89

Additlous
Disposals
As at March 31,2023 9.89 9.89

Additious
Disposals

As at March 31,2024 9.89 9.89

Particulars Building Total
^rmmulated depreciation

As at Mad 31,2022 2.55 2.55

Depreciation charge during the year 0.36 0.36

Disposals

As at March 31,2023 2.90 2.90

Depreciation charge during the year 0.34 0.34

Disposals
As at March 31,2024 3.24 3.24

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 6.99 6.99

Net carrrfug amount as at March 31, 2024 6.65 6.65

PardoDlars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Rental income Nil Nil

Direct operating expenses from property that did not generate rental income. 3.02 2.50

Tlicre are no restrictions on the realisability of investment property.
The company is using same life for the same dass of asset as ai)plicable for I)roperty plant and equipment.
Fair Value
Ifmesment property - Residential butlding, the market value has not been ascertained.
The ranff of estimates within which fall value is hichly likely to lie-Between Rs. 4.00 Crore to 4.20 Crore
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+

~     5      NONCURRENTINVES"ENTS
[Rs. in las]

Particuho                                                                       Face                                   As at March 31, 2024                               As at March 31, 2023
Amount Amount

Non Tndc bDvestmeuts

Qrtyurty
Eauitv lnstniments (At FVOCI)

Life Insunnce corporation of India                          Rs.10/-

GAII. (India) Ltd                                                                   Rs. io/-

NHPC Ltd                                                                                 Rs.10/-

Brilasoft linited                                                             Rs. 2/-

Total Value of Quoted Investments

Unquoted
Mutual Funds  (At FVTPL)

SBI hiquid Fund - Direct Growth Rs.1,000/-

58,500                           535.04

1,50,000                            271.72

25,000                               22.41

SBI Arbitrage opportunities Fund -                             Rs.10/-                         8,50,225.675                         278.31
Direct Plant - Growl

Total Value of Unquoted Investments

Net value of Investment                                                                                                                 1,107.48

6      OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

58,500                          312.77

1,50,000                           157.87

25,000                              10.05

20,000                             52.20

11,608.087                          408.99

Particulars                                                                                                                             hharch 31, 2024                                         Mardi 31, 2023

qunsecured consider good, unless other wise specified)
Deposits

7      DEFERRED TAXASSETS
Name of the shareholder                                                                                                March 31, 2024                                        Mardi 31, 2023

Deferred tax assets Olet) Qefer Note No. 7.1)

Note No.: 7.1
Pardculars Net bahoce as at Recognised in

April oi, 2o23 statement ofprofitandloss

Defemed Tax Lial]flities / (Assets)
Property,  plant and equipment / Investment  Property / Other 8.21 (0.62)
IntangivleAssets

Fair Value through P&L (28.47) (41,43)

Fair Value throuch OCI G7.47)

Others Matter 10.47

Expenses anowable under income tax on payment basis (0.10) (22.41)

(27.83) (54.00)

Particulars Net bahace as at Rccogniscd in
April  oi, 2022 statement ofprofitandloss

Recognised in Net bahoe as at
out twnd 31, 2024

7.59

(69.90)
52.00 44.53

10.47

(22.51)

52.00 (29.82)

Ihaognind in Net balcc as at
Orl Mard 31, 2023

Deferr`ed Tax ljabilitics / (Assets)
Property,  plant and equipment / Investment Property / Other 8.92 (0.72)
IntangivleAssets

Fair Value thouch P&L (0.02) (28.45)
Fair Value through OCI (0.19)

Others Matter
Expenses allowable under incom_e taxQp payment basis (1.63) 1.54

',..1``.:r-:.iiji:i;,,:¢,¥\ 7.08 (27.63)

38

8.21

(28.47)

0.28) C7.47)

(0.10)

0.28) (27.83)
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Income tax
nents of income tax nse for the ear ended 31 March, 2024

[Rs. in Lams]

Particulars -31, 2024 - 31, 2023
Profit and Loss:
Current tax -net of effect ofcarlier years : Rs. 0.00 Ickhs (31 March 2023 : Rs. 0.00 Lalds)

Deferred tax -net of reversal of carher years : Rs. Nil (31 March 2023 : Rs. Nil)

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting I)rofit multiplied by domestic tax rate
Particulars

Profit before income tax epense
Tax at the Indian tax rate @ 25.17% (31 March 2023 @ 25.17%)

Add: Items ding rise to difference in tax
Permanent difference
Others

Tax for earlier years
Total Tax Expenses

8     oTlmRNON cuRRENTAssETs

11.86 (0.85)

(43.53) (27.63)

(31.67) (28.48)

For the year For the yen
ended Match 31, ended ~ 31,
2024 2023

(133.00) (116.99)

(33.47) (29.45)

0.84 0.84

0.97 0.97

(0.85)

(31.66) (28.49)

Particulars                                                                                                                      htrh 31, 2024                                       March 31, 2023

quusecund consider good, unless other wise specified)
Advance recoverable in cash or kind or for value to be received

9      INVENTORIES
Particulars                                                                                                                       hhah 31, 2024                                       Mardi 31, 2023

Raw Material

Packing Material

10    CASHANDCASHE UIVALENTS

Particulars                                                                                                                            March 3l, 2024                                         March 31, 2023

Balane wh Banks
• On Current account
-Fired Deposit (Including Accnied Interest) (Refer Note No.10.1)

Cash on Hnd

Note No. 10.1: All the fixed deposits having maturity of more than 12 months.

11    O'rllER FINANclAL AssE'rs
Particulars                                                                                                                             March 31, 2024                                         March 31, 2023

qunsecured consider good, unless other wise specified)
Other receivables

Interest Receival)le

12    0THERTAXASSETS
Particulars                                                                                                                            Mardi 31, 2024                                         March 31, 2023

Advance Tax and Tax lleducted at Source Otet of Provision for Taxation)

13    OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Particulars                                                                                                                            Mardi 31, 2024                                         March 31, 2023

qunsecured consider good, unless other wise specified)
Balance with Central Excise and GST
Advance to suppliers and service providers
Advance recoverable in cash or kind or for value to be rccei
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Advance to employcc

Advance to Gratuity Fund (Refer Note No. 32)

UITY SIIARE CAPITAL

Particulars                                                                                                                      Mach 31, 2024                                       Marl 31, 2023

Authorized Share Capital
2,50,000 Equity shares, Rs.10/-par value

(31 March 2023: 2,50,000 equity shares Rs.10/-each)

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up Shares
2,45,000 Equity shares, Rs.10/- par value fully paid up

(31 March 2023: 2,45,000 equity shares Rs.10/-each)

Note No.14.1: The reconchation of the number of shares outstanding at the begivning and at the cnd of reporting period 3103-2024:

Particulars March 31, 2024
No. of Shares Amount

Number of shares at the bcgivning
Add: Shares issued during the year
Less : Shares hougivt back (if any)

Number of shares at the end

2,45,000                             24.50

2,45,000                             24.50

Marl 31, 2023
No. of Shares Amount

2,45,000                            24.50

2,45,000                            24.50

Note No. 14.2: Terms / rights attached to equity shares

(A) The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote
per share.  The dividend  proposed by the  Board  of Directors is subject to the  approval  of the shareholders  in the ensuing Annual General

(8)  In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Note No. 14.3: The details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company:

Nape of the sharcholdcr March 31, 2024
Nunha ofshamsheld % held as at

Mr. Ranu S. Deora

Mr. Rajesh R. Deora

Mr. Rajiv R. Deora

Ranu M Deora HUF
Mrs. Grace R. Ileora

Note No.14.4: The details of shareholders holding of promoters

(a) Shares held by promoters at March 31, 2024

34,500

36,000

34,270
27,420

36,000

14.08%

14.69%

13.99%

11.19%

14.69%

March 31, 2023
Number of % held as at

shares held

34, 500                           14. 08%

36,000                          14. 69%

34, 270                           13.99%

27,420                             11.19%

36,000                          14. 69%

Promoter Name                                                             No. of shares % of total shares % Change during the year, % of total shares

1) Mr. Ranu S. Deora

2) Mr. Rajesh R. Deora

3) Mr. Rajiv R. Deora

4) Ranu M Deora HUF

5) Mrs. Grace R. Deora
Total

a) Shares held by promoters at March 31, 2023

34,500                           14.08%

36,000                           14.69%

34,270                           13.99%

27,420                             11.19%

36,000                           14.69%

1,68,190                           68.64%

Promoter Name                                                             No. of shares % of total shares % Change during the year, % of total shares

1) Mr. Ranu S. Deora

2) Mr. Rajesh R. Deora

3) Mr. Rajiv R. Deora

4) Ranu M Deora HUF

5) Mrs. Grace R. Deo

Total

MUMLTIA|
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(

-     15   0THERE
[Rs. in lan]

Name of the shareholder Mach 31, 2024                                       Marl 31, 2023

+-&suaplus*
CrtytalRescrve#
G±Rescrves##
Retained earnings
Oonercomorehcnsivelncome(OCD
•Remcasurenent of net defined benefit plans

•Fair Value of Equity Investments through OCI

0.04

177.86

994.99

(0.66)
265. 29                            264.63

1,437.52 1,135,22

# Capital reserve mainly represents amount on capital account.
## General reserve relfects amount transferred from statement of profit and loss in accordance with regulations of the Companies Act, 2013.
* For movement, refer statement of changes in equity.

16   BOREormGs
Particulars                                                                                                                             hfroh 31, 2024                                         March 31, 2023

Secured (Refer Note No. 16.1)
From Bank
Exert Packing Credit 0.00                                                                           0.00

0.00                                                                             0.00

Note No.  16.1:  The above loan from State Bank of India,  Banker of the Company,  is secured prirmrily against  lst change on the Company's
Current Assets.

17    TRADE PAYABLES
Particulars                                                                                                                               March 31, 2024                                          March 31, 2023

Curm'
Dues of micro and small enterprises Qcfer Note No.17.1 and 17.2)
Dues other than micro and small enterprises (Rcfcr Note No.  17.1 and 17.2) 13.07                                                                          18,49

13.07                                                                            18.49

Note No.  17.1: The company has not received information from vendors regarding their status under the rmcro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act,2006 and hence disclosures relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end together with interest paid / payable under this
Act,have not been given.

Note No. 17.2: The said infomation and Trade Payables regarding Micro and Small Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties
have been identified on the basis of information available with the company.

Particulars                                                                                                                                                                  Mardi 31, 2024     March 31, 2023

The prindpal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpald to suppliers

(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year;

(ii) Interest due on (1) above remaining unpald to the suppher as at the cnd of each accounting year;

(iii)  Interest paid by the Company in terms of section  16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Dcvclopmcnt Act,  2006,  along with  the  amount  of the  payment  made  to  the  suppher  beyond  the

appointed day during each accounting year;

(iv)  Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

(v) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and

(vi) Interest remaining due and payal]le even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest
dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowancc as a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the IAcro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

Note No. 17.3: Trade Payablcs due for payment

(a) Trade Payables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2024
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[Rs. in Laths]

(i) MSME

(ii) Oncrs

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME

(iv) Disputed dues - others
Total

8.36 8.36

8.36                                                                                                                                                                                           8.36

Add: Accrued Expense

Total Trade Payables

a) Trade Payal)les ageing schedule as at March 31, 2023

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Ifss than 6 montths - 1-2 2-3 More than
6 months 1  year years years 3 years

(i) MSME

(ii) Others

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME

(iv) Disputed dues - others

Total

Add: Accrued Epruse

Total Trade Payables

18    OTHER CURRENT LIABIIJTIES

8.38 4.27 12.65

8.38                                                                                                         4.27                                                                           12.65

Particulars                                                                                                                               Mawh 31, 2024                                          March 31, 2023

Statutory Dues Payable

19    PROVISIONS
Pardculars                                                                                                                          March 31, 2024                                        Mard 31, 2023

Provision for Eml)levee Benefits

For leave Encashment qunfunded)

20    CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES
Particulars                                                                                                                                March 31, 2024                                          MardL 31, 2023

Provision for taxation OJet of tax payment)

CONTIGENT LIABIIJTY #
Particulars                                                                                                                             March 31, 2024                                         Mardi 31, 2023

1) Disputed Tax Lial.ilty

Income Tax Dispute - 438 Disallowance
Income Tax Act,  1961 pending with The Appellate Tribunal for
the Assessment Year 1993-1994

counTRENTS

3.21 3.21

Particulars                                                                                                                             Mardi 31, 2024                                         March 31, 2023

1) Estimated Amounts of Contract remaining to be exeouted on
Capital account and not provided for

Note:
#  The management does  not
economic benefits is remote, have

claims  to  succeed.  Clains,  where
ontlngent llabfllty.
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-       22  oTlmR INcoME
[Rs. in hams]

Particulars March 31, 2024                                      MardL 31, 2023

Interest Income (Refer Note No. 22.1)

Oner Support Service
Other Non Ooeratin£ Income
Unrealised Gain on Investment in Mutual Fund
Irmdend Received
Sundry Balance Written Back OJet)

Note No. 22.1 : Break-up of Interest Income
Interest income on other deposits
Interest income on income tax refund
Interest income on fixied deposit with bank

23   COST oF hIATERIArs coNsunmD

18.09

Particulars Mard 31, 2024                                  Mard 31, 2023

Raw Material
Inventory at the begivning of the year
Less: Inventory at the end of the year
Cost of Materials Consumed

Particulars                                                                                                                                    March 31, 2024                                     Mar\ch 31, 2023

Packing Material
Inventory at the begivning of the year
I.ess: Inventory at the end of the year
Cost of Materials Consumed

24   EMPLOREE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Particulars                                                                                                                              Mard 31, 2024                                    March 31, 2023

Salaries, Wages and Bonus
Contribution to Provident and other fund
Staff welfare Experrs

25   FINANCE COST

Particulars                                                                                                                                  March 31, 2024                                     March 31, 2023

Interest Expense on Short Tern Bank Borrowing

26  DEPRECIATION & AMORTlzrmoN ExpENSEs
Particulars                                                                                                                              Mard 31, 2024                                    March 31, 2023

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment
Depreciation on Investment Property

27   0TIIER EXPENSES
Particulars                                                                                                                                  March 31, 2024                                     March 31, 2023

Power & Fuel
Repairs & Maintenance

Plant & Machinery
Building
Others

Insurance Charges
Rates & Tares
Rent
Payment to Statutory Auditor Qefer Note
Water Charge
lfrour Charges
Freicht and Forwardlng
Listing Fees
Postage and Telephone
Interest on TDS and EPFO

28.00 27.88
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Penalty on PT and EPFO
Legal & professiond
Regiv & Share Transfer Fee
Bank Changes
Interest Eqreusc on GST
Misceuancous exppeuses

Unrealised toss on Investment in Mutual Fund
Invesment Expenses

Note No. 27, 1 : Payment to Statutory Auditors
As Auditors :

Audit Fees (including Limited Review)
Towards GSTrservice Tax *

In Oner Caoacitv :
Other Service
out Of pocket expenses
Towards GST/Service Tax *

Total Auditors RemLmeration

[RS. in lrm]

* Note: Out of above GST/ Service Tax credit of Rs.38,835/- ¢revious Year Rs.37,899/-) has been taken and the same has not been debited to

Statement of Profit & Loss.

28   EARNING PER SIIARE
Particulars                                                                                                                            Marl 31, 2024                                   March 31, 2023

(a) Profit attributable to Equity sharcholders                                                                                                  (101.33)
a) No. of Equity share outstanding during the year.                                                                               2,45,000
(c) Face value of each Equity share Qs.)                                                                                                                  10
(d) Basic & Diluted earning per share (Rs,)                                                                                                       (41,36)

(88.51)
2,45,000

10

(36.12)

29   EXCEPTIOI\IAL ITEMS

During the  current  period,  the  company has  complied with  circular  no.  16/2023Cus  dated  7th June  2023  issued  by The Central  Board  of
Indirect  taxes  and  Customs  Drawhack division  for compliance with  the  pre-import  condition  for payment of IGST  and  interest thereon for
inports made under Advance Authorization on or after 13th October 2017 tin 9th January 2019 on which IGST exemption had been availed. As

per the circular the company was non-compliant with the 'pre-impor(' conditions as defined in the revised circular no.  16ve023Cus drted 7th
June 2023 due to which the company was liable to pay Rs.259.87 lakhs including interest. The Company has claimed the credit of IGST paid and
the interest portion amounting to Rs.115.65 lakhs has been shown under Exceptioml items.

30  Financial Risk Management
The Company's activities expose it to credit risk, liquidity risk and price risk.

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the impact thereof in the financial
statements.

Risk Exposue arising from Mcasurment Managuncnt
Credit Risk Cash and cash equivalents, Credit    ratings,    Review    of    agivgStrict  credit  control  and  monitoring

trade      receivables      and analysis, on quarterly basis. system,             diversification             o
financial assets. counterpar[ies, on quar(erly basis.

Liquidity RIsk Trade  payal)les  and  other Maturity       analysis,        cash       flowMaintaining   Sufficient   cash   /   cash
financial liabflitics. projections. equivalents  and  marketable  securityandfocusonrealisationoreceivables.

Market Risk - Foreign Exchange Financial        assets        and Foreign   currency   exposure   rcvicw The  company partly  hedged  due  to
hiabflitles not denominated and sensitivity analysis. natural  hedge  and  is  aploring  to
in INR. hedge its unhedged positions.

Marketrisk-seoun;%gree.`\ Investments      in      equity Scusitivity andysis Portfolio divusification
securities, Mutual Funds. ¢fnr;

zJS€Sl`pr[ccR,sk±ff7„up.,QA,E8^4:ap
Change   in   price   of  raw The  company  sourcing ,ffi        - mpany   is   able   to   pass   on

aterial
:tmh£#tsrs##;##dr"Ouoriccrisk.

su                 price  hike  if any  to  thef®`®`

``S?&`Sdror ql     ``tsi:Ti#2#



TRlorlmM pRODucTS LrmTED
Notes to the financhl statcmcnts for the year ended March 31, 2024

[Rs. in lam)
The Board provides guiding principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas such as credit risk, liquidity risk,

price risk and foreign exchange risk effecting business operation. The company's risk management is carded out ly the management as per
guidelines and policies approved by the Board of Directors.

(A) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss.
Credit  risk encompasses  the  direct  risk of default,  risk of deterioration  of crcditworthiness  as wcu  as  concentration risks.   The Company is
exposed to credit dsk from its operating activities ®rimarily trade receivables), deposits with banks and loans given.

Credit Risk Management
The company's credit risk mainly from trade receivables as these are typically unseourcd.  This credit risk has  always been managed through
credit approvals,  establishing credit limits and continuous mohitoring the creditworthiness of customers to whom credit is cxtcnded in the
normal cousc of business. The Company estimates the expected credit loss based on past data, available information on public dormin and
cxpericnce.  Expected  credit  losses  of financial  assets  rcceivablc  are  estimated  based  on  historical  data  of the  Company.  The  company has

provisioning policy for expected credit losses.

On adoption of lnd AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain.

The company's exposure to credit risk for trade receival)les is as fonows:

Particulars Gross Carrying anount Gross Carrgivg amount
-31, 2024 March 31, 2023

1 - 180 days past duc*

181 -365 drys past due

More than 365 drys pas due#
Total
* The Company believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than  180 days are still collectiblc in full, based on historical

paprent behaviour.

# The Company based upon past trends determine an impairment allowance for loss on receivablcs outstanding for more than 180 drys past

(8) liquidity RIsk
Liquidity risk represents the inability of the Company to meet its fimncial obligrtious within stipulated time, To mitigate this risk, the Company
maintains sufficient liquidity by way of working capital limits from banks.

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial lial]ilities at the reporthg date based on contractual
undiscounted payments :
Particulars Lee than 1 year More than 1 year Total
As at hrfu 31, 2o24
Borrowings 0.00 0.00

Trade payables 13.07 13.07

Total 13.07 13.07

Particulars Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total
As at March 31, 2023
Borrowings 0.00 0.00
Trade payables 18.49 18.49

Total 18.49 18.49

(C) Foreign Currency risk disclosure
A. Currency risk
Cunency risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a fimncial instrLiment will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.  The
Company is exposed  to  the  effects of fluctuation  in the  prevailing foreign ourrcncy exchange  rates  on  its  financial position and  cash  flows.
Exposure  arises  primarily  due  to  exchange  rate  fluctuations  bctwccn  the  functioml  currency  and  other  currencies  from  the  Company's
operating, investing and financing activities.  For the year ended 31st March 2024, no outstanding trade reccivables and trade payablcs ling in
foreign cunency.

(D) unket risk
A Price risk
Exposure
The company's exposure to equity securities/mutual fund price risk arises from investments held by the company and classified in the balance
sheet either as fair value throuch OCI or at fair value through profit or loss.
To manage its price risk arising from investments

porfolio ls done in accordance with the linits
q)  Price risk
The company is exposed to price risk in b
Company monitors its price risk and factors

rities/mutual fund, the comp

y's raw material  and
oftheproducts.       \

qs_

portfolio.  Irversificatlon of the

from vendors drty. The



TRloulmM pRODUCTs lunTED
Notc§ to the finardal statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

-31  Related party disclosures as required under lnd AS 24, "Related party Disclosures", arc given below:

a) Name of the related party and description of relationship.

Sl. No. Rchted Parties Natue of Rclatiouship

(i) Mr. Ranu S. Deora Director and CEO Qtry Managerial Personnel)

(ii) Mrs. Ureca Deolekar Company Sccretay

(iii) G Amphray lrfuratories Key managerial person is proprietor

(iv) G Amphray Phrmaceuticals Relative of key managerial person have control

(v) Triochem Products Gratuity Key mmgcrial person is trustcc

[Rs. in hkhs]

b) Details of Transactions during the year with related parties.
Sl. No. Rchted parties Nature of Transactions during the year Mari 31, 2024 wrfu 3i, 2023
(i) G Amphray ldrratorics Remburshment of eprnses 19.69

Other Support Scrvicc 55.00

(ii) Mrs. Urcca Deolekar Salary Paid 2.75 2.40

c) Balances at end of the year with related parties.
Sl. No. Related parties Nature of Transactions during the year hrfu 31, 2024 Mad 31, 2023

(i) G Amphray lrfuratories Other Receivable 59.40 2.32

(ii) Triochem Prnducts Gratuity F Advance for Gratuity 4.20 5.33

32  Employee Benefits
As per END AS 19 "Employee Benefits", the disdosures of Employee benefits as defined in the said Accounting Standards are given below :

(i) Defined Contribution Plan
Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan indudes Providend Fund. The expenses recognised for the year arc as under :
Particulars March 31, 2024 - 31, 2023
Employcr's Contribution to Providend Fund 2.18 2.33

(ii) Ithed Benefit Plan
(a) Gratuity:
The Company operates gratuity plan wherein every employee is entitled to the benefit equivalent to 15 days / one month salary last drawn for
each  completed year  of service  depending  on  the  date  of ).oining.  The  sane  is  payable  on  termination  of service,  retirement  or  death,
whichever is earlier. The bcncfit vests after 5 years of continuous scrvicc.

a)  The  following tables  set  out  the  assumptions  taken,  stanis  of the  gratuity  plan,  the  amounts  recognised  in  the  CompanyJs  financial
statements as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

Sl. No, Particulars 2023 - 2024 2022 - 2023
Valuation Results as at Mari 31, 2024 hnd 31, 2023

I Change in present value of obligations
PVO at begivning of period 2.80 1.63

Interest cost 0.20 0.12

Current service cost 1.07 0.94

Past service cost - (non vested benefits)

Past service cost - (vested benefits)

Benefits paid

Contribution by plan participants
Business combinations

Curtailments
Settelcments
Actuarial (Gain) / loss on obligation 0.16 0,11

PVo at end of perind 4.23 2.80
11 Interest Expe©

Interest cost 0.20 0.12

Ill Fair wluc of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at the begivning 1.93 2.09

Interest cost 0.20 0.12

IV Net liabmty                                       rf=:T:`                             ~1<
Pvo at bennnlng of period                         /aSt ±Z=:::<lftyro`                          ZZZZ:` \J uiJuci,L\    2.80

1.63

Fair value of the assets at bctlnning report./`F;/                \L4L``\                       //'_ ~cJy \ft\  1.93 2.09

Net nal]ility                                                          i.'`i:5 /'      .']f,,'_,-.,.             \¥i\                          !l  =uMjpbal| E3  )I  o.87 (0.4®•-\;`,I          / i ,*



TRIorlmM pRODucTs I"ITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

[ds. in hakhs]

V Net interest
Interest cxpcrrses 0.20 0.12

Interest income 0.20 0.12

Net interest
VI Actual rctiim on plan assets

Actual rctun on plan assets 0.29 0.30

I.css interest income included above 0.20 0.12

Return on plan assets excluding intcrcst income 0.09 0.18

VII Actiiarial (Gain) / toss on oungation
Due to demographic assumption*
Due to financial assumption 0.09 (0.06)
Due to experience 0.07 0.17

Total actuarial (Gain) /  Ioss 0.16 0.11

* tis figure does not reflect interrelatiouship between demographic assumption and financial assumption when a limit is applied

on the benefit the effect will be shown as an experience
VIII Fair wluc of plan assets

Opening fair value of plan assets 1.93 2.09

Adjustment to opening fair value of plan assets 0.87 (0.46)
Return on plan assets excluding interest income 0.09 0.18

Interest income 0.20 0.12

Contribution by employer
Contribution by employee
Benefit paid

Fair value of plan assets at end 3.09 1.93

K Past scrvicc cost recognised
Past service cost - (non vested benefits)

Past service cost - (vested benefits)

Average remaining future service till vesting of the benefit
Recognised past service cost - non vested benefits

Recognised past service cost - vested benefits

Unrccognised past service cost - non vested benefits
X Amount to be recognized in the balance sheet and statement of profit and loss account

PVO at end of peried 4.23 2.80

Fair value of plan assets at end of period 3.09 1.93

Funded status (1.14) (0.87)
Net Assets / Lial]ilrty recognized in the balance sheet (1.14) (0.87)

XI Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss account
Cunnt service cost 1.07 0.94

Net interest
Past service cost - (non vcsted benefits)

Past service cost - (vested benefits)

Curtainents effect
Settelements effect
Unrecognised past service cost - non vested benefits
Acturial (Gain) / qoss) recongnised for the period
Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss account 1.07 0.94

XII Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Actuarial (Gain) / Ioss recognized for the period 0.16 0.11

Asset limit effect

Return on plan assets excluding net interest (0.09) (0.18)

Unrecognised actuarial (Gain) / I.oss from previous period
Total actuarial (Gain) / loss recognized in (OQD~ 0.07 (0.07)

ffiqtodue,o¢t`\%h¢^;S€.ng$4;ch>^fe»q+\9+*a`Q®€



TRIoumM pRODucTs LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

[RS. in las]
HII Movements in the lial>mty recognjzcd in balance sheet

Opening net liabhity 0.87 (0.46)

Adjustment to opening balance (0.87) 0.46

Expeuscs as above 1.07 0.94

Contribution paid
Other comprenehsive income (OCI) 0.07 (0.07)

Closing net hability 1.14 0.87

AV Schedule Ill of the Compares act 2013
current lial]ilrty 1.14 0.87

Non - current lial]ility 3.09 1.93

rv Projected service cost 31st March 2025 1,15

Projected scrvicc cost 31st March 2024 1.05

XVI Asset informtion Tanoet Total

Allontiion % Amount

Cash and cash equivalents 0.00%

Gratuity fund (The Tmstees of the Scheme) loo.00% 3.09

Debt Security - Government bond 0.00%

Equity Securities - Corporate debt securities 0.00%

Other insurance contracts 0.00%

Property 0.00%

Total itemized assets 100.00% 3.09

XVII Assunptious as at 31-Mar-24 3l-Mar-23

Mortality IA" (2012-14)ut. L" (2012-14)Ult.

Interest / Discount rate 7.09% 1 .2lf 'f %

Rate of increase in compensation 4.00% 4.00%

Annual increase in hcalthcare costs
Future changes in maninum state healthcarc benefits
Expected average remaining service 10.30 10.87

Retirement age 58 years

Employee attrition rate Age 0 to 45 : 2%

Age 46 to 58 :  1%

XVIII Sen§iffity analysis DR: Discount Rate ER: Salay Escalation Rate

PVO DR+ 1% PVO DR-1% PVO ER +  1% PV0 ER - 1%

rvo 3.82 4.70 4.71 3.81

XH Epeed payout
Year                                               Expected Expected Expected Expected Expcted Epeed

Outgo Outgo Out8O Out8O Outgo Out8O Six to

first second third fourth fifth ten years
PVo payouts                                                 0.59 0.08 0.09 0.11 0.11 0.97

XX Assets lial]ility comparisous
Year 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-24

PVO at end of perind 6.73 10.25 1.63 2.80 4.23

Plan assets 5.59 7.05 2.09 1.93 3.09

Surplus / @eficit) (1.14) (3.20) 0.46 (0.87) (1.14)

Experience ad|.usments in plan assets (0.12) (0.10) (0.03) 0.18 0.09

Weigivted average remaining duration of Defined Benefit obligation                                                                                                        11.54
XH Namtious

1) Analysis of defined benefit obligation
The number of members under the scheme have remained same.
The total salary has decreased by 5.67% during the accounting period.

The resultant lial>tlrty at the end of the period over the begivning of the period has de                      1.12%
2)E¥isc:era#u:t: asr::prcvio      #n£3in   the accounting stanedgr£:€+A
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TRloclmM pRODuCTS I"ITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended Mard 31, 2024

[Rs. in lrm]
3) Description of the Plan Assets and Reimbursement Conditions

100% of the Plan Assets is entnisted to The Trustees of the Scheme under their Group Graturty Scheme. The reimbursement is
subject to iusurer's Surrender Polrty.

4) Investment / Interest Risk
The Company is aposed to Investment / Interest risk if the return on the invested fund falls below the discount rate used to

arrive at present value of the benefit.

5) longevity Risk
The Company is not exposed to risk of the employees living longer as the benefit under the scheme ceases on the employee

sepanting from the employer for any reason.
6) RIsk of Salary Increase

The Company is exposed to higher liabhity if the future salaries rise more than assumption of salary escalation.
7) Discount rote

The discount rate has decreased from 7.29% to 7.09% and hence there is a dccrcase in liability leading to actuarial grin due to
change in discount rate.

33  Transition to lnd AS 116

The company has identified that there were no leases which are in the nature of Right-to-use and hcncc no lease liability is recognised in the
financial statements.

34   Balances of Trade Payables and Loans and Advances are subject to confirmation and consequential adjustment, if any.

35   The following are analytical ratios for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

Particulars                        Numerator                             Denominator 2023 - 2024 2022 - 2023 Vrfuce
(a) Current Ratio                  Current Assets

a) Return on Equity           Profit for the year less
Ratio                                        Preference Dividend, if any

(c)        Trade        payables purchasesofGoodsand
tunover ratio* *                   other cxpeuscs

(d) Return on capital          Profit before taxes and
employed                              Finance cost

(e) Return on Investment   Income generated from
investments

Current Lial]hities                                        10. 24

Average shareholder's  Equity                 (0.08)

Average Trade Payables

Capital Employed = Net
worth + Deferred tax
Lial]hities+Borrowing

Time weichted average
investments

0.04

5.38                            90.48%

(0.07)                             7.61%

4.61                             -11.88%

(0.10)                            -9.82%

0.01

36  Capital Managcmcnt

(i) RIsk Management
For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the
equity holders. The primary objective of the Company capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustmcnts in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the
financial covenants, The Company monitors capital using a gcaring ratio and is measured by net debt divided by Equity. The Company's Debt is
defined as long-ten and short-term borrowings including ourrent maturities of long term borrowings and total equity (as shown in balance
sheet) includes issued capital and all other reserves.

(fi) Gearing Ratio
The gearing ratio at end of the reporting period was as follows.
Particulars Marl 31, 2024 hfroh 31, 2o23
Borrowing 0.00 0.00

Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents 53.81 95.91

Nct Debt (53.81) (95.91)

Total Equity 1,462.02 1,159.72

Total Equity and Net Debt 1,408.21 1'063.81

Gearfug ratio

37  Segment Reporting
The Company is engaged primarily in the business
actlvitles of the company revolve around the in
have any reportable gcographical segment.
applical,le.



TRlacllEM pRODucTs LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

38  Fair value measurement-

The fair value of Financial instrument as of March 31,2024 and March 31,2023 were as follows-

[Rs. in fakhs]

Pariculas March 31,2024 -31,2023Fair cluemerardy ValuationTdiquc

Assets-

Investment      in      Equity      Instruments 829.17 532.89 IJIvel-1 Quoted Market
through OCI Price

Investment   in   Mutual   Funds   through 278.31 408.99 Level-1 Unquoted Market
FVTPL Price

Total 1,107.48 941.89

The management asscsscd that Cash and Cash equivalents, loans, other balances with Banks, trade receivables, trade payal)lcs and other
current lial)flities/assets approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities Of these instruments.

39  The previous year figures have been regrouped/redassificd, wherever necessary to conform to the current presentation as per the schedule Ill
of Companies Act, 2013.

As per our report of even date attached.
For Kanu Doshi Associates Ill
Chartered Aocountants
FimReestrationNo.:L°47f5¥REi

J9
Kunal vakhaha
Parmcr
Menhahip No.: 148916
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•¥:,i
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Grace R. Deora                                              PtLm pamar
Director (DIN: 00312080)                            Chief Fincial officer
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Place: Munhi
Dated: 28th May, 2024

1==
Director (DIN: 00312369)

'tyo

Urcca frolekar
Company Secretary



Form lsR -1
(-SEBI  circular No. SEBl/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/655  dated  November 03,  2021  on  Common  and  Simplified  Norms for

processing investor's service  request by RTAs and  norms for furnishing PAN,  KYC details and  Nomination)

REQUEST FOR REGISTERING  PAN,  KYC DETAILS OR CHANGES / UPDATION THEREOF

[For Securities (Shares / Debentures / Bonds,  etc.) of listed companies  held  in  physical form]

A.  I /We, request you to Register/ Change / Update the following (Tick /relevant box)                        Date   :         /           /

DPAN [  Signature I    Mobile Number
I   Bankdetails I  Registered Address H    E-mail address

8.   Security and KYC Details  [ to be filled  in  by the  First Holder ]

Name of the lssuer Company Folio No(s)

Face value of Securities Number of Securities
Distinctive number ofSecurities(Optional) From TO

E-mail Address

Mobile Number

C.   I/We are submitting documents as per Table below (tick/as relevant, refer to the instructions):
Name(s) of the Security holder(s) in Capital as per  PAN PAN PAN  Linked to
Copies of PAN of all the  Holder(s) duly self-attested with date to  be enclosed with this  Form. Aadhaar   -Y/NTickanyone[/I  *

1. Yes / No

2. Yes / No

3. Yes / No

4. Yes / No

Note:  * PAN shall  be valid only if it is linked to Aadhaar by March  31,  2022, or any other date as may be specified by CBDT.
To know the status of your  PAr\l  Linked to Aadhaar check on this  link:  https://www.incometax.gov.in/ice/foportal

Bank Account Details of First Holder
Name  of the Bank &Branch

lFSC

BankA/c   No. Tick any one I/I-Acct type  I Savings   lturrent
ENRO  I   NRE    [Anyother[                              I

Note:   Original  cancelled  cheque  leaf  bearing  the  name  of  the  first  holder  is  mandatory,  failing  which  first  security  holder  shall  submit  copy  of  bank

passbook / statement attested  by the  Bank for registering the Bank Account details.

Demat Account Number 16digitDP/CL      I                                                                                                                                           I

Also provide Client Master List (CML) of your Demat Account, provided by the Depository Participant.

Authorization:  I / We authorise you  (RTA) to update the above PAN and  KYC details in my / our above folio(s) (use Separate Annexure if extra
space is required) in which  I / we are the holder(s).                                                                                                                                  I strike off what is  not applicable I
Declaration: All the above facts and documents enclosed are true and conect.

First Holder Joint Holder - 1 Joint Holder -2 Joint Holder -3

i
!1

V'?Ia

- , A ri , ,

EN 4
'-    _`'0`"

Note:  If the address mentioned above diffedocumentsasspecifiedinpoint(3)overlears from the address  registered witli the Cf.ompany, you are requested to rec    dla., fs?     ubmittingtho-,-

LINK I r 1 i  I ,r 1, 1 (=

-,\*-<;/     .9-..-2
q®'



I/We are submitting documents as per Table below (tick/as relevant, refer to the instructions):

No. / Document/Information/Details Instruction/Remark

1 I PAN of (all) the (joint) holder(s)

PAN copies of all the holder(s) duly self-attested with date to be enclosed.

PAN  shall  be valid only if it is linked to Aadhaar by March 31,  2022,  or any date as

may be specified  by the CBDT.  For Exemptions / Clarifications on  PAN, please

refer to Objection  Memo as specified  in SEBl  circular.

2 I Demat Account Number
Provide Client Master List (CML) of your  Demat Account,  provided  by the

Depository Participant.

3 Proof of Address of the first Holder

Provide self attested copy of any ONE of the documents, issued by a Govt. Authority,

only if there is change in the address;

I       Client  Master List (CML) of your DematAccount,  provided  by

the  Depository Participant.

I       Valid passport/ Registered Lease or sale Agreement of Residence/
Driving  License/Flat  Maintenance  Bill*

I         Utility  bills  likeTelephone  Bill  (onlyland  line),  Electricity  billor

Gas bill -Not more than  3  months old.

I       ldentitycard (with  photo)/documentwith address,  issued  by
Central/State Government and its Departments, Statutory /

Regulatory Authorities,  Public Sector undertakings, Scheduled

Commercial  Banks,  Public  Financial  Institutions.

H        ForFll/subaccount,  PowerofAttorneygiven  byFll/sub-
account to the Custodians (which are duly notarized and / or

apostilled  or consularised) that gives the registered address

should  be taken.

I      Theproofofaddressinthenameofthespouse*
* Kindly provide additional self-attested copy of Identity Proof of the holder/

claimant.

4 I Bank details

Provide the latest copy of the bank statement with details of bank name, branch,

account  number and  lFSC  or Original  cancelled  cheque leaf bearing the name of

first holder. Alternatively,  Bank details available  in the CML as enclosed will  be

updated  in the folio.

5 I E-mail address
As mentioned on  Form  lsR-1, alternatively the  E-mail address available in the

CML as enclosed  will  be  updated  in the folio.

6 I Mobile
As mentioned  on  Form  lsR-1,  alternatively the  mobile number available in the

CML as enclosed  will  be  updated  in the folio.

7 I Specimen Signature
Provide banker's attestation of the signature of the holder(s) as per Form  lsR -2

and   Original cancelled cheque leaf bearing the name of the first holder.

8 Nomination

Submit Form(s) as per any ONE of the following options.

I   SH-13 For First Time Nomination

I   SH-14 For Cancellation  or Variation  in  Nomination

I   SH-14 and ISR-3 For Cancellation of  Nomination and to ``Opt-Out"

I   ISR-3 To ``OPT-Out" of Nomination  or if No-Nomination  is required

Note: All the above forms are also available on   our website.

I I N K I n i I !||c
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Registered Office: 4th Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir. P. M. Road, Fort,

Mumhai, Mcharashtra, PIN: 400001. Telephone: 00 91 (22) 2266 3150

TR,a
CHEM

Fax: 00 91 (22) 2202 4657 E-mail: info@anohrav.com

Website: www.triochemDroducts. com Corporate Identity Number: L24249MH 1972PLC015544

Form No.: MGT .11

PRORT FORM

¢ursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

Regd. Folio No. *DP ID

No. of Shares held *CL ID

Shares of the al)ove-named Company, hereby appoint:

or fafling him / herSirmture

or farfug him / herSianture

or farfug hin / herSiuntue

I /We, being the mender(s)

1).  Name  & Address:

Email Id:

2). Name & Address:

Eulld:

3). Name & Address:

Eulld:

and whose signature are appended below as my / our proxy to attend and vote for me / us and on my /

our behalf at the 52nd Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Thursday, the 22nd day of

August, 2024 at 03.00 p.in. at 4th Floor, SambavA Chambers, Sir. P. M. Road, Fort, Mumbal - 400001 and at

any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolution as are indicated below:

Sl. No. of Resolution (as in the Notice annexed)

ITick Mark the Sl. No. of Resolution of which the Proxy is appointed)

Signed this_ day of

Member's FolioDP ID-Client ID No.:

Signature of Shareholder(s)

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

2024

Affix R~ue Staml)



TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Registered Office: 4th Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir. P. M. Road, Fort,

Mumbai, Maharashtra, PIN: 400001. Telephone: 00 91 (22) 2266 3150

__d-
CHEM

Fax: 00 91 (22) 2202 4657 E.mail: info@anl)hrav.com

Wchsite: www.triochemDroducts. com Corporate Identity Number: L24249MH1972PLC015544

BALLOT FORM

Sr. No. Particulars Detads

1. Name and ReSstered Address of the

SoleAirst named Shareholder

2. Name(s) of the Joint Holder(s) (if any)

3. Regrtered Folio No./
DP ID No. and Client ID No.

4. Number of Share(s) held

I / We hereby exercise my / our vote(s)  in respect of the Resolutions set out in the Notice of the 52nd

Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company to be held on Thursday, 22nd August 2024, by sending my

/ our assent or dissent to the said Resolution by placing the tick (Y) mark at the appropriate hex below:
Item Resolution No. of ¢OR) (AGAINST)
No. Shares I/Weassenttotheresolution I/Wcdissentfromtheresolution

1. To   receive,   consider  and   adopt   the  Audited   Financial

Statements  of the  Company  for  the  financial  year  ended
March  31,  2024 together with the Reports of the Board of

Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mrs.  Grace Ranu Deora

PIN: 00312080), who retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers hinself for re-appointment.

3. To approve the continuation of directorship of Mrs.  Grace
Ranu  Deor  @IN:  00312080),  aged  76  years  as  a  `Non-

Executive,   Non-Independent  Director'   of  the   Company,

who is lial)le to retire by rotation and had offered himself
for re-appointment.

4. Authorization  for related  patty transaction u/s  188  of the

Companies Act, 2013.

Place:

Date:                                                                                                          /Simature of the shareholder)
Note: Please read the instructions printed below carefully before erercising your vote
Inmction
1.    The  Ballot Form  is  provided for the  benefit of the Members who  do not have  access to  e-voting

facility.

2.    A Member can opt for only one mode of voting i.e. either through e-voting or by Ballot. If a Member

cast votes by hath modes, then voting done throuch e-voting shall prevail and Ballot shall be treated
as invalid.

'or



TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Resttered Office: 4th Floor, Sambava Chalnbers, Sir. P. M. Road, Fort,

Mumbai, Maliarashtra, PIN: 400001. Telephone: 00 91 (22) 2266 3150

TR,a
CHEM

Fax: 00 91 (22) 2202 4657 E-mail: info@anDhrav.com

Website: www.triochemDroducts.com Corporate Identity Number: L24249MH1972PLC015544

3.    For detailed instruction on c-voting, please refer to the notes appended to the Notice of the AGM.
4.    The  Scrutinizer  will  collate  the  votes  downloaded  from  the  e-voting  system  and  votes  received

through post to declare the final result for each of the Resolution forming part of the Notice of the
AGM.

Process and manner for Member opting to vote by using the Ballot Fom
1.    Please complete and sign the Ballot Form  (no other form or photocopy thereof is permitted)  and

send it so as to reach the Scrutinizer appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company, Mrs. RaSni
Chokshi,  Practicing  Company  Secretary  (Membership  No.:  FCS1436)  at  the  office  of  Company's

Register & Transfer Agent.
2.    The  Forin  should  be  signed  by  the  Member  as  per  the  Specimen  signature  regrtered  with  the

Companyoepositories. In case of joint holding, the Form should be completed and singed by the
first named Member and in histher absence, by the new named joint holder. A power of Attorney

¢OA)  holder may vote  on behalf of a member,  mentioning the  regrtration  number of the  POA
registered with the Company or enclosing an attested copy of the POA. Exercise of vote by Bauots not

permitted throuch proxy.
3.    In case the shares are held by companies, trusts, societies, etc. the duly completed Ballot Fom should

be accompanied by a certified true copy of the relevant Board Resolution/Authorization.
4.    Votes should be cast in case of each resolution, either in favor or against by putting the tick (Y) marks

in the column provided in the Bauot.

5.    The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion of the share held by them in the paid-up
equity share capital of the company as on 14th August 2024 and as per the Register of Members of the
Company.

6.    Duly completed Ballot Fom should reach the Scrutinizer not later than Wednesday, August 21, 2024

(05.00 p.in.  IST).  Ballot Form received after August 21,  2024, will be strictly treated as if the reply
fomi the Members has not been received.

7.    A Member may request for a duphicate Bauot Form, if so required. However, duly filled in and signed
duplicate Form should reach the Scrutinizer not later than the date and time specified in serial no. 6
above.

8.    Uusigncd, incomplete, improperly, or incorrectly tick marked Ballot Foms will be rejected. A Fom
will also be rejected if it is received tom, defaced, or mutilated to an extent which makes it difficult
for the Scrutinjzer to identify either the Member or as to whether the votes are in favor or agrinst or if
the signature cannot be verified.

9.    The decision of the Scrutinizer on the validity of the Ballot Fom and any other related matter shall be
find.

10. The Results on above resolutions shall be declared not later than 48 hours from the conclusion of the

AGM of the Company and the resolutions will be deemed to be passed on the AGM date subject to
receipt of the requisite number of votes in favor of the Resolutions.

11.  The  Results declared  along with the  Scrutinjzer's  Report(s)  will be  available on the website  of the

Company (www. triochemproducts.com) and on Service Provider's website (www.cdslindia.com) and

communication of the sanie to the BSE Limited within 48 hours from the cond
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Rectstered Office: 4th Floor, Sanbava Chambers, Sir. P. M. Road, Fort,

Mumbai, Maharashtra, PIN: 400001. Telephone: 00 91 (22) 2266 5150

_4--_
CHEM

Fax: 00 91 (22) 2202 4657 E-mail: info@anDhrav.com

Website : www.triochemDroducts.com Corporate Identity Number: L24249MH 1972PLC015544

Form No.: MGT - 12
Polling Paper

(Pursuant to Section 109(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 21(1)(c) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

Name of the Company: Triochem Products Limited
ReSstered Office: 4th Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P. M. Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400001

CIN: L24249MH1972PLC015544

BALLOT PAPER

Sr. No. Particulars Details
1. Name of the First named Shareholder

(in Block Letters)
2. postal address

3' ReSstered Folio No. / *Client ID No.

(*applicable    to   investors   holding   shares    in
dematerialized form)

4. Class of Share Equity Shares

I hereby exercise my vote in respect of Ordinary / Special Resolutions enumerated below by recording my
assent or dissent to the said resolution in the following marmer:
No. Item No. No. of I assent I dissent

Shares to the from the
held by me resolution resolution

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial
Statements  of  the  Company  for  the  financial  year
ended March 31,  2024 together with the Reports of
the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mrs.  Grace  Ranu
Deora (DIN:  00312080), who retires by rotation and

being eligivle, offers himself for re-appointment.

3. To approve the continuation of directorship of Mrs.

Grace Ranu Deora @IN: 00312080), aged 76 years as

a  `Non-Executive,  Non-Independent  Director'  of the

Company, who is fable to retire by rotation and had
offered himself for re-appointment.

4. Authorization for related party transaction u/s 188 of
the Companies Act, 2013.

Place:

Date:                                                                                                                 (Signature of the shareholder*)

)rty



TRIOCIIEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Registered Office: 4th Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir. P. M. Road, Fort,
Mumbal, Mcharashtra, PIN: 400001. Telephone: 00 91 (22) 2266 3150
Fax: 00 91 (22) 2202 4657 E-mall: info@aml)hrav.com
Website: www.triochemDroducts. com E-mail: investor@triochemoroducts.com
Corporate Identrty Number: L24249MH1972PLC015544

T-
CHEM

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Name of the Attending Member(s) :

*Folio No. :

DP ID No.:

Client ID No.:

No. of Shares:

I hereby record my presence at the 52nd ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company held at 4th Floor,

Sambava Chambers, Sir P.M. Road, Fort, Mumbal - 400 001, at 03.00 p.in. on Thursdry, the 22nd August

2024.

Name of the attending ShareholderArory

Signature of the attending

Shareholder#rony

Notes:

1)   A Member / Proxy holder attending the meeting must bring the Attendance Slip to the meeting
and hand it over at the entrance duly signed.

2)   A Member / Proxy holder attending the meeting should bring copy of the Annual Report for
reference at the meeting.

*ApplicabLe in case of share held in Physical Form

Cut Here

EIECTRONIC VOTING PARTICUALRS

EVSN User ID ¢AN / Sequence Number)

q]lectronic Voting Sequence Number)

NOTE:  Please read the complete instructions given under the Note  (The instructions for shareholders

voting electronically)  to the Notice of Annual General Meeting. The Voting time stars from  19th August

2024 from 09.00 a.in. to ends on 21st August 2024 at 05.00 p.in. The voting mndule shall be disabled by

CDSL for voting thereafter
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